
 

 

 
At: Aelodau’r  Cyngor Sir Dyddiad: 

 
25 Tachwedd 2015 
 

 Rhif Union: 
 

01824712589 

 ebost: dcc_admin@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 
 
Annwyl Gynghorydd 
 
Fe’ch gwahoddir i fynychu cyfarfod y CYNGOR SIR, DYDD MAWRTH, 1 RHAGFYR 2015 
am 10.00 am yn SIAMBR Y CYNGOR, NEUADD Y SIR, RHUTHUN  LL15 1YN. 
 
Yn gywir iawn 
 
 
G Williams 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol, AD a Democrataidd 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
RHAN 1 – GWAHODDIR Y WASG A'R CYHOEDD I FOD YN BRESENNOL AR 
GYFER Y RHAN HON O’R CYFARFOD 
 
1 YMDDIHEURIADAU   

 

2 DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT   

 Dylai’r Aelodau ddatgan unrhyw gysylltiad personol neu gysylltiad sy'n 
rhagfarnu mewn unrhyw fater a nodwyd i'w ystyried yn y cyfarfod hwn. 

 

3 MATERION BRYS FEL Y'U CYTUNWYD GAN Y CADEIRYDD   

 Rhybudd o eitemau y dylid, ym marn y Cadeirydd, eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod 
fel materion brys yn unol ag Adran 100B (4) Deddf Llywodraeth Leol, 1972. 

 

4 DYDDIADUR Y CADEIRYDD  (Tudalennau 5 - 6) 

 Nodi'r ymrwymiadau dinesig a gynhaliwyd gan Gadeirydd y Cyngor (copi 
ynghlwm). 

 

5 COFNODION  (Tudalennau 7 - 22) 

 I dderbyn cofnodion cyfarfod y Cyngor Sir a gynhaliwyd ar 7 Hydref 2015 a 20 
Hydref 2015 (copïau ynghlwm). 

 
 

Pecyn Dogfen Cyhoeddus



 

 

6 CYLLIDEB 2016/17 – NEWYDDION DIWEDDARAF   

 I ystyried adroddiad (copi i ddilyn) i roi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am sefyllfa'r 
gyllideb diweddaraf ar gyfer 2016/17 

 

7 DRAFFT O STRATEGAETH TAI SIR DDINBYCH  (Tudalennau 23 - 118) 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan y Rheolwr Cynllunio Datblygu a Pholisi (copi 
ynghlwm) i ofyn am gymeradwyaeth yr Aelodau i fabwysiadu drafft o 
Strategaeth Tai Sir Ddinbych ac i gymeradwyo'r Cynllun Gweithredu sy'n cyd-
fynd. 

 

8 POLISI TAI CYMUNEDOL - DIWEDDARIADAU AR GYFER 
CYMERADWYO  (Tudalennau 119 - 174) 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan y Swyddog Arweiniol, Tai Cymunedol (copi ynghlwm) 
i ofyn am gymeradwyaeth yr Aelodau i adolygu'r polisïau canlynol:  

(i) Polisi Dyrannu 
(ii) Polisi Ymddygiad Gwrthgymdeithasol, a 
(iii) Pholisi Tenantiaeth Rhagarweiniol. 

 

9 IS-DDEDDFAU CERBYDAU HACNI DIWYGIEDIG ARFAETHEDIG  
(Tudalennau 175 - 188) 

 I ystyried adroddiad gan Reolwr Gwarchod y Cyhoedd (copi ynghlwm) i ofyn 
am gymeradwyaeth yr Aelodau i'r is-ddeddfau diwygiedig mewn perthynas â 
cerbydau Hacni. 

 

10 RHAGLEN GWAITH I'R DYFODOL Y CYNGOR SIR  (Tudalennau 189 - 
192) 

 Ystyried rhaglen gwaith i’r dyfodol  y Cyngor (copi ynghlwm). 
 

 
AELODAETH 
 
Y Cynghorwyr 
 
Y Cynghorydd Gwyneth Kensler 
(Cadeirydd) 
 

Y Cynghorydd Ann Davies (Is-
Gadeirydd) 
 
 

Ian Armstrong 
Raymond Bartley 
Brian Blakeley 
Joan Butterfield 
Jeanette Chamberlain-Jones 
Bill Cowie 
Meirick Davies 
Richard Davies 
Stuart Davies 

Jason McLellan 
Barry Mellor 
Win Mullen-James 
Bob Murray 
Peter Owen 
Dewi Owens 
Merfyn Parry 
Paul Penlington 
Pete Prendergast 



 

 

Peter Duffy 
Peter Arnold Evans 
Hugh Evans 
Bobby Feeley 
Carys Guy 
Huw Hilditch-Roberts 
Martyn Holland 
Colin Hughes 
Rhys Hughes 
Hugh Irving 
Alice Jones 
Huw Jones 
Pat Jones 
Geraint Lloyd-Williams 
 

Arwel Roberts 
Anton Sampson 
Gareth Sandilands 
David Simmons 
Barbara Smith 
David Smith 
Bill Tasker 
Julian Thompson-Hill 
Joe Welch 
Cefyn Williams 
Cheryl Williams 
Eryl Williams 
Huw Williams 
 

 
COPIAU I’R: 
 
 
Y Wasg a’r Llyfrgelloedd 
Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned  



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Digwyddiadau wedi eu mynychu gan y Cadeirydd / Events attended by Chairman 

Dyddiad/Date  Digwyddiad/Event     Lleoliad/Location 

15.10.15  Ymweliad Ysgolion/School Visits    Rhuthun/Ruthin 
 
16.10.15  Seremoni ‘Topping Out’ Ceremony   Y Rhyl/Rhyl 
   Ysgol Uwchradd/High School 
 
16.10.15  Digwyddiad Estyniad/Adnewyddu Ysgol Bodnant Prestatyn 

Extension and Refurbishment Event at Bodnant 
   Community School      
 
16.10.15  Cinio Elusennol Maer Wrecsam/    Wrecsam/Wrexham 

Mayor of Wrexham’s Charity Dinner    
 
19.10.15  Seremoni Cyflwyno/Presentation Ceremony –   Dinbych/Denbigh 

 OBE i/to Aldham Robarts    
 
22.10.15  Cyfarfod Blynyddol NSPCC  AGM Meeting  Dinbych/Denbigh 
 
23.10.15  Lansiad Swyddogol/Official Launch    Y Rhyl/Rhyl 

- Royal British Legion Poppy Appeal  
(Is-Gadeirydd wedi mynychu/Vice-Chairman attended)    

 
29.10.15  Noson Wobrwyo Chwaraeon Sir Ddinbych  Llangollen 

Denbighshire Sports Awards Evening     
 
30.10.15  Cyflwyniad AHNE/AONB Presentation   Llangollen 
 
30.10.15  Diwrnod Agored a Chinio Myddleton College Open Day and Dinner 
          Dinbych/Denbigh 
 
01.11.15  Gwasanaeth Dinesig Maer Caerwys/   Caerwys 

Mayor of Caerwys’ Civic Service  
 
05.11.15  Lansiad Prosiect Llwybrau Tref gan Ken Skates AC Dinbych/Denbigh 

Launch of Town Trails Project by Ken Skates AM    
    

05.11.15  Ymweliad Ysgolion/School Visits    Rhuthun/Ruthin 
 
06.11.15  Agoriad o Estyniad yn Ysbyty Dinbych/   Dinbych/Denbigh 

Opening of extension at Denbigh Infirmary   
 
08.11.15  Sul y Cofio/Remembrance Sunday     Dinbych/Denbigh 
 Torchau Pabi hefyd wedi eu gosod gan Aelodau yn/Poppy Wreaths also laid by Members in: 
Llangollen, Rhuthun/Ruthin, Llanelwy/St Asaph, Rhuddlan, Bodelwyddan, Y Rhyl/Rhyl, Prestatyn,                                                          
Cefn Meiriadog, Trefnant, Llanfair D.C., Dyserth, Llandyrnog & Meliden 
 

Tudalen 5

Eitem Agenda 4



09.11.15  Croesawu Carl Sargent AC i Sir Ddinbcyh i agor Cynllun Gwarchodlu’r Glannau 
Gorllewin Y Rhyl/Welcomed Carl Sargent AM to Denbighshire to open West Rhyl 
Coastal Defence Scheme     Y Rhyl/Rhyl 

 
12.11.15  Seremoni Dinasyddiaeth/Citizenship Ceremony   Rhuthun/Ruthin 

(Is-Gadeirydd wedi mynychu/Vice-Chairman attended)   
 
13.11.15 Noson Elusennol Maer Rhuthun/Mayor of Ruthin’s Charity Evening  
   (Is-Gadeirydd wedi mynychu/Vice-Chairman attended) Rhuthun/Ruthin
   
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 6



 

CYNGOR SIR 
 
Cofnodion cyfarfod o’r Cyngor Sir a gynhaliwyd yn SIAMBR Y CYNGOR, NEUADD Y SIR, 
RHUTHUN LL15 1YN, Dydd Mercher, 7 Hydref 2015 am 10.00 am. 
 

YN BRESENNOL 
 
Y Cynghorwyr Ian Armstrong, Raymond Bartley, Brian Blakeley, Joan Butterfield, 
Jeanette Chamberlain-Jones, Ann Davies (Is-Gadeirydd), Meirick Davies, Stuart Davies, 
Hugh Evans, Bobby Feeley, Huw Hilditch-Roberts, Martyn Holland, Alice Jones, 
Huw Jones, Pat Jones, Gwyneth Kensler (Cadeirydd), Barry Mellor, Bob Murray, 
Peter Owen, Dewi Owens, Merfyn Parry, Arwel Roberts, Anton Sampson, 
Gareth Sandilands, David Simmons, Barbara Smith, David Smith, Bill Tasker, 
Julian Thompson-Hill, Joe Welch, Cefyn Williams, Cheryl Williams a/ac Huw Williams 
 
 

HEFYD YN BRESENNOL 

 

Prif Weithredwr (MM), Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol, Adnoddau Dynol a 

Democrataidd (GW), a Gweinyddwr Pwyllgorau (SLW) 

 

Simon Dean, Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro, BIPBC 

Dr Peter Higson OBE, Cadeirydd, BIPBC 

Bethan Jones, Cyfarwyddwr Ardal ar gyfer Conwy a Sir Ddinbych, BIPBC, a 

Geoff Ryall-Harvey, Prif Swyddog, Cyngor Iechyd Cymuned Gogledd Cymru 

 
 

 
1 YMDDIHEURIADAU  

 
Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb oddi wrth y Cynghorwr(wyr) 
Bill Cowie, Richard Davies, Carys Guy, Colin Hughes, Rhys Hughes, Hugh Irving, 
Jason McLellan, Win Mullen-James, Paul Penlington, Pete Prendergast a/ac 
Eryl Williams 
 

2 DATGANIADAU O GYSYLLTIAD  
 
Datganodd y Cynghorwyr Brian Blakeley, Ann Davies, Bobby Feeley, Jeanette 
Chamberlain Jones, Dewi Owens, Huw Hilditch-Roberts a Cefyn Williams i gyd 
gysylltiad personol 
 

3 MATERION BRYS FEL Y'U CYTUNWYD GAN Y CADEIRYDD  
 
Dim. 
 

 
Croesawodd y Cadeirydd bawb i gyfarfod Arbennig y Cyngor a diolchodd i gynrychiolwyr 
Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Betsi Cadwaladr (BIPBC) a Chyngor Iechyd Cymuned Gogledd 
Cymru (CICGC) am eu presenoldeb. 
 

Tudalen 7

Eitem Agenda 5



Cadarnhaodd y Cadeirydd fod y cwestiynau a gyflwynwyd gan Gynghorwyr eisoes wedi’u 
dosbarthu i gynrychiolwyr BIPBC a CICGC.  Byddai'r cyfarfod yn cael ei gynnal mewn 
dwy ran – rhan gyntaf, cwestiynau’r aelodau i gynrychiolwyr BIPBC a’r ail ran, 
cwestiynau’r aelodau i gynrychiolydd CICGC. 
 
4 MATERION CYFREDOL YN EFFEITHIO AR WASANAETHAU IECHYD YN SIR 

DDINBYCH A SUT Y GELLIR MYND I'R AFAEL Â'R RHAIN  
 
ADRAN 1 - BIPBC 

 
Cwestiwn 1 - Y Cynghorydd Dewi Owens 
“Pam mai eich opsiwn dewisol yw gwneud newidiadau dros dro i 
wasanaethau dan arweiniad Ymgynghorydd Obstetreg yn Ysbyty Glan Clwyd 
(YGC) pan rydych yn bwriadu agor a recriwtio Ymgynghorwyr i'r Ganolfan 
Dwys Ofal newydd enedigol isranbarthol newydd?  Pam y bydd heriau 
recriwtio’n wahanol?” 

 
Mynegodd Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro BIPBC ei ddiolchgarwch o gael y cyfle i 
fynychu cyfarfod y Cyngor.   
 
Esboniodd y Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro i’r Aelodau ei fod wedi bod yn ei swydd am 
gyfnod o bedwar mis yn unig a’i fod wedi’i blesio gyda’r staff ar draws Gogledd 
Cymru, a oedd yn darparu gofal rhagorol o ddydd i ddydd.  Byddai angen i'r 
sefydliad fod yn fwy allblyg ac roeddent yn edrych ymlaen at weithio’n agored ac yn 
adeiladol gyda'r Cyngor. 
 
Mewn ymateb i'r cwestiwn a gyflwynwyd gan y Cynghorydd Dewi Owens, 
cadarnhaodd y Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro fod y cyfnod Ymgynghori Cyhoeddus wedi 
dod i ben yn ddiweddar.  Roedd angen dadansoddi’r ymatebion a byddai'r 
adolygiad ar gael yn ddiweddarach yn y flwyddyn. 
 
Roedd y gwasanaethau mamolaeth wedi bod yn fater cymhleth, gyda phroblemau'n 
syth.  Bu cyfradd o tua 50% o swyddi gwag, a oedd yn peri risg, felly bu’n rhaid 
cyflogi Meddygon byrdymor.  Roedd trafodaethau wedi bod yn digwydd gyda staff 
clinigol ym mhob un o'r gwasanaethau a oedd wedi rhoi gwybod i'r Bwrdd am 
freuder y mwyafrif o wasanaethau. 
 
Yr Opsiwn a ffefrir oedd cael cyflenwadwyedd ar lefel ymarferol.  Ni fyddai'r 
newidiadau yn barhaol ond ar sail dros dro.  Eglurodd y Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro 
nad oedd yr ymgynghoriad wedi ei lywio gan reolaeth nac arian. 
 
 Un o'r pwyntiau ffocws yn y gwaith cynllunio yn y dyfodol fyddai cael gofal newydd 
enedigol ar safle Ysbyty Glan Clwyd, ac roedd y broses recriwtio wedi dechrau ar 
gyfer y gwasanaeth.  Byddai hyn yn rhan o'r strategaeth i annog staff i ddilyn eu 
gyrfa yng Ngogledd Cymru. 
 
Eglurodd Cadeirydd BIPBC i Aelodau nad oedd y mater o recriwtio wedi bod yn 
benodol i Ogledd Cymru, ond wedi bod yn broblem ledled y wlad. 
 
 

Tudalen 8



Cwestiwn 2 - y Cynghorydd Raymond Bartley 
“Pa sicrwydd allwch chi ei roi i ni na fydd cam-drin pobl hŷn ddiamddiffyn â 
Dementia yn digwydd eto, o ystyried yr hyn a ddigwyddodd yn ‘Tawel Fan’.  
Pa newidiadau ydych chi wedi’u gwneud o ganlyniad i'r adroddiad gan Donna 
Ochenden?  Beth yw'r sefyllfa ddiweddaraf mewn perthynas â phrosesau 
disgyblu mewnol?” 
 
Cytunodd y Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro bod y materion yn Tawel Fan wedi bod yn 
warthus.  Roedd mesurau arbennig bellach ar waith fel bod prosesau ansawdd yn 
sicrhau na fyddai’r problemau’n codi eto yn y dyfodol.  Byddai angen llawer iawn o 
waith i ddatblygu Gwasanaethau Iechyd Meddwl, gwaith a fyddai hefyd yn cynnwys 
yr Awdurdod Lleol.  Roedd y newidiadau a oedd eisoes wedi digwydd a'r rhai a 
oedd i ddigwydd yn gysylltiedig â'r adroddiad gan Donna Ochenden. 
 
Roedd BIPBC wedi comisiynu’r Gwasanaeth Cynghori ar Iechyd a Gofal 
Cymdeithasol (HASCAS), a oedd yn brofiadol dros ben wrth ymgymryd â materion 
o'r math hwn.  Roedd HASCAS wedi cael ei gomisiynu i gynnal ymchwiliad llawn ac 
i ddarparu ymatebion manwl i bryderon a godwyd gan deuluoedd y cleifion hynny yr 
effeithir arnynt.  Yr ail dasg ar gyfer HASCAS fyddai, lle y bo'n briodol, paratoi 
achosion disgyblu yn erbyn aelodau unigol o staff.  Byddai HASCAS yn cyfweld 
teuluoedd eto ynghyd â nifer o deuluoedd ychwanegol a oedd wedi dod ymlaen ers 
cwblhau adroddiad Donna Ochenden.   Cadarnhawyd bod nifer o staff wedi cael eu 
hatal, tra'n aros am gamau disgyblu, a bod nifer o staff wedi cael eu hadrodd i'r cyrff 
rheoleiddio.  Byddai ymchwiliad HASCAS, gobeithio, yn cael ei gwblhau erbyn 
dechrau 2016, ond ar hyn o bryd, ni ellid cadarnhau'r union ddyddiad. 
 
Roedd Donna Ochenden wedi ei chomisiynu i gynnal adolygiad pellach i ymchwilio i 
"beth oedd y sefydliad ehangach yn ei wybod am yr hyn a oedd wedi bod yn 
digwydd"?  
 
Roedd amser eto i'w gytuno gyda Donna Ochenden.  Byddai pryderon teuluoedd yn 
cael sylw cyn gynted ag y bo modd.  Roedd BIPBC yn sicrhau y byddai'r adolygiad 
yn cael ei gwblhau’n drylwyr. 
 
Cadarnhaodd Cadeirydd BIPBC fod y digwyddiadau yn Tawel Fan yn annerbyniol 
ac roedd camau'n cael eu cymryd i sicrhau na fyddai'n digwydd eto. 
 
 
Cwestiwn 3 - Y Cynghorydd Bobby Feeley. 
“Bydd Deddf Gofal Cymdeithasol a Lles yn dod i rym ym mis Ebrill 2016. 
Bydd hyn yn gofyn i Awdurdodau Lleol a Gofal Cymdeithasol weithio gyda'i 
gilydd.  Beth arall y gellir ei wneud i symud ymlaen gyda’r gwaith o 
integreiddio gwasanaethau iechyd a gofal cymdeithasol?  Sut ydych chi’n 
bwriadu sicrhau bod gan y Cyfarwyddwyr Ardal yr adnoddau angenrheidiol i 
weithredu ar y cynlluniau hyn?” 
 
Eglurodd y Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro bwysigrwydd integreiddio’r Bwrdd Iechyd a’r 
Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol fel cam mawr ymlaen.  Mae gan y Bwrdd Iechyd 
gyfrifoldeb i wella iechyd pobl ac roedd cyfathrebu â chymunedau yn hanfodol.  
Byddai rôl y Cyfarwyddwyr Ardal yn hanfodol i lywio'r gwasanaeth yn y dyfodol. 

Tudalen 9



 
Byddai'n rhaid ail-ymgysylltu â phobl yn y gymuned i ailadeiladu eu hyder yn y 
Gwasanaeth Iechyd. 
 
Roedd recriwtio yn her i'r sefydliad a chadarnhaodd y Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro eu 
bod yn cysylltu â'r holl staff, ynghyd ag ymgysylltu â'r cyhoedd.  Byddai cael 
consensws clinigol hefyd yn hanfodol bwysig er mwyn sicrhau'r canlyniadau gorau 
ar gyfer y boblogaeth. Y prif bryder oedd recriwtio meddygon canol.  Byddai enw da 
Betsi Cadwaladr yn ystyriaeth i ddarpar feddygon, felly, roedd yn rhaid gweithio i 
wella enw da'r Bwrdd ac i annog recriwtio staff, gan gynnwys nyrsys, i'r ardal. 
 
Ar y pwynt hwn, cadarnhaodd y Cyfarwyddwr Ardal fod sesiynau Cynllunio ar y Cyd 
gydag Awdurdodau Lleol yn cael eu cynnal yn gynnar ym mis Rhagfyr 2015 i 
ganfod sut y byddai'r Gwasanaeth Iechyd yn cael ei ddelweddu mewn 3 i 5 
mlynedd, a chadarnhaodd y byddai gweledigaeth a chynllun ar waith ymhen chwe 
mis.   
 
Eglurodd Cadeirydd BIPBC nad yw cynllun tair blynedd y Bwrdd Iechyd wedi cael ei 
gynhyrchu a gweledigaeth y Bwrdd fyddai datblygu ymdeimlad clir o gyfeiriad ar 
gyfer pob gwasanaeth, ond y prif gyfrifoldeb fyddai iechyd y boblogaeth. 
 
 
Cwestiwn 4 - Y Cynghorydd Ann Davies. 
“Allwn ni gael y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am ailddatblygiad Ysbyty Brenhinol 
Alexandra yn y Rhyl?  A fydd yn cael ei gyflwyno ar amser ac o fewn y 
gyllideb?” 
 
Eglurodd y Cyfarwyddwr Ardal y byddai prosiect Ysbyty Brenhinol Alexandra 
bellach yn dod o dan ei chylch gwaith hi.  Ers i Lywodraeth Cymru gymeradwyo’r 
amlinelliad strategol yn 2013, mae'r cynlluniau presennol yn fwy nag a ragwelwyd 
yn wreiddiol.  Roedd nifer o faterion a oedd yn effeithio ar y cynlluniau, er enghraifft: 

 Byddai rhywfaint o’r gofod adrannol angenrheidiol yn fwy na'r hyn a 
ragwelwyd yn wreiddiol 

 Roedd Ysbyty Brenhinol Alexandra yn adeilad rhestredig a datgelodd 
arolygon y byddai angen mwy o waith i uwchraddio'r ysbyty i safon fodern. 

 
O ystyried bod y cyfalaf wedi cynyddu'n sylweddol, byddai adolygiad yn cael ei 
gynnal i ganfod beth fyddai angen ei wneud.  Gan fod darparu Gwasanaeth Iechyd 
digonol yn hanfodol, byddai'r gwaith yn cael ei gynnal gyda'r Awdurdod Lleol i fynd 
i'r afael â materion.  Byddai gosod Uned Mân Anafiadau yn Ysbyty Brenhinol 
Alexandra hefyd yn cael ei archwilio. 
 
Eglurodd y Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro fod y prosiect yn Ysbyty Brenhinol Alexandra 
yn parhau i fod yn flaenoriaeth gan y Bwrdd Iechyd a Llywodraeth Cymru. 
 
 
Cwestiwn 5 - Y Cynghorydd Huw Hilditch-Roberts.  
“Gyda'r Cynllun 100 Diwrnod, beth sy'n mynd ymlaen ac ar ba gyflymder?  
Beth amdanom ni, fel Cynghorwyr, sut y gallwn ni helpu ein preswylwyr?   

Tudalen 10



Rydym wedi clywed am y cynlluniau 100 diwrnod, maent bellach wedi gorffen, 
beth sy'n digwydd rŵan?" 
 
Cadarnhaodd y Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro nad 100 diwrnod oedd swm dyddiau’r 
cynlluniau a oedd yn angenrheidiol i newid ac achub Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Betsi 
Cadwaladr.  Pwrpas y cynlluniau 100 diwrnod oedd annog pobl i wella ac ail-ennill 
hyder.  Byddai’n rhaid datblygu cynllun ar gyfer gweddill y flwyddyn ariannol.  
Byddai'n hanfodol i ddod yn well wrth gynllunio, ymgysylltu â’r cyhoedd, staff, 
rhanddeiliaid a sefydliadau partner, gan fod angen canlyniadau gwell a fyddai'n 
gweithio o fewn y lleoliadau ariannol.  Byddai hefyd angen i fwy o wasanaethau 
gael eu darparu'n lleol a byddai'r rhain yn cael eu darparu trwy edrych ar gynigion 
gofal eraill. 
 
 
Cwestiwn 6 - Y Cynghorydd Gareth Sandilands. 
“Beth yw eich cynlluniau ar gyfer gwasanaethau gofal sylfaenol ym 
Mhrestatyn o ystyried y cyhoeddiad diweddar gan Feddygfa Pendyffryn?  Pa 
gamau ydych chi’n bwriadu eu cymryd i atal hyn rhag digwydd mewn mannau 
eraill, yn enwedig gan fod meddyg teulu Seabank bellach wedi ymddiswyddo 
o'r feddygfa?” 
 
Cadarnhaodd y Cyfarwyddwr Ardal fod Grŵp Aelodau Ardal Prestatyn wedi cael 
gwybod am y materion sy’n ymwneud â Meddygfa Pendyffryn yr wythnos flaenorol.  
Byddai angen gofal sylfaenol amgen ar tua 22,500 o gleifion o fis Ebrill 2016. 
 
Roedd angen ystyried opsiynau ar gyfer y dyfodol ym Mhrestatyn gan fod yna 
faterion o ran denu meddygon teulu i'r ardal, oherwydd y cyfrifoldeb o brynu i mewn 
i feddygfa a’r mater o gydbwysedd gwaith/bywyd digonol, er enghraifft.  Nid oes 
unrhyw newidiadau i’w gwneud cyn 1 Ebrill 2016 ond ar ôl y dyddiad hwnnw, byddai 
mesurau wrth gefn ar waith ar gyfer pobl Prestatyn i gael eu gwasanaethu gan ofal 
sylfaenol. 
 
 Eglurodd y Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro i Aelodau bod meddygfeydd ar draws y DU yn 
ei chael yn anodd denu meddygon teulu newydd i recriwtio, ac nid oedd y broblem 
yn unigryw i Gymru. 
 
 
Cwestiwn 7 - Y Cynghorydd Joan Butterfield. 
“Pa gamau sy'n cael eu cymryd i fynd i'r afael â sefyllfa ariannol BIPBC?” 
 
Cadarnhaodd y Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro fod y Bwrdd Iechyd yn wynebu her 
ariannol.   Roedd symiau mawr o arian wedi ei wario yn cyflogi staff meddygol 
locwm ond, y ddau ddewis oedd talu am staff locwm neu ddod â’r gwasanaeth i 
ben.  Roedd y Bwrdd yn canolbwyntio ar fynd i'r afael â'r broblem ariannol.  Roedd 
arbedion i'w gwneud ac roedd rhaid i’r rhain fod yn arbedion na fyddai’n effeithio ar 
ofal cleifion.  Byddai hyn yn her sylweddol ond roedd yn rhaid sicrhau’r cydbwysedd 
rhwng darparu gofal o ansawdd uchel a bodloni’r cyfrifoldebau ariannol. 
 

Tudalen 11



Cafodd awgrym o newid enw'r Bwrdd ei gyflwyno i liniaru materion enw da.  Nid 
oedd newid enw’r Bwrdd Iechyd yn benderfyniad i’w wneud gan y Bwrdd, ond gan y 
Gweinidog. 
 
  
Cwestiwn 8 - Y Cynghorydd Alice Jones. 
“Mae eich trefniadau penodi ar sail dros dro, pa gynlluniau sydd ar waith i 
recriwtio Prif Swyddog Gweithredol parhaol?” 
 
Cadarnhaodd Cadeirydd BIPBC, o ran penodi Prif Weithredwr, y byddai'r mater yn 
cael ei ddatrys cyn gynted â phosibl. 
 
Cymerodd y Cynghorydd Jones y cyfle i godi’r materion canlynol yn ogystal: 

 Byddai cleifion a theuluoedd yn sefydlu enw da y Bwrdd, ond ar hyn o 
bryd, mae mwy o wasanaeth drwg na gwasanaeth da; 

 Gofynnodd y Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro am dystiolaeth o ddatganiad y 
Cynghorydd Jones o fwy o gleifion yn cael gofal drwg na gofal da.  

 O ran recriwtio meddygon teulu, pam ydych chi’n cynnig rhywbeth 
newydd?  Mae'r meddygon teulu yn y meddygon ym Mhrestatyn wedi 
bod yn rhybuddio y byddai hyn yn digwydd; 

 Ni allai'r Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro roi sylw ar yr hyn oedd wedi digwydd yn y 
gorffennol.  Fel y nodwyd yn flaenorol, cafwyd problemau o ran recriwtio 
mewn amrywiaeth eang o arbenigeddau ar draws y DU gyfan, nid dim ond 
yn benodol yng Ngogledd Cymru. 

 Mae'r polisi byw'n iach yn dda ond tuag at ddiwedd oes, bydd angen 
gofal ar bawb. 

 Bu farw 70% o bobl yn yr ysbyty ac nid oedd unrhyw bryderon ynghylch gofal 
lliniarol.   

 
 
Cwestiwn 9 - Y Cynghorydd Martyn Holland. 
“Roedd gan Unedau Mân Anafiadau sŵn traed isel am nad oedd pobl yn 
gwybod eu bod yno.  Beth mae BIPBC yn ei wneud ynghylch hyrwyddo 
gwasanaethau megis yr Unedau Mân Anafiadau, ac a yw’r unedau hynny’n 
cael eu staffio'n ddigonol?” 
 
Cadarnhaodd y Cyfarwyddwr Ardal fod yna dair Uned Mân Anafiadau sy'n 
cwmpasu ardal Conwy a Sir Ddinbych.  Mae un yn Nhreffynnon, sef Conwy a Sir 
Ddinbych at ddibenion iechyd, un yn Ninbych a'r fwyaf yn Llandudno.  Roedd yr 
adeilad newydd yn Llandudno wedi ei gwblhau yn ddiweddar, a byddai'n agor ar 26 
Hydref 2015. Nid oedd unrhyw faterion staffio yn yr Unedau gan eu bod i gyd wedi’u 
staffio'n llawn ac yn weithredol.   
 
Roedd defnydd o'r Unedau Mân Anafiadau wedi cynyddu ac roedd trafodaethau’n 
cael eu cynnal ynghylch a ddylai'r Unedau hefyd gynnwys mân anhwylderau, gan 
fod amserau aros yn yr Uned Mân Anafiadau yn llawer llai na’r amserau aros yn yr 
Adran Damweiniau ac Achosion Brys.  
 

Tudalen 12



Holodd y Cynghorydd Stuart Davies a fyddai'r Uned Mân Anafiadau yn Llangollen 
yn mynd yn ei flaen a chadarnhaodd y Cyfarwyddwr Ardal y byddai'n edrych i mewn 
i'r mater. 
 
 
Mynegodd y Cadeirydd, y Cynghorydd Gwyneth Kensler, ddiolchgarwch y Cyngor i 
gynrychiolwyr BIPBC am fynychu cyfarfod y Cyngor Arbennig gyda'u hesboniadau. 
 
 
Ar y pwynt hwn (12.05pm) cafwyd egwyl o 20 munud. 
 
Ailddechreuodd y cyfarfod am 12.25 pm 
 
 
ADRAN 2 - BIPBC 
 
Cwestiwn 1 - y Cynghorydd Raymond Bartley 
“Beth ydych chi'n ei wneud i sicrhau bod aelodau o'r Cyngor Iechyd 
Cymuned yn parhau i feithrin cydberthnasau cytûn gyda staff rheng flaen yn 
hytrach na chael eu gweld fel arolygwyr ‘clipfwrdd’?” 
 
Cadarnhaodd y Prif Swyddog, Cyngor Iechyd Cymuned Gogledd Cymru, ei fod yn 
un o’r Prif Swyddogion sydd wedi gwasanaethu hiraf mewn Cyngor Iechyd 
Cymuned. 
 
Cadarnhaodd fod newid yr enw i "Cyngor Iechyd Cymuned Gogledd Cymru" 
(CICGC) wedi ei roi ar waith i wahaniaethu eu hunain oddi wrth y Bwrdd Iechyd. 
 
Yn ystod y 12 mis blaenorol, cynhaliwyd 600 o ymweliadau, gan gynnwys nifer fwy 
o ymweliadau dirybudd yn ogystal ag ymweliadau â wardiau Iechyd Meddwl. 
Croesawyd gwirfoddolwyr CICGC gan staff i'r wardiau.  Bu CICGC yn ymweld â 
wardiau’n rheolaidd ac roedd staff yn ymwybodol o hynny.  Pe bai problemau wedi 
codi, byddai CICGC yn sicrhau yr ymdriniwyd â’r materion. 
 
“Bugwatch” oedd yr arolwg rheoli heintiau.  Roedd CICGC yn cydweithio gyda'r Tîm 
Rheoli Heintiau i hyrwyddo'r Arolwg "Bugwatch".  Roedd safonau yn uchel ond, yn 
anffodus, nid oeddent yn gyson.  Byddai arolwg "Bugwatch" ar waith i annog 
cysondeb. 
 
Ni chafodd staff a gwirfoddolwyr a fynychodd wardiau seiciatrig hyfforddiant 
penodol, ar hyn o bryd, ond cawsant hyfforddiant ar gyfer mynd i unedau diogel. 
 
Eglurwyd nad oedd gan CICGC yr awdurdod neu’r pŵer i gau wardiau pe gwelwyd 
eu bod yn tanberfformio neu'n anniogel.  Byddai CICGC yn atgyfeirio materion at y 
Gweinidog, gan mai ef yn unig oedd â’r pŵer i gau ward. 
 
Roedd CICGC yn annog y defnydd o'r iaith Gymraeg.  Mae nifer fawr o CICGC yn 
siarad Cymraeg.  Roedd ap wedi’i ddatblygu i gael ei gwblhau yn Gymraeg a gallai 
wedyn gael ei gyfieithu i’r Saesneg hefyd.  Roedd CICGC hefyd yn sicrhau bod 

Tudalen 13



gwasanaethau ac arwyddion yn yr uned babanod sâl yn Arrowe Park yn Gymraeg 
ac yn Saesneg, a byddai staff sy'n siarad Cymraeg ar gael hefyd. 
 
 
 
Cwestiwn 2 - Y Cynghorydd Ann Davies. 
“Hoffwn longyfarch aelodau'r CIC am eu holl waith caled.  Beth ydych chi'n ei 
wneud i ymgysylltu'n rhagweithiol gydag Aelodau o BIPBC o ran y pwrpas 
cyffredin o wella gofal iechyd yng Ngogledd Cymru?” 
 
Eglurodd y Prif Swyddog fod BIPBC a CICGC yn cyfarfod yn ffurfiol fel Byrddau 3-4 
gwaith y flwyddyn i drafod materion.  Yn anffurfiol, cyfarfu aelodau CICGC ag 
aelodau BIPBC yn rheolaidd.  Bu Cadeirydd a Phrif Swyddog CICGC hefyd yn 
siarad yn uniongyrchol â Phrif Weithredwr BIPBC yn ôl yr angen i ymdrin â 
materion.   Byddai llawer iawn o waith yn digwydd o ran y meddygfeydd ym 
Mhrestatyn gan fod gan CICGC ddyletswydd i ysgrifennu at bob claf dan sylw.   
 
 
Cwestiwn 3 - Y Cynghorydd Huw Hilditch-Roberts.  
“Mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn ymgynghori ar ei Bapur Gwyrdd 'Ein Iechyd, Ein 
Gwasanaeth Iechyd' ar hyn o bryd ac yn gofyn a yw'r model CIC presennol yn 
addas at y diben.  Beth yw eich barn?” 
 
Cadarnhaodd y Prif Swyddog fod gweithio ar y cyd â'r Bwrdd Iechyd wedi mynd 
rhagddo i ddelio â sefyllfaoedd penodol a gweithio er lles y cleifion.  
 
Roedd y CIC yn llais annibynnol o fewn y GIG, ac yn cynrychioli cleifion y GIG.  Nid 
oedd unrhyw gadarnhad wedi bod ar y gweill bod y model CIC wedi bod yn gwbl 
addas at y diben. 
 
Nid oedd gan y CIC unrhyw bŵer dros benodi Aelodau.  Awgrymodd y Prif 
Swyddog mai’r ffordd well ymlaen fyddai i gysylltu â Chynghorwyr a mudiadau 
gwirfoddol lleol. 
 
 
 
Yn y fan hon, mynegodd yr Aelod Arweiniol dros Ofal Cymdeithasol, Oedolion a 
Gwasanaethau Plant, y Cynghorydd Bobby Feeley, ei diolch i'r holl drafodaethau 
cynrychioladol gan BIPBC a CICGC. 
 
 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 1.10pm.  
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 14



 

CYNGOR SIR 
 
Cofnodion cyfarfod o’r Cyngor Sir a gynhaliwyd yn SIAMBR Y CYNGOR, NEUADD Y SIR, 
RHUTHUN  LL15 1YN, Dydd Mawrth, 20 Hydref 2015 am 10.00 am. 
 

YN BRESENNOL 
 
Y Cynghorwyr Raymond Bartley, Joan Butterfield, Bill Cowie, Ann Davies (Is-Gadeirydd), 
Meirick Davies, Richard Davies, Peter Duffy, Peter Arnold Evans, Hugh Evans, 
Bobby Feeley, Carys Guy, Colin Hughes, Rhys Hughes, Hugh Irving, Alice Jones, 
Huw Jones, Pat Jones, Gwyneth Kensler (Cadeirydd), Geraint Lloyd-Williams, 
Jason McLellan, Barry Mellor, Win Mullen-James, Bob Murray, Peter Owen, 
Merfyn Parry, Paul Penlington, Pete Prendergast, Arwel Roberts, Gareth Sandilands, 
David Simmons, Barbara Smith, David Smith, Julian Thompson-Hill, Joe Welch, 
Cefyn Williams, Eryl Williams a/ac Huw Williams 
 

HEFYD YN BRESENNOL 

 
Prif Weithredwr (MM), Prif Gyfreithiwr (SC), Rheolwr Tîm Cynllunio Strategol (LG), Tîm 

Datblygu Economaidd a Busnes a Rheolwr Prosiect (MH), Pennaeth Gwella Busnes a 

Moderneiddio (AS), Pennaeth Cynllunio a Gwarchod y Cyhoedd (GB), Rheolwr 

Gwasanaeth, Tîm Diogelu ac Adolygu (CT) a Gweinyddwr y Pwyllgor (SLW).  

 
 

Cyn dechrau cyfarfod y Cyngor, estynnodd y Cadeirydd, y Cynghorydd Gwyneth Kensler, 
gydymdeimlad â'r Cynghorydd Bill Tasker wedi iddo golli ei chwaer yn ddiweddar. 
 
1 YMDDIHEURIADAU  

 
Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb oddi wrth y Cynghorwr(wyr) 
Ian Armstrong, Brian Blakeley, Jeanette Chamberlain-Jones, Stuart Davies, 
Huw Hilditch-Roberts, Martyn Holland, Dewi Owens, Anton Sampson, Bill Tasker 
a/ac Cheryl Williams 
 

2 DATGANIADAU O GYSYLLTIAD  
 
Dim Datganiad o Gysylltiad. 
 

3 MATERION BRYS FEL Y CYTUNWYD ARNYNT GAN Y CADEIRYDD  
 
Dim. 
 

4 DYDDIADUR Y CADEIRYDD  
 
Roedd rhestr o ddigwyddiadau dinesig a gynhaliwyd ar gyfer y Cyngor gan y 
Cadeirydd a’r Is-Gadeirydd ar gyfer y cyfnod rhwng 13 Awst 2015 a 12 Hydref 2015 
wedi’i dosbarthu cyn y cyfarfod. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD derbyn y rhestr o ymrwymiadau dinesig a fynychwyd gan y 
Cadeirydd a'r Is-gadeirydd. 

Tudalen 15



 

5 COFNODION  
 
Cyflwynwyd cofnodion cyfarfod y Cyngor a gynhaliwyd ar 8 Medi 2015. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD y dylid cadarnhau cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 8 Medi 
2015 fel cofnod cywir ac y dylai’r Cadeirydd eu llofnodi. 
 
 

Yn y fan hon, cyflwynodd y Cadeirydd Meira Owen o HomeStart i roi esboniad byr i 
Aelodau am y gwaith a wnaed gan HomeStart o fewn y gymuned a'r teuluoedd y maent 
yn eu cynorthwyo. 
 
Diolchodd Meira Owen i Aelodau'r Cyngor am ganiatáu iddi gael cyfle i esbonio gwaith 
HomeStart. 
 
Roedd HomeStart yn elusen a oedd wedi cefnogi teuluoedd yn Sir Ddinbych am y 15 
mlynedd diwethaf. Roedd tîm o tua 100 o wirfoddolwyr o gymunedau amrywiol ar draws y 
sir ynghyd â 5 aelod o staff.  Y meini prawf i gael atgyfeiriad i HomeStart oedd bod angen 
i un plentyn yn y teulu fod o dan 11 oed.   
 
Yn dilyn y cyflwyniad gan Meira Owen, diolchodd y Cadeirydd a'r Cynghorydd Raymond 
Bartley i Meira a'i thîm am yr holl waith caled a wnaethant o fewn y cymunedau, a oedd 
yn amhrisiadwy. 
 
 
6 ADOLYGIAD PERFFORMIAD BLYNYDDOL 2014-15  

 
Cyflwynodd yr Aelod Arweiniol dros Gyllid ac Asedau, y Cynghorydd Julian 
Thompson-Hill, yr Adroddiad Perfformiad Blynyddol (a ddosbarthwyd yn flaenorol) 
i'r aelodau gymeradwyo fersiwn drafft o Adolygiad Perfformiad Blynyddol 2014/15, 
yn amodol ar newidiadau y cytunwyd arnynt, er mwyn iddo gael ei gyfieithu a’i 
gyhoeddi cyn 31 Hydref 2015. 
 
Eglurodd y Pennaeth Gwella Busnes a Moderneiddio fod Cynllun Corfforaethol y 
Cyngor 2012-2017 wedi gosod y cyfeiriad strategol ar gyfer y Cyngor a'i 
flaenoriaethau ar gyfer y cyfnod o bum mlynedd.  Mae manylion bwriad y Cyngor i 
gyflawni’r blaenoriaethau wedi eu nodi yn y Cynlluniau Gwasanaeth Blynyddol ac 
yn Nogfen Darparu Blynyddol y Cynllun Corfforaethol, ac mae cyfres o Gytundebau 
Canlyniad wedi eu cytuno arnynt gyda Llywodraeth Cymru.  
 
 Roedd yr Adolygiad Perfformiad Blynyddol yn darparu gwerthusiad ôl-syllol o 
lwyddiant y Cyngor wrth gyflawni yn erbyn y cynlluniau yma yn ystod 2014-15, a 
p’un ai yw’r Cyngor wedi llwyddo i gyflawni ei rwymedigaeth gogyfer â gwneud 
trefniadau i sicrhau gwelliannau parhaus yn llwyddiannus ai peidio. 
 
Roedd yr adroddiad wedi cael ei ddatblygu gan y Tîm Cynllunio Strategol a 
Pherfformiad, mewn ymgynghoriad â gwasanaethau eraill y Cyngor.   Roedd yr 
wybodaeth ynglŷn â pherfformiad a oedd wedi ei chynnwys yn y ddogfen wedi cael 
ei darparu gan y gwasanaethau, ac wedi cael eu dwyn ynghyd yn defnyddio system 

Tudalen 16



rheoli perfformiad Verto.  Ymgynghorwyd â’r Uwch Dîm Arweinyddiaeth cyn 
cyflwyno’r adroddiad ger bron y Cyngor Sir i’w gymeradwyo. 
 
Dyma oedd y cynllun mwyaf uchelgeisiol hyd yma a dyma oedd trydedd flwyddyn y 
cynllun.  Roedd cynnydd da wedi ei wneud ond roedd llawer o waith i'w wneud o 
hyd.  Roedd yr ystadegau yn yr adroddiad wedi’u diweddaru ar ddiwedd mis 
Mawrth 2015. 
 
Aeth y Pennaeth Gwella Busnes a Moderneiddio ymlaen gyda chyflwyniad 
PowerPoint ar gyfer Aelodau, a oedd yn cynnwys astudiaethau achos i roi 
enghreifftiau cliriach o'r gwaith yn mynd rhagddo. 
 
Roedd angen camau allweddol ar saith maes blaenoriaeth, a’r blaenoriaethau 
hynny oedd: 

 Datblygu Economaidd 

 Addysg 

 Ffyrdd 

 Pobl Ddiamddiffyn 

 Strydoedd Glân a Thaclus 

 Tai, a 

 Moderneiddio'r Cyngor 
 
 Eglurodd y Tîm Datblygu Economaidd a Busnes a’r Rheolwr Rhaglen y mentrau 
sy'n datblygu Rhaglen Gymuned Economaidd.  Pwysigrwydd band eang derbyniol 
a thelathrebu a chanolbwyntio ar fusnesau yn y defnydd o dechnoleg.  O fewn 
Gwefan CSDd, roedd tudalen i’w sefydlu a fyddai'n cynnwys gwybodaeth i 
fusnesau, a byddai'r dudalen yn cynnwys clipiau fideo byr, sydyn o fusnesau yn 
esbonio sut maent yn defnyddio technoleg i wella eu busnes.   Roedd cynlluniau i 
gael tua chwe chlip fideo gwahanol yn y Gymraeg a'r Saesneg. 
 
 Dangosodd y Tîm Datblygu Economaidd a Busnes a’r Rheolwr Rhaglen enghraifft 
o fersiwn drafft o fideo gan gwmni wedi'i leoli yn Ninbych. 
 
Yn dilyn y fideo, codwyd yr eitemau canlynol yn ystod trafodaeth: 

 Roedd cyflymder band eang mewn rhai ardaloedd gwledig yn fater parhaus.  
Cadarnhawyd bod BT a band eang cyflym iawn yn araf ond cyfrifoldeb 
Llywodraeth Cymru oedd cysylltu â BT i wella'r gwasanaeth.  Gofynnwyd i 
Gynghorwyr lobïo Llywodraeth Cymru  ar y mater.  Awgrymodd y Prif 
Weithredwr y dylai'r mater o gyflwyno band eang cyflym iawn gael ei alw i'r 
Pwyllgor Craffu.  Byddai'r pryderon hefyd yn cael eu codi gydag Aelodau'r 
Cynulliad.   

 Roedd clipiau fideo Cymraeg yn dasg anoddach gan fod prinder perchnogion 
busnes Cymraeg a oedd yn fodlon cymryd rhan i ffilmio fideo. 

 Yn dilyn ailstrwythuro'r Adran, cafwyd mwy o ryngweithio gydag Adrannau 
eraill.  Roedd Rheolwr Prosiect bellach ar waith, a'i dasg oedd rhoi’r holl 
wybodaeth at ei gilydd.  Roedd 16 o brosiectau ar hyn o bryd, a chynhaliwyd 
cyfarfodydd rheolaidd er mwyn sicrhau bod amserlenni ar gyfer prosiectau 
yn parhau ar y trywydd cywir. 

Tudalen 17



 Atgoffodd yr Arweinydd, y Cynghorydd Hugh Evans, yr Aelodau fod y 
ffigyrau a ddangosir hyd at ac yn cynnwys mis Mawrth 2015. Roedd y gwaith 
wedi ei gwblhau gyda thîm llai ynghyd ag integreiddio Adrannau eraill.  
Roedd cwmnïau y tu allan i'r Awdurdod Lleol bellach yn cael eu cysylltu, ac 
roedd dulliau cyfathrebu gyda hwy yn tyfu.  Roedd hyn wedi creu adnodd 
gyda'r Awdurdod Lleol ar dîm llai. 

 Y Cynllun fyddai cadw busnesau presennol.  Roedd gan y Cyfarwyddwr 
Corfforaethol:  Uchelgais Economaidd a Chymunedol, ynghyd â'r Arweinydd, 
amserlen i gyfarfod â'r 10 neu’r 15 o fusnesau gorau yn Sir Ddinbych er 
mwyn annog twf ac i gefnogi busnesau i dyfu a chyflogi nifer fwy o bobl.  
Roedd trydaneiddio’r rheilffordd hefyd yn fater trafod ar hyn o bryd. 

 Cytunodd yr Aelodau fod gan Aelodau'r Cynulliad hefyd ran i'w chwarae, 
oherwydd dylent fod yn atebol a chefnogi eu Hawdurdodau Lleol.  

 Cwestiynwyd materion o gyfraddau gostyngol ar gyfer busnesau llai, yn 
enwedig ar Strydoedd Fawr Tref Sir Ddinbych a hefyd ym Mharc Busnes 
Llanelwy.  Cadarnhaodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol: Uchelgais 
Economaidd a Chymunedol, y byddai'n coladu nodyn briffio o ba gynlluniau 
a gynigiodd cymorth gyda chyfraddau a’i ddosbarthu i Aelodau. 

 
Gwella Blaenoriaeth mewn Addysg ac Ansawdd Adeiladau Ysgolion  Roedd y 
myfyrwyr sy’n cyflawni eu potensial – roedd hyn yn "dderbyniol".  Bu gwelliant yn yr 
holl ddangosyddion cyrhaeddiad addysgol a nodwyd ar gyfer y canlyniad hwn yn y 
flwyddyn academaidd 2013/2014.  Y gwelliant lleiaf oedd ymysg disgyblion sy'n 
cyrraedd y dangosydd Pwnc Craidd yng Nghyfnod Allweddol 2. Dywedodd y 
Cynghorydd Carys Guy y gellid gwella addysg.  Roedd angen mwy o athrawon a 
chynorthwywyr addysgu.  Mynegodd y Prif Weithredwr bryder a nododd y gellid 
gwneud mwy o welliannau. 
 
Gwella ein Ffyrdd – roedd hyn yn "Dda".  Cafodd dangosyddion cyflwr y ffyrdd eu 
cymharu gyda grŵp o ardaloedd awdurdod lleol gwledig tebyg yng Nghymru.  Er 
gwaethaf gwelliant, ystyriwyd bod y prif ffyrdd (B) yn parhau i fod yn flaenoriaeth ar 
gyfer gwella.  Mae'r prif ffyrdd (A) a'r ffyrdd nad ydynt yn brif ffyrdd (C) wedi gwella. 
 
 
Gall pobl ddiamddiffyn fyw mor annibynnol â phosibl – roedd hyn yn "Dda". O fewn 
y canlyniad hwn, addawodd yr Awdurdod Lleol i leihau nifer yr oedolion a oedd 
angen gofal preswyl o 200 (yn gyffredinol), o 815 yn 2012 i 615 erbyn 2017. Y 
cyfanswm ar gyfer 2014/15 oedd 697 a ddangosodd bod cynnydd da yn cael ei 
wneud tuag at yr uchelgais. 
 
 
Caiff pobl ddiamddiffyn eu diogelu – roedd hyn yn "Rhagorol". 
 
 
Strydoedd Glân a Thaclus – creu amgylchedd deniadol i drigolion ac ymwelwyr fel 
ei gilydd – roedd hyn yn "Rhagorol” 
Yn y fan hon, cyflwynodd y Pennaeth Cynllunio a Gwarchod y Cyhoedd astudiaeth 
achos ynglŷn â safleoedd hyll.  
 
Effaith safleoedd hyll oedd: 

Tudalen 18



 Lles economaidd, cymdeithasol ac amgylcheddol y gymuned 

 Amwynder gweledol 

 Targedau ar gyfer ymddygiad gwrthgymdeithasol 

 Graffiti 

 Tipio anghyfreithlon 

 Fermin 

 Diogelwch, a 

 Gwerthoedd eiddo lleol. 
 

Roedd cronfa ddata wedi cael ei sefydlu o tua 100 o safleoedd hyll oedd yn 
amrywio o safleoedd â phroblem fawr i anheddau blêr unigol.  Dyfeisiwyd matrics 
sgorio i helpu i flaenoriaethu’r safleoedd gwaethaf.  Roedd y 20 uchaf yn 
canolbwyntio ar ymdrech a’r tu allan i'r 20 uchaf yn rhan o weithgareddau 
rheoleiddio o ddydd i ddydd. 
 
Roedd strwythur prosiect ac roedd Tîm y Prosiect yn cyfarfod bob yn ail fis: 

 Ystyried opsiynau gorfodaeth/ rheoliadol 

 Beth oedd y canlyniadau posibl ar gyfer pob safle, a  

 Defnyddio pwerau gorfodi i hwyluso canlyniad. 
 
Cafodd diweddariadau rheolaidd eu darparu i'r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol: 
Uchelgais Economaidd a Chymunedol, Aelod Arweiniol y Parth Cyhoeddus, a 
Grwpiau Ardal yr Aelodau. Cafodd diweddariadau cyfnodol eu darparu i Aelodau 
Lleol. 
  
 
Ategodd y Pennaeth Cynllunio a Gwarchod y Cyhoedd fod yr enghreifftiau a 
ddangosir yn yr astudiaeth achos o 2014. Gofynnodd aelodau i restr gyfoes gael ei 
dosbarthu iddynt er gwybodaeth.  Awgrymodd y Cadeirydd bod dolen i’r gronfa 
ddata yn cael ei dosbarthu i'r Aelodau a chytunwyd o blaid y weithred hon. 
 
Manteisiodd yr aelodau ar y cyfle i ddiolch i'r Pennaeth Cynllunio a Gwarchod y 
Cyhoedd a'i Dîm am eu holl waith. 
 
 
Ar y pwynt hwn (11.35 am) cafwyd egwyl o 20 munud. 
 
Ailddechreuodd y cyfarfod am 11.55 a.m. 
 
 
Parhaodd y Pennaeth Gwella Busnes a Moderneiddio gyda'r cyflwyniad. 
 
Sicrhau mynediad at dai o ansawdd da.  Byddai’r farchnad dai yn Sir Ddinbych yn 
cynnig amrywiaeth o fathau o dai a digon ohonynt i ddiwallu anghenion unigolion a 
theuluoedd – roedd hyn yn “Rhagorol”. 
 
Roedd y Strategaeth Dai ddiwygiedig ar y gweill.  Sefydlwyd Grŵp Llywio yr Aelod 
Arweiniol gyda chyfarfodydd rheolaidd yn cael eu cynnal i roi mewnbwn i'r 
Strategaeth sydd i ddod. 

Tudalen 19



 
Yn dilyn trafodaeth ddwys, codwyd y pwyntiau canlynol: 

 Mae'r mater arian a oedd wedi ei dynnu i lawr gan Landlordiaid 
Cymdeithasol dros y 9 mlynedd diwethaf yn cael ei gwestiynu, oherwydd 
roedd y mwyafrif o lety a ddarparwyd wedi bod yn fflatiau a/neu dai 
amlfeddiannaeth. Nid oedd y problemau hyn yn cael sylw a chytunodd y 
Cynghorwyr bod angen gofyn cwestiynau am nad oedd y landlordiaid 
cymdeithasol cofrestredig wedi bod yn perfformio'n arbennig o dda. 

 A oedd Aelodau’n cymryd rhan gyda'r Grŵp Llywio Aelod Arweiniol?  
Cadarnhawyd bod yr Aelodau'n gallu cynnig unrhyw sylwadau/cwestiynau i'r 
Grŵp Llywio Aelod Arweiniol ond ni allent fod yn bresennol fel aelodau o'r 
Grŵp.  Eglurwyd i'r Aelodau fod y Strategaeth Tai ar gyfer mynd i'r afael â 
strategaeth ar gyfer y sir gyfan ac nid dim ond landlordiaid cymdeithasol a 
thai fforddiadwy.  Byddai'r Strategaeth yn cael ei chyflwyno yn y Pwyllgor 
Craffu Cymunedau ac yna i'r Cyngor Llawn. 

 Roedd y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai (CRT) wedi eu tynnu oddi ar Raglen Briffo 
Gwaith i’r Dyfodol y Cyngor ar 2 Tachwedd, ond ystyriwyd barn y consensws 
a chytunwyd i adfer y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai i'r Rhaglen Gwaith i'r Dyfodol ar y 
dyddiad hwnnw. 

 
 
Moderneiddio’r Cyngor i fod yn effeithlon a gwella gwasanaethau i gwsmeriaid  
Bydd gwasanaethau’n parhau i ddatblygu a gwella – roedd hyn yn “Dda”.  Gweithlu 
mwy hyblyg ac effeithiol a gaiff ei gefnogi gan isadeiledd cost-effeithiol – roedd hyn 
yn “Dderbyniol”. 
 
Roedd y Cyngor yn gweithio i ddefnyddio technoleg i wella effeithlonrwydd a lleihau 
costau.  Cafwyd buddsoddiad mewn caledwedd a meddalwedd a fyddai'n galluogi i 
staff weithio mewn ffyrdd newydd er mwyn gwella profiad y cwsmer.  Un peth oedd 
gweithio hyblyg er mwyn galluogi gwaith o unrhyw leoliad.  Byddai hyn yn gwella 
manteision cydbwysedd gwaith/bywyd ac yn fwy economaidd o ran gofod swyddfa 
yn y pen draw. 
 
Eglurodd Rheolwr Gwasanaeth y Tîm Diogelu ac Adolygu, Colin Tucker, i Aelodau 
lwyddiant gweithio hyblyg yn ei Dîm.  Roedd modd i staff weithio ar ffurf "desg 
boeth" a oedd yn golygu llai o amser teithio.  Roedd modd i staff weithio ar eu 
cyfarpar wrth fynd i apwyntiadau ac roedd amseroedd apwyntiadau yn fwy ffafriol ar 
gyfer y plant a theuluoedd oherwydd gellid eu gweld ar ôl oriau ysgol.  
 
Byddai ansawdd ansoddol yn cael ei gyflwyno a byddai monitro perfformiad staff yn 
cael ei gynnal.  Yna byddai'r gudd-wybodaeth yn cael ei defnyddio i gynorthwyo 
gyda hyfforddiant, datblygu sgiliau newydd ac i ddod yn aelod mwy cymwys o staff. 
 
 
Diolchodd y Cadeirydd a'r Aelod Arweiniol dros Ofal Cymdeithasol, Oedolion a 
Gwasanaethau Plant, y Cynghorydd Bobby Feeley, i’r Pennaeth Gwella Busnes a 
Moderneiddio a'i Dîm am eu holl waith ar yr adroddiad a’r astudiaethau achos 
ardderchog. 
 

Tudalen 20



Cynigiwyd gan y Cynghorydd Julian Thompson-Hill, ac eiliwyd gan y Cynghorydd 
Barbara Smith. 
 
Cynhaliwyd pleidlais drwy godi dwylo – roedd pleidlais unfrydol o blaid yr 
argymhelliad. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD yn amodol ar unrhyw newidiadau cytûn, bod Aelodau yn 
cymeradwyo Adolygiad Perfformiad Blynyddol drafft 2014-15 er mwyn ei gyfieithu 
a’i gyhoeddi cyn 31 Hydref 2015. 

7 RHAGLEN GWAITH I'R DYFODOL Y CYNGOR SIR  
 
Cyflwynodd y Cadeirydd Raglen Gwaith i'r Dyfodol y Cyngor (dosbarthwyd eisoes). 
 
Cytunwyd yn gynharach yn y cyfarfod i adfer y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai i Friff y Cyngor a 
gynhelir ar 2 Tachwedd, 2015. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD yn amodol ar yr uchod y dylid cymeradwyo a nodi Rhaglen 
Gwaith i'r Dyfodol y Cyngor. 
 

 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 12.35pm.  
 

Tudalen 21



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



  

 
Adroddiad i’r:   Cyngor 
 
Dyddiad y Cyfarfod:  1 Rhagfyr 2015 
 
Aelod / Swyddog Arweiniol: Cyng Barbara Smith 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad: Angela Loftus, Rheolwr Cynllunio Strategol a 

Thai  
 
Teitl:     Strategaeth Tai Ddrafft Sir Ddinbych 
 
 

 
 
1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn?  
 
1.1 Cyflwyna’r adroddiad hwn Strategaeth Dai’r Cyngor a’r Cynllun Gweithredu sy’n cyd-

fynd â hi. Trafodwyd cynnig amlinellol am y dull a awgrymwyd o droi at y Strategaeth 
Dai ym Mriff y Cyngor ym mis Ebrill 2015. Mae crynodeb o’r Strategaeth Dai ddrafft 
ynghlwm fel Atodiad 1 ac mae’r Cynllun Gweithredu draft ynghlwm fel Atodiad 2. 
Gellir troi at y Strategaeth Dai ddrafft lawn trwy’r ddolen ganlynol:  
 
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Draft%20Housing%20Stra
tegy&ID=779&RPID=2006702&sch=doc&cat=13611&path=13611&LLL=1 
 
Cynrychiola gynnwys y Strategaeth Dai ddrafft  anterth ymgynghori gyda phartneriaid, 
gwaith gyda swyddogion ar draws y Cyngor a chyfraniad gan Aelodau. Mae 
Adroddiad yr Ymgynghoriad ynghlwm fel Atodiad 3 ac mae hwn yn crynhoi nodiadau 
o ddigwyddiadau, cyfarfodydd a sylwadau, pob un ohonynt wedi cyfrannu at 
ddatblygu’r Strategaeth. Mae’r templed Asesu Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb ynghlwm fel 
Atodiad 4. 
 

2. Beth yw’r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn?  
 
2.1 Pwrpas yr adroddiad hwn yw ceisio cymeradwyaeth yr Aelodau i fabwysiadu 

Strategaeth Dai ddrafft Sir Ddinbych a chymeradwyo’r Cynllun Gweithredu sy’n cyd-
fynd â hi. 

 
 
3. Beth yw’r Argymhellion? 
 
 Bod y Cyngor yn mabwysiadu Strategaeth Dai Sir Ddinbych gyda Chynllun 

Gweithredu drafft i gyd-fynd â hi. 
 
4. Manylion yr adroddiad. 

 
4.1 Mae sicrhau mynediad i dai ansawdd da yn flaenoriaeth gorfforaethol 

allweddol a bydd datblygu Strategaeth Dai glir a grymus yn darparu’r 
fframwaith ar gyfer holl swyddogaethau perthnasol y Cyngor i fynd i’r afael yn 
llwyddiannus â’r flaenoriaeth hon. Bwriad y Strategaeth Dai yw darparu 

Tudalen 23

Eitem Agenda 7

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Draft%20Housing%20Strategy&ID=779&RPID=2006702&sch=doc&cat=13611&path=13611&LLL=1
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Draft%20Housing%20Strategy&ID=779&RPID=2006702&sch=doc&cat=13611&path=13611&LLL=1


  

datganiad clir o weledigaeth a nodau’r Cyngor ar gyfer tai yn y Sir am y 5 
mlynedd nesaf.  
 

4.2 Mae’n gosod y prif heriau a materion sy’n effeithio ar y Sir a’r hyn y mae timau 
amrywiol y Cyngor yn bwriadu ei wneud i helpu goresgyn yr heriau hyn. Nod y 
Strategaeth Dai yw mynegi dull corfforaethol amlddisgyblaethol o droi at 
faterion tai a’u cyflawni yn y Sir, gan ddarparu’r fframwaith ar gyfer 
strategaethau, polisïau, gweithdrefnau ac ati manylach eraill a Chynlluniau 
Busnes perthnasol. Adlewyrcha’r Strategaeth sy’n dod i’r amlwg ystod lawn y 
materion a’r ddarpariaeth tai: y cyngor, landlordiaid cymdeithasol cofrestredig, 
rhent preifat a pherchnogion preswyl a’r angen i fynd i’r afael â phryderon 
Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru mewn perthynas â chyflawni tai fforddiadwy. 
 

4.3 Mae’r Strategaeth yn nodi 5 “Thema” sy’n feysydd blaenoriaeth ar gyfer 
gweithredu i fynd i’r afael â nhw ac mae’r rhain yn ffurfio craidd y Strategaeth. 
Dyma’r themâu: 
 

1. Mwy o gartrefi i fodloni angen a galw lleol 

2. Creu cyflenwad o gartrefi fforddiadwy 

3. Sicrhau cartrefi diogel ac iach 

4. Cartrefi a chefnogaeth i bobl ddiamddiffyn 

5. Hyrwyddo a chefnogi cymunedau 

 

4.4 Ar gyfer pob thema, nodir materion, heriau, canlyniadau dymunol yn glir, 
ynghyd â dangosyddion llwyddiant. Amlygir enghreifftiau o brosiectau cyfredol 
ac arfer da dan bob thema.  
 

4.5 Mae ystadegau manwl a gwybodaeth gefndirol ynghlwm fel dogfen i gyd-fynd 
â’r strategaeth ond mae crynodeb o’r wybodaeth gyd-destunol briodol sy’n 
berthnasol i bob thema wedi’i chynnwys yn y prif destun ar gyfer pob “thema”. 
Y nod yw cael Strategaeth glir, gryno, hawdd ei defnyddio a chynaliadwy. 
 

4.6 Bydd Cynllun Gweithredu’n cyd-fynd â’r Strategaeth. Rhagwelir mai dogfen 
fyw fydd hon, a fydd yn destun monitro ac adolygu rheolaidd gan Aelodau 
Arweiniol ac Archwilio perthnasol. Mae’r Cynllun Gweithredu’n gosod yn 
fanylach y camau gweithredu y bydd y timau perthnasol yn y Cyngor yn 
canolbwyntio arnynt a sut bydd yn gweithio gyda phartneriaid dros y 5 
mlynedd nesaf i helpu gwireddu gweledigaeth y Cyngor. Mae’n bwysig 
blaenoriaethu camau gweithredu a fydd yn cael yr effaith fwyaf gan fod yn 
realistig hefyd ynghylch beth fydd yn cael ei gyflawni gydag adnoddau 
cyfyngedig. Mae’r Cynllun Gweithredu wedi nodi 4 canlyniad mesuradwy y 
dylid eu cyflawni yn y tymor byr. 
 

4.7 Llywiwyd y gwaith ar y Strategaeth Dai sy’n dod i’r amlwg gan grŵp o Aelodau 
Arweiniol sy’n gyfrifol am faes tai yn eu portffolios. Roedd y grŵp yn cynnwys 
y Cynghorwyr David Smith (cynllunio, cartrefi gwag, gorfodaeth tai, tai sector 
preifat a grantiau) Julian Thompson-Hill (tai cyngor, cyllid a’r Cyfrif Refeniw 
Tai), Bobby Feeley (gofal ychwanegol, pobl hŷn, gofal cymdeithasol a lles), 
Hugh Irving (digartrefedd a sipsiwn a theithwyr) ac fe’i cadeiriwyd gan y 

Tudalen 24



  

Cynghorydd Barbara Smith, sy’n gyffredinol gyfrifol am gyflawni’r Strategaeth 
Dai. 
 

4.8 Ar ôl iddi gael ei mabwysiadu, bydd y Strategaeth Dai’n ddogfen gorfforaethol 
allweddol ac mae’r Tîm Cynllunio Strategol a Thai wedi bod yn gweithio gyda 
swyddogion ar draws y Cyngor i ddatblygu’r Strategaeth a’r Cynllun 
Gweithredu sy’n cyd-fynd â hi, gan gynnwys y rhai sy’n gyfrifol am ddatblygu 
cymunedol, datblygu’r gymdogaeth, cartrefi gwag, y sector rhent preifat, 
gorfodaeth, effeithlonrwydd ynni, anableddau a gofal ychwanegol, cefnogi 
pobl, amddiffyn y cyhoedd a chynllunio, digartrefedd a stoc tai. Mynychodd y 
swyddogion gyfarfod tîm Gwasanaethau Cymorth Cymunedol a chynhaliwyd 
gweithdy i staff o’r gwasanaethau tai, cynnal a chadw, digartrefedd ac 
ieuenctid ar 17 Awst, i sicrhau eu bod yn cael cyfrannu at y Strategaeth. 
Cyfarfu’r Tîm hefyd gyda Landlordiaid Cymdeithasol Cofrestredig sy’n 
weithgar yn y Sir. Adolygodd a thrafododd y Bwrdd Partneriaeth Strategol 
amlinelliad arfaethedig y Strategaeth ac mae wedi darparu cyfraniadau 
defnyddiol. Mae mewnbwn gan yr Uwch Dîm Arweinyddiaeth wedi helpu 
fframio’r Strategaeth a’r Cynllun Gweithredu sy’n cyd-fynd â hi. Bydd cyflawni’r 
Strategaeth yn llwyddiannus yn dibynnu ar gyfraniad nifer o wasanaethau’r 
Cyngor, ynghyd â phartneriaid allanol. 
 

4.9 Sefydlwyd Grŵp Tasg a Gorffen Tai Fforddiadwy mewn ymateb i bryderon 
ymhlith Aelodau am bolisi a chyflawni tai fforddiadwy. Dechreuodd y Grŵp 
Tasg a Gorffen gyfarfod ym mis Medi 2014 a chynhaliwyd cyfanswm o 7 
cyfarfod. Ystyriodd ystod o faterion tai fforddiadwy yn fanwl, a thrafodwyd yr 
argymhellion terfynol yn y Pwyllgor Archwilio Cymunedau ar 28 Mai 2015 ac 
fe’u cytunwyd gan y Cabinet ar 30 Mehefin 2015. Ymgorfforwyd yr 
argymhellion hyn yn y Strategaeth, yn bennaf dan Thema 2. 
 

Beth sy’n digwydd nesaf? 
 

4.10 Ar ôl ei mabwysiadu, bydd y Strategaeth Dai’n cael ei hailfformatio i 
adlewyrchu strategaethau corfforaethol eraill a bydd yn cael ei chyhoeddi ar 
wefan y Cyngor a bydd pob partner yn cael gwybod. Bydd diweddariadau’r 
cylchlythyr ar gyflawni’r Strategaeth Dai: Cynllun Gweithredu’n cael eu hanfon 
at bob Aelod ac at Uwch Dîm Arweinyddiaeth y Cyngor. Bydd diweddariadau 
ar gynnydd yn cael eu darparu i’r Bwrdd Partneriaethau Strategol 
amlasiantaethol hefyd. Bwriedir i’r Cynllun Gweithredu fod yn ddogfen fyw, a 
fydd yn cael ei diweddaru a’i hadolygu’n gyson. Bydd gan dri Phwyllgor 
Archwilio’r Cyngor rôl allweddol wrth fonitro’r Strategaeth ac yn bwysicach, 
symud ymlaen mewn perthynas â’r Cynllun Gweithredu, fel ag y bydd Aelodau 
Arweiniol. Gall materion lleol gael eu casglu gan Grwpiau Ardal Aelodau. 
 

  
5. Sut mae’r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at y Blaenoriaethau Corfforaethol? 
 
5.1 Bydd Strategaeth Dai Sir Ddinbych yn cyfrannu at y blaenoriaethau 

corfforaethol canlynol: 

 Datblygu’r economi leol – bydd datblygiad yn y Sir yn cyfrannu tuag at 
sicrhau cyfleoedd cyflogaeth lleol yn y sector adeiladu  

Tudalen 25



  

 Sicrhau mynediad i dai ansawdd da - bydd cyflawni’r camau arfaethedig 
yn llwyddiannus yn galluogi gwell darpariaeth o dai fforddiadwy a 
marchnad ychwanegol ar draws Sir Ddinbych i fodloni anghenion y Sir. 

 Diogelir pobl ddiamddiffyn a gallant fyw mor annibynnol â phosibl 
 
 
 
6. Faint fydd hyn yn ei gostio a sut y bydd yn effeithio ar wasanaethau 

eraill? 
 
6.1 Bydd cyflawni’r camau gweithredu a nodwyd yn llwyddiannus yn y Strategaeth 

Dai a’r Cynllun Gweithredu sy’n cydfynd â hi’n dibynnu ar ddull partneriaeth yn 
y Cyngor. 

 
7. Beth yw prif gasgliadau’r Asesiad o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb a 

gynhaliwyd am y penderfyniad? Dylid cynnwys templed yr Asesiad o 
Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb a gwblhawyd fel atodiad i’r adroddiad. 

 
7.1 Nod y Strategaeth Dai a’r Cynllun Gweithredu sy’n cydfynd â hi yw mynd i’r 

afael ag anghenion penodol y rhai gyda nodweddion gwarchodedig, fel oedran 
ac anabledd a rhagwelir y bydd mabwysiadu’r Strategaeth Dai a chyflawni’r 
Cynllun Gweithredu’n cael effaith gadarnhaol ar y grwpiau hyn. Ni ragwelir y 
bydd mabwysiadu’r Strategaeth yn cael effaith negyddol anghymesur ar 
unrhyw un o’r nodweddion gwarchodedig, ond bydd y Strategaeth Dai a’r 
Cynllun Gweithredu sy’n cydfynd â hi’n cael ei monitro a’i hadolygu’n gyson a 
bydd diwygiadau’n cael eu gwneud os oes angen. Mae’r templed Asesiad o 
Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb ynghlwm fel Atodiad 4.  

 
8. Pa ymgynghoriadau a gynhaliwyd gydag Archwilio ac eraill?  
 
8.1 Adolygodd y Pwyllgor Archwilio Cymunedau argymhellion y Grŵp Tasg a 

Gorffen Tai Fforddiadwy. Adlewyrchwyd yr argymhellion hyn yn y Strategaeth 
Dai. Adolygwyd y Strategaeth Dai ddrafft yn dilyn hynny gan y Pwyllgor 
Archwilio Cymunedau ar 5 Tachwedd a chynhwysir y prif bwyntiau a godwyd 
yn Adroddiad yr Ymgynghoriad sydd ynghlwm fel Atodiad 3. Mynegodd y 
Pwyllgor gefnogaeth gyffredinol ar gyfer y Strategaeth a’r angen i symud 
cyflawniad y canlyniadau yn ei flaen. Penderfynwyd argymell y dylai’r Cyngor 
gymeradwyo a mabwysiadu’r Strategaeth Dai Ddrafft a’r Cynllun Gweithredu 
cysylltiedig a dylai Archwilio fonitro cyflawniad canlyniadau’r Strategaeth yn 
gyfnodol. 

 
9. Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid 

 
9.1 Bydd rhaid asesu goblygiadau cost llawn y cynigion penodol fel rhan o’r 

Strategaeth i sicrhau eu bod yn fforddiadwy ac yn gynaliadwy. 
 

 
10. Pa risgiau sydd ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i’w lleihau? 
 

Tudalen 26



  

10.1 Mae cyflawni’r Strategaeth Dai’n flaenoriaeth allweddol i’r Cyngor gan 
gynnwys gwella’r gwaith o gyflawni tai fforddiadwy fel sy’n ofynnol gan 
Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru. Byddai methu symud y Strategaeth yn ei blaen yn 
colli’r cyfle i ddarparu dull clir o droi at faterion tai yn y Sir ac ni fyddai gan y 
Cyngor ffordd o ddangos i Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru yr eir i’r afael â’i bryderon 
ar gyflawni tai fforddiadwy.   
 
 
 

11. Pŵer i wneud y Penderfyniad 
 

Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000.  Mae’r Deddfau Tai canlynol yn gosod rôl y 
Cyngor mewn perthynas â gweithredu’r farchnad dai a llunio strategaeth dai: 

 
o Deddf Tai 1985 (A8) - gofyn i Awdurdodau Lleol ystyried 

amodau/anghenion tai yn eu hardal 
 

o Deddf Tai 2004 (A8) - gofyn i Awdurdodau Lleol gadw adolygu 
amodau tai yn y tai sector preifat yn eu hardal  

 
o Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2003 (A87) - gofyn i Awdurdodau Lleol 

lunio strategaeth dai leol 
 

 

Tudalen 27



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

 
 

 

Denbighshire County Council         
Housing Strategy 2016 – 2021 

Summary 

       Appendix 1

Tudalen 29



 

2 | P a g e  
 

Local Context 
Population & Households 

94.5k  41k  1.1k 
2013 mid-year population 

estimates for 
Denbighshire 

2013 mid-year estimate 
of Denbighshire 

households 

Forecasted increase in 
households 2015-2020 

£23.8k £1.5k 21%  
Median household 

income in Denbighshire 
2014 

Decrease in median 
household income since 

2007 

Population in 
Denbighshire aged 65 

and over 

24%  64% 14% 

Population in 
Denbighshire with an 

activity limiting illness or 
disability 

Increase in full 
homelessness decisions 

awarded in 2014/15 from 
2013/14 

14% of Denbighshire is 
classed as being in top 
10 of the most deprived 
areas in Wales  (Welsh 

Index of Multiple 
Deprivation - WIMD) 

Housing Market 

176  50%  1.1k 
New properties 

completed 2014/15 up 
17 on 2013/14 

Population cannot afford 
a 2 bedroom open market 

house in Denbighshire 

Forecasted increase in 
households 2015-2020 

 37%  32%  732 

Households in 
Denbighshire who own 
their homes outright 

Households in own 
properties with a 

mortgage 

Properties purchased 
under Right-to-Buy 

between 2000 and 2014. 

Rental Market (Based on 2011 Census) 

 3.2k  2k  6.4k 
Households in 

Denbighshire renting 
from council in 2011 

(decrease of 0.5k from 
2001) 

Households renting from 
housing associations in 
(increase of 0.5k from 

2001) 

Households renting in the 
private sector (increase of 

1.5k from 2001) 

  

Tudalen 30



 

3 | P a g e  
 

Why do we need a Housing Strategy? 
 
Ensuring access to good quality housing is a key priority for the Council and 
fundamental to the well-being of Denbighshire’s residents. The Housing 
Strategy provides the framework for addressing this. 
The intention of the Housing Strategy is to provide a clear statement of the 
Council’s vision and aims for housing in the County for the next 5 years. It 
sets out the key challenges and issues affecting the County and what the 
Council intends to do to help overcome these challenges.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Strategy has been developed under five key themes with associated outcomes 
and will be accompanied by a more detailed Delivery Plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Underlying principles: 
 

• Supporting the local economy – through house building and 
regeneration 

• Reducing inequalities – by aiming to ensure that decent homes 
are available for all and vulnerable people are supported 

• Engagement and involvement – with  partners to help to 
collectively deliver decent homes and with residents in the 
regeneration of their neighbourhoods 

• Sustainability -  supporting a sustainable housing market and 
delivering sustainable communities 

• Welsh Language & culture – consideration & promotion in new 
development 

• Monitoring & review – an annual review report will be produced 
to outline progress and any changes to agreed actions 

Our strategic vision: 
 

“Everyone is supported with pride to live in homes that meet their 
needs, within the vibrant and sustainable communities 

Denbighshire aspires to.” 

Our key themes: 
1. More homes to meet local need and demand 
2. Creating a supply of affordable homes 
3. Ensuring safe and healthy homes 
4. Homes and support for vulnerable people 
5. Promoting and supporting communities 

 
 

Tudalen 31



 

4 | P a g e  
 

• Outcome focussed – the strategy will focus on the delivery of the 
identified outcomes 

Tudalen 32



 

5 | P a g e  
 

 

Theme One: More Homes to Meet Local Need and Demand 

 
We need to ensure that sufficient suitable homes are provided to meet local 
needs and demands. Housing need and demand is largely identified through 
the statutory Local Housing Market Assessment (LHMA). This must be carried 
out every two years from 2016 onwards. This enables the strategic planning 
of housing development/supply across the County. Increasing the supply of 
homes includes all types of accommodation:  

• open market housing and low cost ownership schemes, 
• private, intermediate and social rented accommodation 
• gypsy and traveller pitches.  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Issues and Challenges 
 New Homes 

• A two yearly completed Local Housing Market Assessment is a 
statutory requirement  

• Population profile of older people is increasing currently 21% of 
Denbighshire’s residents are aged 65 or over 

• Expected increase in number of households and consequently a 
need for approximately 1000 new dwellings to be built by 2020.  

• Decrease in in the number of new build dwellings since 2007 
• Low levels of planning applications for residential development 
• Delivering the allocated housing sites within the Local Development 

Plan. 
• Decrease in volume of house sales in the county since 2007 and 

static house prices.  
 Empty Homes 

• Approximately 600 residential empty properties in Denbighshire 

Our desired outcomes: 
 
1. An increased supply of new homes of all types and tenures to meet 

the needs and demands of households and communities in 
Denbighshire as defined by the two-yearly Local Housing Market 
Assessment, which provides current need and demand data for the 
county. 

2. Better use of the existing housing stock by continuing to target 
empty homes across the county. 

3. Gypsies and Travellers accommodation needs are identified and 
addressed 
 

 

Tudalen 33



 

6 | P a g e  
 

• Difficulty in engaging owners to bring empty homes back into use 
• Complexity of legislation and the risk of additional costs to the 

council  
  
 Gypsy & Travellers 

• The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 makes its mandatory for all councils 
to carry out an assessment of Gypsy & Traveller accommodation 
needs, and take action on the findings. 

• We have regular unauthorised Gypsy & Traveller encampments 
although generally small, indicating there is some need 

• We have no authorised Gypsy & Traveller sites in the County 

  

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1   
 
 
 

Key Actions 
1  Develop Site Development Briefs , Supplementary Planning 

Guidance and Site Directories to provide clarity and information 
about allocated housing sites for developers and investors 

2  Develop housing need and demand data to produce an up to 
date Local Housing Market Assessment 

3  Review Local Development Plan housing policies and land 
allocations  

4  Investigate the use of a reduced commencement period on 
planning conditions, to discourage land-banking 

5  Take action to bring forward stalled sites in the County 
6  Produce an Infrastructure Plan for Denbighshire to identify and 

address infrastructure issues  
7  Update and implement the Empty Homes Delivery Plan and 

continue to innovate to bring the dwellings back into use 
8  Undertake an up-to-date Gypsy & Traveller accommodation 

needs assessment 
 

 

Tudalen 34



 

7 | P a g e  
 

 

Theme Two: Creating a Supply of Affordable Homes 
 
A significant proportion of Denbighshire’s residents are unable to afford 
general market housing (either for sale or rent). We need to ensure that the 
supply of affordable housing is improved to meet these needs.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

Issues & Challenges 
Affordable Housing 
• Personal income levels in Denbighshire have fallen in recent years, 

with severe deprivation identified in areas of Rhyl, Denbigh and 
Henllan 

• Levels of affordable housing development have fallen 
• Significant gap between affordable housing need and supply 
• Affordable Housing provision through planning obligation has 

reduced to 10% 
• Financial challenges being faced by the Council and partners 
• Low turnover of Council/Housing Association stock 
• Welfare Reform changes combined with a changing population 

profile necessitating a need to build smaller properties 
• Public perception of affordable housing 
Funding and Registered Social Landlords  
• Lack of financial certainty for Council & Housing Associations 

partners 
• Reduction in public funding for affordable housing through Social 

Housing Grant (accessible to Housing Associations only) 
• Increasing costs for building 
• A limited range of partners able to access funding which the Council 

currently work with 
Affordable Housing Register 
• Negative perception of affordable housing  
• Lack of awareness of different affordable housing schemes 
• Complexity of application process 

 Our desired outcomes: 
 
1. Improved supply of affordable housing of all types and tenures  

across the county 
2. Working with partners to maximise affordable housing 

development 
3. An increase in applicants registered on the affordable housing 

register 
 

 
 

Tudalen 35



 

8 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Key Actions 
1  Establish an affordable housing delivery / investment programme  
2  Review of Local Development Plan policies such as affordable 

housing in rural areas and commuted sums 
3  Undertake a review of public landholdings, working with partners, 

to identify suitability and availability for affordable housing 
4  Investigate alternative mechanisms for the funding and delivery of 

affordable housing 
5  Investigate developing a council protocol for the disposal of 

council land and property assets to consider best value 
6  Active promotion of the affordable housing register to increase 

applications, as more applicants will evidence demand to 
developers. Review registration process 

7  Publicise successful affordable housing schemes 

 
 

Tudalen 36



 

9 | P a g e  
 

 

Theme Three: Ensuring Safe & Healthy Homes 
 
We need to ensure that our residents are able to live in safe and healthy 
homes.  This needs to be addressed across all types of accommodation: 
affordable housing, private rented accommodation and owner occupied 
homes including mobile home sites. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Issues & Challenges 
 Welsh Housing Quality Standards 
• 4% of Council properties have not been renovated to Welsh Housing 

Quality Standards 
• Maintenance of homes to the recommended standards 

 Enforcement & Licensing 
• Challenges in developing good relationships with landlords 
• Establishing an accurate database of landlords in the County.  
• Poor quality multi-occupation dwellings (particularly in the north of the 

county) 
• Improving the quality of private rented sector stock 

 Planning 
• Response to the changing demographic of the county (smaller 

household size, disabilities and increasing older person profile) 
 Regeneration 

• Large scale regeneration projects such as Rhyl West End 
 Private Sector Grant Scheme 

• Capital grant schemes reducing 

Our desired outcomes: 
 

1. Council and Housing Association accommodation is brought up 
to and is maintained at the Welsh Housing Quality Standard 
(WHQS) 

2. Improved standards in the Private Rented Sector 
3. Accommodation will be of good quality and will be adaptable to 

residents changing needs 
4. Limited financial assistance to support the Private Housing Sector 
5. Properties will be more energy efficient helping the environment 

and improving housing quality 
6. Controls over the use of holiday caravan parks for residential 

purposes are improved 
 

 

Tudalen 37



 

10 | P a g e  
 

• Need to introduce more innovative schemes including offering 
different loans 

• Raising awareness on what is available  
Energy Efficiency 

• Challenges with securing funding to support projects  
• No dedicated capital budget 
• The reduction of fuel poverty requires funding for energy efficiency 

 Caravans 
• Occupation of holiday caravans as permanent homes 
• Some are longstanding and/or include unsuitable accommodation 
• Pressure on local public services as they are not being funded 

Key Actions 
1. Welsh Quality Housing Standards are achieved by all social 

housing providers in Denbighshire 
2. Implement Landlord Licensing Scheme  
3. Develop and implement an Energy Conservation Delivery Plan 
4. Establish a priority database of people affected by fuel poverty 
5. Develop a Private Rented Sector Action Plan 
6. Establish relevant data of all caravan parks within the county 
7. Develop a regulatory procedure for holiday caravans 
8. Sharing intelligence across departments 

 
 

Tudalen 38



 

11 | P a g e  
 

 

Theme Four: Homes & Support for Vulnerable People 
 
This theme aims to address the issues surrounding vulnerable people, their 
housing choices and what is needed and offered in housing related support. 
In this theme we also concentrate on the homelessness services that are 
available and what changes need to be taken, in light of the Housing (Wales) 
Act 2014 and the Renting Homes (Wales) Bill, which is currently being 
debated in Welsh Government and expected to be passed as legislation in 
early 2016.  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Issues & Challenges 
Accommodation for older people (Supported Independent Living, 
Extra Care, Residential & Nursing Homes) 

• There is now more emphasis on people retaining independence by 
remaining in their own homes.  

• Older people require a greater range of housing options to meet 
their varied needs. 

 Vulnerable Adults accommodation & placements 
• Lack of availability of community living schemes 
• Reactive housing options rather than proactive 
• Financial insecurity for supporting organisations, due to the 

reduction the Supporting People budget  

Our desired outcomes: 
 

1. A range of housing choices for older people 
2. A range of housing choices and support placements for 

younger people 
3. Vulnerable people are assisted to lead independent lives in 

appropriate accommodation to meet their needs 
4. Suitable accommodation options are available for the 

prevention of homelessness 
5. Those that are declared homeless are provided with 

appropriate temporary accommodation and assisted in finding 
suitable long term accommodation 

6. A Common Housing Waiting List (Single Access Route to Housing 
SARTH) is introduced to simplify the accommodation process for 
those in housing need 

7. Fuel poverty is targeted and affected residents are assisted 
 

 

Tudalen 39



 

12 | P a g e  
 

• Need for varied work and care placements for vulnerable adults of 
all ages 

 Supporting People  
• Financial insecurity for the organisations providing advice and 

support  
• Welfare Reform challenges such as introduction of the benefit cap, 

and Universal Credit 
• Increase in personal debt levels 

 Homelessness 
• Availability and suitability of emergency accommodation 
• Additional duties on placed on local authorities through the 

Housing (Wales) Act 2014, regarding homelessness prevention 
measures 

• Shortage of appropriate affordable housing across all tenures 
 SARTH 

• IT capability to manage new allocations method 
• Staff resources to manage triage system to begin process 

 Fuel Poverty 
• Targeting people affected by fuel poverty 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Key Actions 
1. Two Extra Care Facilities in development by 2017 
2. Review Supported Independent Living provision and demand 
3. Investigate the formation of a social lettings agency 
4. Investigate options for homelessness emergency accommodation 
5. Develop a pre-move programme for vulnerable people to 

maximise successful placements 
6. Implement SARTH by December 2016 

Tudalen 40



 

13 | P a g e  
 

 

Theme Five: Promoting and Supporting Communities 
 
Housing has a key role in creating and maintaining sustainable local 
communities. We will be working with housing and third sector partners to 
develop communities where people want to live and work, which have a 
sense of ownership by the people who live there.  
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Issues & Challenges  
 Neighbourhood Development 
• Contacting and  involving hard to reach groups, such as young people  
• Neighbourhood disputes between residents 
• Keeping resident’s interest in projects and helping them take ownership of 

them. 
 Eyesore Sites  

• Viability of sustainable schemes 
• Challenges in engaging owners to enable a solution to be found. 
• Council Estate Regeneration & Rhyl West End Regeneration 
• Capacity & ability of residents to participate  
• Achieving commitment from residents and sustaining the projects without 

external involvement  
• Prioritisation of areas to be regenerated 
• Partnership working  

 
 
 
 

Our desired outcomes: 
 

1. Neighbourhood based activities help people remain safe and 
independent 

2. Sustainable communities are maintained through innovative 
‘eyesore’ site projects with partners 

3. Council housing estates are regenerated to help create and sustain 
desirable neighbourhoods  

4. Community initiatives are supported and maintained with partner 
organisations  

 
 

Key Actions 
1. Development of Neighbourhood Engagement Strategy 
2. Prioritisation of the areas to be regenerated 
3. Building a business case for funding from the Housing Revenue 

Account  
4. Review Resident Inclusion Strategy 
5. Tackling housing sites and empty properties  

 
 

Tudalen 41



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Appendix 2 
 
 

  

Denbighshire County Council 

Denbighshire’s Housing 
Strategy 
Draft Action Plan 

Strategic Planning & Housing Strategy Team 
      
 

T
udalen 43



 

 

Denbighshire’s Housing Strategy: Draft Action Plan  
 
Introduction 

 
The Housing Strategy is the amalgamation of all of our 
actions concerned with housing and housing related 
support. As a result the implementation of the Strategy 
will be undertaken by several different departments, in 
many instances working with partner organisations.  
 

The relevant actions will be included in each service 
business plans as appropriate and will be monitored by 
the relevant Lead Members and Heads of Service. The 
overall lead on the Housing Strategy is the Lead Member 
for Housing.  The Housing Strategy is based around 5 key 
themes: 
 

1. More homes to meet local need and demand 
2. Creating a supply of affordable homes 
3. Ensuring safe and healthy homes 
4. Homes and support for vulnerable people 
5. Promoting and supporting communities 

 

The Action Plan sets out the key actions required to 
deliver the desired outcomes for each key Theme. For 
each Action we have identified outcomes & benefits, 
potential resources and partners required to deliver the 
action, indicative timescales and the Lead Member and 
Head of Service responsible for ensuring the action is 
delivered. 
 

The key outcomes for the Council over the next 12 
months are:  

• We will increase our social housing stock by a 
minimum of 7 units over the next 12 months 

• We will provide an improved standard of 
temporary homeless accommodation solutions, 
from within DCC housing stock and/or private 
options 

• We will bring a minimum of 5 empty properties 
back into use as affordable housing 

• By working with our Council tenants we will 
develop a coherent resourced action plan with 
timescales to improve the neighbourhoods in 
which they live 
  

Regular newsletter updates on the delivery of the Housing 
Strategy: Action Plan will be sent to all Council Members, 
Senior Leadership Team (SLT) and relevant partners. 
Updates on progress will also be provided to the multi-
agency Strategic Partnerships Board. The intention is for 
this Action Plan to be a living document, regularly 
updated and reviewed. The Council’s 3 Scrutiny 
Committees will have an important role in monitoring the 
Strategy and more importantly progress in relation to the 
Action Plan, along with Lead Members and Member Area 
Groups for more local issues. 
 

We continue to welcome comments and suggestions to 
improve the Strategy and enhance delivery over the next 
five years. 
 1 | P a g e  D e n b i g h s h i r e ’ s  H o u s i n g  S t r a t e g y  A c t i o n  P l a n  2 0 1 6  -  2 0 2 1  

 

T
udalen 44



 
 

Ref Action Timescale Outcomes & benefits Resource 
requirements 

Identified 
partners  Target 

Lead 
Member/ 
Head of 
Service 

THEME 1: More homes to meet local need and demand  

1.1 Develop site development 
briefs for key development 
sites allocated for housing in 
the LDP 

Short 
term  

This will ensure that detailed 
site information and guidance is 
readily available to potential 
developers. This will help to 
speed up the planning process 
and accelerate delivery of 
housing on sites allocated in the 
LDP. 

LDP Members 
Steering Group 
 
Officer time 

Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 
Development 
Management 
Finance, 
Assets and 
Housing 
Service, 
Registered 
Social 
Landlords, 
Landowners, 
Developers 

Complete 
work 
programme  
by 
December 
2016 
(individual 
Briefs will be 
adopted in 
this 
timescale) 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Graham 
Boase 

1.2 Develop appropriate 
Supplementary Planning 
Guidance  

Short 
term  

This will ensure that appropriate 
and clear guidance is readily 
available to potential 
developers. This will help to 
speed up the planning process 
and contribute to accelerated 
delivery of housing on sites 
allocated in the LDP. 

LDP Members 
Steering Group 
 
Officer time 

Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 
Development 
Management 
 

Complete 
work 
programme  
by 
December 
2016 
(individual 
SPGs will be 
adopted in 
this 
timescale) 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Graham 
Boase 

2 | P a g e  D e n b i g h s h i r e ’ s  H o u s i n g  S t r a t e g y  A c t i o n  P l a n  2 0 1 6  -  2 0 2 1  
 

T
udalen 45



 
 

Ref Action Timescale Outcomes & benefits Resource 
requirements 

Identified 
partners  Target 

Lead 
Member/ 
Head of 
Service 

1.3 To develop and publicise a 
sites prospectus to promote 
allocated housing sites across 
the County 
 

Short 
term 

This will ensure that detailed 
site information is readily 
available to developers 
(including Registered Social 
Landlords). Accelerate delivery 
of housing on sites allocated in 
the LDP and publicise available 
sites. 

Officer time Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 
Finance, 
Assets and 
Housing 
Service 

Complete by 
February 
2016 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Graham 
Boase 

1.4 Update Local Housing Market 
Assessment incorporating 
housing need and demand 
data. Current assessment 
was completed in 2015. 

Medium 
term 

Housing need and demand data 
for the County is updated and 
clarified. This is a statutory 
requirement and will provide up 
to date information on 
Denbighshire’s housing market 
with an analysis of current and 
future housing needs. This will 
help to inform policy decisions. 

Officer time 
 
Statistical 
information 

Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 

Timescale to 
link to LDP 
review 
 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Graham 
Boase 

1.5 Review LDP housing 
allocations  and policies as 
part of statutory LDP Review 

Medium 
term 

Contact relevant landowners to 
advise them of the Council’s 
approach before the review. 
Accelerate delivery of housing 
on sites allocated in the LDP and 
avoidance of land banking. 

Officer time 
Legal advice 

Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 
Landowners 
Developers 
 

LDP Review 
to start by 
June 2017 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Graham 
Boase 

3 | P a g e  D e n b i g h s h i r e ’ s  H o u s i n g  S t r a t e g y  A c t i o n  P l a n  2 0 1 6  -  2 0 2 1  
 

T
udalen 46



 
 

Ref Action Timescale Outcomes & benefits Resource 
requirements 

Identified 
partners  Target 

Lead 
Member/ 
Head of 
Service 

1.6 Investigate use of reduced 
commencement period 
conditions on planning 
permissions (i.e. shorter than 
current standard requiring 
development to start within 5 
years) 
Lobby Welsh Government to 
change legislation to require 
completion of development 
within defined time periods. 
 

Short 
term 

Accelerate delivery of housing 
on sites with planning 
permission and avoidance of 
land-banking.  

Officer time 
Legal advice 

Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 
Development 
Management 
Team 
Legal Services 

By February 
2016 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Graham 
Boase 

1.7 Bring forward development 
on sites with unimplemented 
planning permission through 
a clear programme of action 

On-going Analysis of reasons for stalled 
sites & intervention & influence 
to facilitate development, 
where possible, through a 
package of measures. 

Officer time 
 

Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 
Finance, 
Assets and 
Housing 
Service 
Registered 
Social 
Landlords 
 

Develop 
programme 
by June 
2016 
 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Graham 
Boase 

1.8 To develop an Infrastructure 
Plan for Denbighshire 

Short 
term 

Identification of infrastructure 
issues and requirements to 
enable housing growth and 
development 

Officer time Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 
Highways, 
Education 

By June 
2016 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Graham 
Boase 

4 | P a g e  D e n b i g h s h i r e ’ s  H o u s i n g  S t r a t e g y  A c t i o n  P l a n  2 0 1 6  -  2 0 2 1  
 

T
udalen 47



 
 

Ref Action Timescale Outcomes & benefits Resource 
requirements 

Identified 
partners  Target 

Lead 
Member/ 
Head of 
Service 

Infrastructure 
providers 
(including 
DCWW, 
BCUHB, etc) 

1.9 Develop the Council’s Empty 
Homes Delivery Plan, 
investigate innovative 
mechanisms for bringing 
empty homes back into use 
and work with partners to 
develop new initiatives. 
 

Short 
term 

Better use of existing housing 
stock by continuing to target 
empty homes across the 
County. There is potential for 
new initiatives.  

Officer time 
Funding 
Legal advice 

Built 
Environment 
Public 
Protection 
Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing 
Finance, 
Assets and 
Housing 
Service 
RSLs 
Developers 
 

Minimum of 
5 empty 
properties 
brought 
back into 
use & 
Delivery Plan 
by 
December 
2016 
 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Graham 
Boase 

1.10 Undertake a Gypsy and 
Traveller accommodation 
needs assessment. 
Support delivery of 
appropriate accommodation 
if a need is identified. 

Short 
term 

This is a statutory requirement 
and will provide up to date 
information on gypsy & traveller 
accommodation needs in 
Denbighshire.  This will help to 
inform policy decisions. Work 
with other North Wales 
authorities to address any 
identified needs. 

Officer time 
Financial 
support for 
needs 
assessment 
Funding for 
site provision 
if required 

Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 
Finance, 
Assets and 
Housing 
Service 
Welsh 
Government 

Complete 
accommoda
tion needs 
assessment 
by February 
2016  
Site delivery 
(if needed) 
will require 

Cllr Hugh 
Irving 
Graham 
Boase 

5 | P a g e  D e n b i g h s h i r e ’ s  H o u s i n g  S t r a t e g y  A c t i o n  P l a n  2 0 1 6  -  2 0 2 1  
 

T
udalen 48



 
 

Ref Action Timescale Outcomes & benefits Resource 
requirements 

Identified 
partners  Target 

Lead 
Member/ 
Head of 
Service 

 separate 
timescale 

1.11 Remove the requirement for 
rural buildings to be 
converted to affordable 
housing (after economic use 
is proved unfeasible), in 
preference for market 
housing. 

Short-
medium 
term 

LDP policy changes can only be 
carried out through the formal 
LDP Review process, however 
we have revised the 
Supplementary Planning 
Guidance on conversion of 
redundant rural buildings. This 
has allowed market housing if 
affordable housing is shown to 
be unviable.  

Officer time Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 

Revised SPG 
adopted by 
Planning 
Committee 
May 2015  
LDP Review 
to start by 
June 2017 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Graham 
Boase 

1.12 Increase access to training 
opportunities and 
employment for local people 
in the construction / 
housebuilding sector 

Short 
term 

Development of a protocol for 
use in Section 106 planning 
agreements to require access to 
training opportunities for local 
people. Encourage Registered 
Social Landlords, developers and 
other partners to offer 
apprenticeships, work 
placements, mentoring/ 
coaching opportunities to local 
people. 

Officer time  
Legal advice 

Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 
Economic & 
Business 
Development 
Team 
Legal services 
Registered 
Social 
Landlords 
Other 
partners 

Develop 
protocol by 
June 2016 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Graham 
Boase/ 
Rebecca 
Maxwell 

6 | P a g e  D e n b i g h s h i r e ’ s  H o u s i n g  S t r a t e g y  A c t i o n  P l a n  2 0 1 6  -  2 0 2 1  
 

T
udalen 49



 
 

Ref Action Timescale Outcomes & benefits Resource 
requirements 

Identified 
partners  Target 

Lead 
Member/ 
Head of 
Service 

1.13 Ensuring mix of appropriate 
housing to meet local needs, 
including development of 
good quality intermediate 
and market rented homes. 
Implement regular case 
conferences for housing 
proposals.  

Short 
term 

Ensure a mix of housing is provided 
through negotiations on planning 
applications. Improved joint 
working at an early stage in 
scheme development.  Potential 
for Registered Social Landlords/ 
Council to develop homes for 
market rent or manage homes 
developed by others to increase 
supply of good quality homes in 
the private rented sector. 
 

Officer time 
Funding 
Legal advice 

Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing 
Finance, 
Assets & 
Housing 
Service 
RSLs 

Implement 
case 
conferences 
by January 
2016 

Cllr David 
Smith/ Cllr 
Julian 
Thompson 
Hill 
Graham 
Boase 
/Jamie 
Groves 

THEME 2: Creating a supply of Affordable Homes 

2.1 Establish and implement an 
affordable housing delivery / 
investment programme to 
enable resources to be 
targeted to priority sites and 
actions 

Short 
term 

A clear programme for delivery 
of affordable housing. This will 
contribute to an improved 
supply of affordable housing of 
all types and tenures and ensure 
that we bring together and take 
full advantage of available 
funding streams. 

Officer time Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 
Finance, 
Assets & 
Housing 
Service 
Registered 
Social 
Landlords 

By June 
2016 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Graham 
Boase 

7 | P a g e  D e n b i g h s h i r e ’ s  H o u s i n g  S t r a t e g y  A c t i o n  P l a n  2 0 1 6  -  2 0 2 1  
 

T
udalen 50



 
 

Ref Action Timescale Outcomes & benefits Resource 
requirements 

Identified 
partners  Target 

Lead 
Member/ 
Head of 
Service 

2.2 Review both Council and HRA 
landholdings to determine 
suitability and availability for 
affordable housing 
development and establish a 
clear programme for delivery 

Short 
term 

List of sites which may be 
available for affordable housing 
development. Influence delivery 
and make best use of assets to 
deliver new housing, including 
affordable and specialised 
housing. 

Officer time  Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 
Finance, 
Assets and 
Housing 
Service 

By June 
2016 

Cllr Julian 
Thompson-
Hill 
Jamie 
Groves 

2.3 Following a review of HRA 
landholdings, investigate 
selling HRA assets in areas 
where there is little or no 
housing need. Capital 
receipts to be used to 
contribute to the delivery of 
affordable housing in areas of 
identified need. 

Short 
term 

This would enable acquisition of 
land and investment in those 
areas with identified housing 
needs. This would form part of 
the Affordable Housing Delivery 
Programme. 

Officer time Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 
Finance, 
Assets and 
Housing 
Service 

By June 
2016 

Cllr Julian 
Thompson-
Hill 
Jamie 
Groves 

2.4 Investigate developing a 
council protocol for the 
disposal of Council land and 
property assets to ensure 
they are first offered to HRA , 
then if not required by the 
HRA to sell at below market 
value to maximise affordable 
housing delivery, only if not 
required for affordable 
housing it should be offered 
to open market at full market 

Short 
term 

Adoption of a protocol to allow 
for sale of Council land at 
reduced value would allow for 
delivery of additional affordable 
housing on these sites 

Officer time 
Legal & 
financial 
advice 

Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 
Finance, 
Assets and 
Housing 
Service 
 

By 
December  
2016 

Cllr Julian 
Thompson-
Hill 
Jamie 
Groves 

8 | P a g e  D e n b i g h s h i r e ’ s  H o u s i n g  S t r a t e g y  A c t i o n  P l a n  2 0 1 6  -  2 0 2 1  
 

T
udalen 51



 
 

Ref Action Timescale Outcomes & benefits Resource 
requirements 

Identified 
partners  Target 

Lead 
Member/ 
Head of 
Service 

value 

2.5 Work with other public 
sector agencies  (including 
BCUHB, WG, police etc) to 
review other public 
landholdings, to determine 
suitability and availability for 
affordable housing 
development    

Medium 
term 

List of sites which may be 
available for affordable housing 
development. Influence delivery 
and make best use of public 
sector assets to deliver new 
housing, including affordable 
and specialised housing. 

Officer time Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 
Finance, 
Assets and 
Housing 
Service 
Other public 
bodies 

Scoping 
report by 
June 2016 

Cllr David 
Smith/  Cllr 
Julian 
Thompson-
Hill 
Graham 
Boase 
/Jamie 
Groves 

2.6 To maximise Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA) 
funding to deliver more 
affordable housing and 
establish a development fund 
within the HRA 
 

Short 
term 

This would enable acquisition of 
land / existing buildings and 
investment in those areas with 
identified housing needs. This 
would form part of the 
Affordable Housing Delivery 
Programme. 

Officer time 
Legal & 
financial 
advice 
HRA funding 

Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 
Finance, 
Assets and 
Housing 
Service 

Minimum of 
7 properties 
delivered 
and 
establish a 
fund by 
December 
2016 

Cllr Julian 
Thompson-
Hill 
Jamie 
Groves 

2.7 Establish a targeted 
programme for spending 
affordable housing  
commuted sums , including 
the possibility of pooling to 
form a central fund 
 
 

Short 
term 

Revised commuted sum policy 
and clear programme for 
spending.  This will set out how 
and where the Council will 
spend the money required from 
developers for affordable 
housing.  A larger number of 
smaller amounts are expected 

Officer time 
Legal & 
financial 
advice 
 

Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 
Finance, 
Assets and 
Housing 
Service 
Legal Services 

By 
December 
2016 

Cllr David 
Smith/  Cllr 
Julian 
Thompson-
Hill 
Graham 
Boase 
/Jamie 

9 | P a g e  D e n b i g h s h i r e ’ s  H o u s i n g  S t r a t e g y  A c t i o n  P l a n  2 0 1 6  -  2 0 2 1  
 

T
udalen 52



 
 

Ref Action Timescale Outcomes & benefits Resource 
requirements 

Identified 
partners  Target 

Lead 
Member/ 
Head of 
Service 

 
 
 
 
 

to be received in future and a 
revised policy, with a wider 
range of options, will maximise 
the benefit secured and 
minimise unspent sums being 
returned to developers.     
If possible, pooling all sums 
received would enable a more 
strategic approach to spending 
commuted sums and assist the 
Council in building its own 
affordable homes. It would also 
ensure effective use of smaller 
sums collected. 

Groves 

2.8 To maximise use of Social 
Housing Grant, Housing 
Finance Grant and other  
funding available to deliver 
additional affordable 
housing. 

Short 
term 

Ensure that the potential to 
deliver affordable housing is 
maximised in those areas with 
identified housing needs. This 
would form part of the 
Affordable Housing Delivery 
Programme. 

Officer time 
Financial 
advice 

Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 
Finance, 
Assets and 
Housing 
Service 
 

Affordable 
Housing 
Delivery 
Programme 
by June 
2016 

Cllr David 
Smith/  Cllr 
Julian 
Thompson-
Hill 
Graham 
Boase 
/Jamie 
Groves 

2.9 To fully investigate utilising a 
wider range of affordable 
housing funding & delivery 
mechanisms, e.g. joint 
venture,  establishing a 

Short 
term 

A clear understanding and 
assessment of potential delivery 
options to inform the 
development of the affordable 
housing delivery programme. 

Officer time 
Legal advice 
Financial 
advice 

Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 
Finance, 
Assets and 

By June 
2016 

Cllr David 
Smith/  Cllr 
Julian 
Thompson-
Hill 

10 | P a g e  D e n b i g h s h i r e ’ s  H o u s i n g  S t r a t e g y  A c t i o n  P l a n  2 0 1 6  -  2 0 2 1  
 

T
udalen 53



 
 

Ref Action Timescale Outcomes & benefits Resource 
requirements 

Identified 
partners  Target 

Lead 
Member/ 
Head of 
Service 

housing delivery company Housing 
Service 
Registered 
Social 
Landlords 

Graham 
Boase 
/Jamie 
Groves 

2.10 To develop a business plan to 
ensure more Council homes 
are provided 

Short 
term 

Contribution to an improved 
supply of affordable housing in 
the County. This should involve 
new build and potentially 
buying existing houses, some of 
which could have been lost 
through right to buy. 

Officer time 
Legal & 
financial 
advice 

Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 
Finance, 
Assets and 
Housing 
Service 
Registered 
Social 
Landlords 

By April 
2016 

Cllr Barbara 
Smith 
Jamie 
Groves 

2.11 Develop a standard Section 
106 legal agreement / clauses 
for securing affordable 
housing through planning 
applications. Ensure that this 
meets mortgage providers 
requirements 

Short 
term 

Template s106 legal 
agreements, or template 
clauses to be included in SPG 
and publicised on website.  This 
will reduce the length of time 
taken to negotiate the terms of 
s106 agreements prior to 
planning permission being 
granted and remove barriers for 
securing mortgages on 
properties subject to S106 
agreements. 

Officer time Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 
Development 
Management 
Team 
Legal Services 

By June 
2016 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Graham 
Boase 

11 | P a g e  D e n b i g h s h i r e ’ s  H o u s i n g  S t r a t e g y  A c t i o n  P l a n  2 0 1 6  -  2 0 2 1  
 

T
udalen 54



 
 

Ref Action Timescale Outcomes & benefits Resource 
requirements 

Identified 
partners  Target 

Lead 
Member/ 
Head of 
Service 

2.12 Test a range of methods for 
calculating financial 
contributions towards 
affordable housing, with the 
aim of reducing the number 
of calculations currently 
used.  

Medium 
term 

Potential to simplify the 
calculations for commuted sums 
for affordable housing, whilst 
ensuring that contributions are 
maximised without jeopardising 
development viability. 

Officer time Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 
Finance, 
Assets and 
Housing 
Service 

By June 
2017 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Graham 
Boase 

2.13 Involvement of the Council’s 
Finance, Assets & Housing 
Service in assessing viability 
of planning proposals  and 
involvement in negotiations 
with developer and 
applicants  
 
 

Short 
term 

Revised planning process to 
include consultation and 
involving the Finance, Assets & 
Housing Service in negotiations 
where the provision of 
affordable housing is affecting 
overall site delivery.  This will 
ensure better informed and 
more robust negotiations. 

Officer time 
 

Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team  
Development 
Management 
Team 
Finance, 
Assets and 
Housing 
Service 

By March 
2016 

Cllr Julian 
Thompson 
–Hill/ Cllr 
David Smith 
Graham 
Boase/ 
Jamie 
Groves 

2.14 Introduce a mechanism to 
secure financial contributions 
for affordable housing 
following scheme 
completion, where viability 
has improved beyond that 
originally projected 
(‘clawback’).   

Short 
term 

Revised Supplementary 
Planning Guidance on 
affordable housing.  Where 
housing developments are 
delivered over a long time 
period, or the wider economic 
climate subsequently changes, 
the resultant scheme may have 
been able to deliver more 
affordable housing than agreed 
at the time of planning 

Officer time 
Legal advice  

Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 
Legal Services 

By June 
2016 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Graham 
Boase 

12 | P a g e  D e n b i g h s h i r e ’ s  H o u s i n g  S t r a t e g y  A c t i o n  P l a n  2 0 1 6  -  2 0 2 1  
 

T
udalen 55



 
 

Ref Action Timescale Outcomes & benefits Resource 
requirements 

Identified 
partners  Target 

Lead 
Member/ 
Head of 
Service 

permission being granted.  
Introducing a mechanism to 
assess development viability 
after completion will ensure the 
Council can claim a contribution 
towards affordable housing, 
which would previously have 
been lost. 
 

2.15 Test a range of approaches to 
calculating the value of 
affordable properties, to 
ensure this is set at an 
appropriate level.   

Medium 
term 

Inclusion of any new approach 
in a revised Supplementary 
Planning Guidance document.  
An appropriate value should be 
genuinely affordable to those in 
need but not so low as to be 
economically unviable for 
developers.      
Clarity regarding the particular 
circumstances of self-build 
affordable housing and avoiding 
situations where the calculated 
value for affordable homes is 
more expensive than market 
housing        

Officer time Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 
Finance, 
Assets and 
Housing 
Service 
 

By June 
2017 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Graham 
Boase 

2.16 Review the current approach 
and thresholds for affordable 
housing requirements in LDP 
policies relating to affordable 

Medium 
term 

Revised LDP policies and 
Supplementary Planning 
Guidance on affordable housing.   
To ensure that affordable 

Officer time 
Funding for 
viability testing 
of policy 

Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 
Finance, 

LDP Review 
to start by 
June 2017 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Graham 
Boase 

13 | P a g e  D e n b i g h s h i r e ’ s  H o u s i n g  S t r a t e g y  A c t i o n  P l a n  2 0 1 6  -  2 0 2 1  
 

T
udalen 56



 
 

Ref Action Timescale Outcomes & benefits Resource 
requirements 

Identified 
partners  Target 

Lead 
Member/ 
Head of 
Service 

housing through the 
statutory LDP Review process 
(currently 10% requirement 
but could be increased if 
viability justified a higher 
affordable housing 
contribution) 

housing requirements are 
balanced against viability of site 
delivery and the amount of 
affordable housing being 
delivered by private developers 
is maximised without impacting 
overall housing delivery.   
Requirements for rural 
affordable housing, and the 
Council’s approach, will also be 
reconsidered to ensure this 
supports sustainable rural 
communities. 
 

approaches  Assets and 
Housing 
Service 
 

2.17 To ensure good partnership 
working with Registered 
Social Landlords 

Short 
term 

Ensure that the potential for 
Registered Social Landlords to 
deliver affordable housing is 
maximised in those areas with 
identified housing needs. 
Develop the Affordable Housing 
Delivery Programme in 
partnership with RSLs. Work 
together to promote improved 
quality and management of 
existing stock.  Implement 
regular liaison meetings. 

Officer time 
 

Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 
Registered 
Social 
Landlords 

Implement 
programme 
of regular 
liaison 
meetings  
from 
January 
2016 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Graham 
Boase 

2.18 To identify a wider range of 
development partners to 

Short 
term 

This could include both public 
and private sector partners and 

Officer time 
Legal & 

Strategic 
Planning & 

By June 
2016 

Cllr David 
Smith 

14 | P a g e  D e n b i g h s h i r e ’ s  H o u s i n g  S t r a t e g y  A c t i o n  P l a n  2 0 1 6  -  2 0 2 1  
 

T
udalen 57



 
 

Ref Action Timescale Outcomes & benefits Resource 
requirements 

Identified 
partners  Target 

Lead 
Member/ 
Head of 
Service 

assist in increasing the supply 
of affordable housing 
 
 

would contribute to achieving 
the affordable housing delivery 
programme. 

financial 
advice 

Housing Team 
Registered 
Social 
Landlords 

Graham 
Boase 

2.19 To increase applicants 
registered on the affordable 
housing register or 
equivalent. Review current 
process for registration. 

Short 
term 

Revised simplified process for 
registration which is consistent 
across the region. This should 
make it easier for people to 
register. Wider promotion of 
the register will lead to 
improved awareness and take 
up by those in need of 
affordable housing, with an 
increase in applicants registered 
on the affordable housing 
register. 

Officer time 
Input from 
Registered 
Social 
Landlords 
 

Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 
Registered 
Social 
Landlords 

By March 
2016 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Graham 
Boase 

2.20 To develop a  
communications  campaign 
to ensure successful 
affordable home schemes are 
fully promoted 

Short 
term 

Promotion of successful 
schemes. This will help to 
improve negative public 
perceptions and improve take 
up of development. Encourage 
registration on the Affordable 
Housing Waiting list. 

Officer time Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing Team 
Registered 
Social 
Landlords 
Communicati
ons and 
Marketing 
Team 
 
 

By March 
2016 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Graham 
Boase 

15 | P a g e  D e n b i g h s h i r e ’ s  H o u s i n g  S t r a t e g y  A c t i o n  P l a n  2 0 1 6  -  2 0 2 1  
 

T
udalen 58



 
 

Ref Action Timescale Outcomes & benefits Resource 
requirements 

Identified 
partners  Target 

Lead 
Member/ 
Head of 
Service 

THEME 3: Ensuring Safe and Healthy homes   
3.1 To ensure Council 

accommodation is 
maintained to meet the  
Welsh Housing Quality 
Standard  

Medium 
term 

Welsh Government requires 
that all social housing meets 
Welsh Housing Quality Standard 
by 2020. The Council met this 
standard in 2014 but ongoing 
maintenance is required to 
sustain this. 

Investment in 
Welsh Housing 
Quality 
Standard 

Finance, 
Assets and 
Housing 
Service 
 

By 
December 
2017 

Cllr Barbara 
Smith 
Jamie 
Groves 

3.2 Private rented sector stock 
condition/issue survey 

Medium 
term 
 

To support the implementation 
of an action plan for private 
rented sector properties, issues 
need to be researched to ensure 
resources are effectively 
targeted 

Officer time Public 
Protection 
Private 
landlords 
 

By 
December 
2017 
 
 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Graham 
Boase 

3.3 Support implementation & 
enforcement of Welsh 
Governments “Rent Smart’ 
scheme, including a 
comprehensive database of 
all private landlords 
Landlord Licensing Scheme 

Short 
term 

New legislation is introducing 
the requirement for all private 
landlords to register. The 
scheme is being administered by 
Cardiff City Council. 

Officer time Public 
protection 
Private 
landlords 

By October 
2016 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Graham 
Boase 

3.4 To develop an Energy 
Conservation delivery plan 
and establish a database to 
prioritise those in fuel 
poverty 

Short 
term 

Will focus on targeting action at 
the properties with the worst 
energy efficiency. To work with 
households to move them out 
of fuel poverty – Welsh 
Government funding secured. 
Policy developed and 

Officer time Built 
Environment 
Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing  
Welsh 
Government  

Delivery Plan  
& database 
by August 
2016.  
 
 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Graham 
Boase 

16 | P a g e  D e n b i g h s h i r e ’ s  H o u s i n g  S t r a t e g y  A c t i o n  P l a n  2 0 1 6  -  2 0 2 1  
 

T
udalen 59



 
 

Ref Action Timescale Outcomes & benefits Resource 
requirements 

Identified 
partners  Target 

Lead 
Member/ 
Head of 
Service 

implemented to support energy 
efficient housing within the 
Council’s stock 

Bangor Univ. 
Public 
Protection 

3.5 To develop a multi-agency 
private rented sector action 
plan & toolkit working with 
partners such as the Health 
Board to help to improve the 
standard of the poorest 
quality housing in the private 
rented sector. To include: 
• A specific action plan for 

dealing with poor quality 
accommodation above 
commercial premises.  

• Environmental issues 
such as refuse and fly-
tipping 

• Working with the Built 
Environment department 
to improve properties 
through utilising energy 
conservation measures 

Medium 
term 
 

The private rented sector is a 
significant growing element in 
the tenure options available in 
the County. Engaging & 
developing a good relationship 
with private rented sector 
landlords is crucial. 
 

Officer time Public 
Protection 
Private 
landlords 
Housing 
Solutions 
 

By 
December 
2017 
 

Cllr David 
Smith  
Cllr Hugh 
Irving 
Graham 
Boase 
 

3.6 Continue to implement 
mandatory HMO licensing & 
explore potential for future 
expansion of additional 
licensing schemes and 

Medium 
term 

Raise standards of properties & 
their management 

Officer time Planning & 
Public 
Protection 
Private 
landlords 

Complete 
condition 
survey & 
report on 
additional 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Graham 
Boase 

17 | P a g e  D e n b i g h s h i r e ’ s  H o u s i n g  S t r a t e g y  A c t i o n  P l a n  2 0 1 6  -  2 0 2 1  
 

T
udalen 60



 
 

Ref Action Timescale Outcomes & benefits Resource 
requirements 

Identified 
partners  Target 

Lead 
Member/ 
Head of 
Service 

introduction of selective 
licensing schemes 
 
 
 

licensing by 
December 
2017 

3.7 Use of planning and housing 
powers, including 
enforcement regarding new 
build and unauthorised 
HMOs & conversion to flats 
 

Medium 
term 

Raise standards of 
accommodation in the private 
rented sector. Internal 
procedure and checklist to 
assess properties prior to 
action. 

Officer time Planning & 
Public 
Protection 

By April 
2017 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Graham 
Boase 

3.8 Establish the extent to which 
holiday caravans are being 
used as permanent 
residences & develop a 
regulatory procedure to take 
targeted action. 

Short 
term 

Many people are living in 
caravans which do not have 
planning permission for 
permanent residency.   Some 
caravans provide poor housing 
conditions and this will ensure 
that people are not living in 
unsuitable accommodation. 
Shared intelligence across 
Council services. 
 

Officer time Business 
improvement 
and 
modernisation 
Development 
Management, 
caravan park 
owners/ 
Managers 
Public 
protection 
 
 
 

By April 
2016 
 
 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Alan Smith 
Graham 
Boase 
 

3.9 Develop & engage with 
private rented sector 
landlords & tenants through 

Medium 
Term 

Engaging & developing a good 
relationship with private rented 
sector landlords & tenants is 

Officer time Public 
protection 
Private 

By 
December 
2016 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Graham 

18 | P a g e  D e n b i g h s h i r e ’ s  H o u s i n g  S t r a t e g y  A c t i o n  P l a n  2 0 1 6  -  2 0 2 1  
 

T
udalen 61



 
 

Ref Action Timescale Outcomes & benefits Resource 
requirements 

Identified 
partners  Target 

Lead 
Member/ 
Head of 
Service 

alternative methods and 
routes. 

crucial. Implement programme 
of drop-in surgeries for private 
rented sector landlords and 
tenants. 
 

landlords Boase 

Theme 4: Homes and support for vulnerable people 
4.1 To ensure additional extra 

care facilities are provided in 
Denbighshire & to maximise 
potential for specialist 
housing for vulnerable adults  

Long term More housing options are 
needed for older people and 
vulnerable adults. Denbighshire 
and public/private partners are 
examining a range of ways 
forward including exploring an 
extra care model of housing for 
adults with complex disabilities 

Extra care 
project 
Manager 
Officer time  
Procurement 
and legal 
advice 
 

Community 
Support 
Services 
Registered 
Social 
Landlords 
Finance, 
Assets and 
Housing 
Strategic 
Planning & 
Housing 
Strategy 
Procurement 
and Legal 
services 

2 schemes to 
be in 
development 
by December 
2017 

Cllr Bobby 
Feeley 
Phil Gilroy 

4.2 Review supported 
Independent Living provision 
and demand 

Medium 
term 

This will enable a review of the 
appropriateness of some 
existing schemes given their age 
and location.   Viability of 
redeveloping sheltered housing 
schemes owned by the Council 

Community 
Support 
Services 

Registered 
Social 
Landlords 
Community 
Support 

By June 
2017 

Cllr Bobby 
Feeley 
Phil Gilroy 

19 | P a g e  D e n b i g h s h i r e ’ s  H o u s i n g  S t r a t e g y  A c t i o n  P l a n  2 0 1 6  -  2 0 2 1  
 

T
udalen 62



 
 

Ref Action Timescale Outcomes & benefits Resource 
requirements 

Identified 
partners  Target 

Lead 
Member/ 
Head of 
Service 

4.3 To finalise a homelessness 
strategy by December 2017, 
including ensuring that RSLs 
also provide for homeless 
people 
• Survey the 

homelessness issue & 
draft a homelessness 
strategy by June 2017 

• Consultation to be 
completed by August 
2017 

• Amendments made & 
final strategy to be 
adopted by the Council 
by December 2017.  

Long term Welsh Government have 
introduced legislation requiring 
the development this strategy. 
This will ensure that the Council 
has a clear and co-ordinated 
approach to addressing 
homelessness issues.  
 

Housing 
Solutions 

Planning & 
Housing 
Strategy 
Housing 
Solutions 
Registered 
Social 
Landlords 

To finalise 
the Strategy 
by 
December 
2017 

Cllr Hugh 
Irving 
Phil Gilroy 
Graham 
Boase 

4.4 To provide better quality 
emergency accommodation 
for those who have been 
made homeless in the 
County.  
 

Medium 
term 

Ensure good quality, well 
managed accommodation for 
homeless people, including 
possible direct provision by the 
Council.   

Officer time 
Funding 
 

Housing 
Solutions 
Team 
Housing 
Management 
Planning and 
Public 
Protection 
Registered 
Social 
Landlords 

By 
December 
2017 

Cllr Hugh 
Irving 
Phil Gilroy 
Jamie 
Groves 

4.5 Provide good quality, well Medium Ensure good quality, well Officer time Housing By Cllr Hugh 

20 | P a g e  D e n b i g h s h i r e ’ s  H o u s i n g  S t r a t e g y  A c t i o n  P l a n  2 0 1 6  -  2 0 2 1  
 

T
udalen 63



 
 

Ref Action Timescale Outcomes & benefits Resource 
requirements 

Identified 
partners  Target 

Lead 
Member/ 
Head of 
Service 

managed temporary 
accommodation solutions 
whilst housing needs are 
being assessed prior to 
permanent accommodation 
solutions being found. This 
includes options such as the 
Council providing it directly 
from its own housing stock 

term managed accommodation for 
homeless people.  Work will be 
undertaken to identify 
appropriate options within 
Council and private housing 
stock. 

Funding 
 

Solutions 
Housing 
Management 
Planning and 
Public 
Protection 
Registered 
Social 
Landlords 

December 
2017 

Irving 
Phil Gilroy 
Jamie 
Groves 

4.6 Develop and implement a 
Private Rented Sector 
tenants accreditation scheme 

Short 
term 

Training and awareness raising 
for potential Private Rented 
Sector tenants to enable them 
to become ‘good ‘and better 
able to access accommodation 
and maintain tenancies. 

Officer time Housing 
Solutions  
Community 
Support 

By 
December 
2016 

Cllr Hugh 
Irving 
Phil Gilroy 
 

4.7 Investigate options on the 
formation of a Social Lettings 
Agency 

Short 
term 

Social Lettings Agencies are 
non-profit organisations, which 
can provide a more affordable 
route to private rented sector 
accommodation 

Officer time Housing 
Solutions 
Public 
Protection 
Housing 

By June 
2016 

Cllr Hugh 
Irving 
Phil Gilroy 
 

4.8 Promote and develop the 
‘Denbighshire Housing’ 
website & ‘Let’s Help You’ 
online accommodation finder  

Short 
term 

This will provide a digital route 
for providing Housing Options 
advice and accommodation to 
help those in need of 
accommodation, which 
landlords will also be able to 
utilise and use as a marketing 
tool.  

Officer time 
Funding 

Housing 
Solutions 
Planning & 
Public 
Protection 
Private 
landlords 
 

By June 
2016 

Cllr Hugh 
Irving/ Cllr 
Barbara 
Smith 
Phil Gilroy / 
Jamie 
Groves 

21 | P a g e  D e n b i g h s h i r e ’ s  H o u s i n g  S t r a t e g y  A c t i o n  P l a n  2 0 1 6  -  2 0 2 1  
 

T
udalen 64



 
 

Ref Action Timescale Outcomes & benefits Resource 
requirements 

Identified 
partners  Target 

Lead 
Member/ 
Head of 
Service 

  
4.9 Develop a portfolio of private 

rented sector landlords with 
good quality accommodation 
to assist people with private 
rented sector 
accommodation.  Working 
with Public Protection to 
ensure that the 
accommodation meets at 
least the minimum standards 
set in Housing Hazards and 
Safety Rating Scheme 
(HHSRS) legislation & that 
landlords meet the “fit and 
proper” test 

Short 
term 

Engaging & developing a good 
relationship with private rented 
sector landlords is crucial.  

Housing 
Solutions 
Public 
Protection 

Housing 
Solutions 
Planning & 
Public 
Protection 
Private 
landlords 
 

By June 
2016 

Cllr Hugh 
Irving 
Cllr David 
Smith 
Graham 
Boase 
Phil Gilroy 

4.10 To develop a pre-move 
programme for vulnerable 
adults to maximise successful 
placements 
 
 

Short 
term 

Housing need for adults with 
complex needs is recorded and 
updated regularly. 
Voids in accommodation are 
kept to a minimum 
Placements will be more 
successful 
Issues are dealt with 
consistently 
Tenants and their families are 
prepared for placements, 
helping to ensure a positive 

Officer time Community 
Support 
Housing 
management 
Registered 
Social 
Landlords 

By June 
2016 

Cllr Bobby 
Feeley 
Phil Gilroy 

22 | P a g e  D e n b i g h s h i r e ’ s  H o u s i n g  S t r a t e g y  A c t i o n  P l a n  2 0 1 6  -  2 0 2 1  
 

T
udalen 65



 
 

Ref Action Timescale Outcomes & benefits Resource 
requirements 

Identified 
partners  Target 

Lead 
Member/ 
Head of 
Service 

outcome. 
4.11 Implement the single access 

route to housing (SARTH) 
Short 
term 

The project will provide a single 
waiting list and better housing 
option advice to ensure 
applicants are realistic about 
the housing options available to 
them. 

Officer time Housing 
Solutions 
Finance, 
Assets & 
Housing 

By 
December 
2016 

Cllr Barbara 
Smith 
Cllr Hugh 
Irving 
Jamie 
Groves 
Phil Gilroy 

4.12 To monitor and respond to 
accommodation and support 
requirements for refugees 

Short 
term 

Address and meet requirements 
for support for refugees 

Officer time Registered 
Social 
Landlords 
Private 
Rented Sector 
Landlords 

Respond to 
needs on 
demand 

Cllr Bobby 
Feeley 
Phil Gilroy 
 

Theme 5: Promoting and supporting communities 
5.1 To develop a Tenant 

Engagement Strategy for 
Council tenants 

Short 
term 

Improvements to the approach 
to engaging Council tenants in 
decision making and in 
monitoring performance of the 
Housing Service 

Officer time Finance, 
Assets and 
Housing 

By June  
2016 

Cllr Barbara 
Smith 
Jamie 
Groves 

5.2 Develop a strategic asset 
management plan for the 
Council’s housing stock  
 

Short 
term 

This will prioritise areas of 
Council housing to be 
regenerated and funding from 
the Housing Revenue Account. 

Officer time 
Funding 

Finance, 
Assets and 
Housing 

By May 2016 Cllr Barbara 
Smith 
Jamie 
Groves 

5.3 Implement environment 
toolkit to assist in improving 
the environment for our 
tenants 

Short 
term 

The toolkit has been developed 
and is currently being 
implemented with small 
projects. The toolkit enables 

Officer time Finance, 
Assets and 
Housing 
Countryside 

By April 
2016 

Cllr Barbara 
Smith 
Jamie 
Groves 

23 | P a g e  D e n b i g h s h i r e ’ s  H o u s i n g  S t r a t e g y  A c t i o n  P l a n  2 0 1 6  -  2 0 2 1  
 

T
udalen 66



 
 

Ref Action Timescale Outcomes & benefits Resource 
requirements 

Identified 
partners  Target 

Lead 
Member/ 
Head of 
Service 

tenants to become involved in 
improving and maintaining their 
local environment and 
contribute to promoting and 
supporting sustainable 
communities. 

Services 

5.4 Develop a schedule to 
enhance open space/ play 
assets within Council stock 

Long term Environmental improvements 
and on-going maintenance will 
contribute to promoting and 
supporting sustainable 
communities. 

Officer time Finance, 
Assets and 
Housing 
 

By October 
2018 

Cllr Barbara 
Smith 
Jamie 
Groves 

5.5 To develop an apprenticeship 
scheme for property 
maintenance service  

Short 
term 

Maintaining the Council stock 
now it has reached Welsh 
Housing Quality Standard is 
crucial.  Many of the current 
workforce are over 50 and these 
are needed in terms of 
developing younger people 

Officer time 
 

Finance, 
Assets and 
Housing 

Appoint 3 
apprentices 
by June 
2016 

Cllr Barbara 
Smith 
Jamie 
Groves 

5.6 Continue working with 
police, registered social 
landlords & other partners on 
focused neighbourhood 
management  in West Rhyl 
 
 
 

Short 
term 

Environmental improvements 
and on-going maintenance 
through partnership working.  

Officer time 
WG funding 

Cooperative 
West Rhyl 
Community 
Land Trust 
North Wales 
Housing 
Pennaf 
Welsh 
Government 
Police 

Private 
rented 
Sector 
toolkit by 
December 
2017 
Regular 
partnership 
meetings 
with RSLs by 

Cllr David 
Smith 
Rebecca 
Maxwell 
Graham 
Boase 

24 | P a g e  D e n b i g h s h i r e ’ s  H o u s i n g  S t r a t e g y  A c t i o n  P l a n  2 0 1 6  -  2 0 2 1  
 

T
udalen 67



 
 

Ref Action Timescale Outcomes & benefits Resource 
requirements 

Identified 
partners  Target 

Lead 
Member/ 
Head of 
Service 

Planning and  
Public 
Protection 

January 
2016 
Area based 
pilot project 
in West Rhyl 
complete by 
April 2016 

5.7 Develop individual locality 
based neighbourhood 
strategies for areas of Council 
stock 

Medium 
term 

A focussed approach to 
environmental improvements 
within the Council’s stock. 

Officer time Finance, 
Assets and 
Housing 

Action plan 
by 
December 
2016 and 
local 
strategies by 
September 
2017 

Cllr Barbara 
Smith 
Jamie 
Groves 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

25 | P a g e  D e n b i g h s h i r e ’ s  H o u s i n g  S t r a t e g y  A c t i o n  P l a n  2 0 1 6  -  2 0 2 1  
 

T
udalen 68



 

 

 
 
 

 

 

       
 

 

 

 
  

 

 
 

Denbighshire County Council 
Housing Strategy 2016 -2021     

Consultation Report 

Appendix 3  

0 | P a g e  
 Tudalen 69



 

Contents 
Consultation Report for the Housing Strategy ........................................................................... 2 

Housing Strategy Consultation May 2013 – December 2014 ......................... 2 

Housing Strategy Consultation February 2015 – December 2015 ................. 5 

Appendix (A) Health Impact Assessment ................................................................................. 14 

Lifestyles ............................................................................................................... 15 

Social and community influences .................................................................... 15 

Living and environmental conditions affecting health .................................. 16 

Economic Conditions affecting health ............................................................ 17 

Access and quality of services .......................................................................... 17 

Macro-economic, environmental and sustainability factors ........................ 18 

Appendix (B) Housing Strategy Workshop 17/8/15........................................................... 19 

Theme One: More Homes to Meet Local Need & Demand ......................... 19 

Theme Two: Creating a Supply of Affordable Notes ...................................... 23 

Theme Three: Ensuring Safe & Healthy Homes ................................................ 27 

Theme Four: Homes & Support for Vulnerable People ................................... 30 

Theme Five: Promoting & Supporting Communities ....................................... 34 

Appendix (C) Draft Housing Strategy discussion at Communities Scrutiny ................ 39 

 

  

1 | P a g e  
 Tudalen 70



 

Consultation Report for the Housing Strategy 
Housing Strategy Consultation May 2013 – December 2014 
Consultation for the Housing Strategy started on 5th June 2013 at a public 
consultation event arranged at the Eirianfa Centre in Denbigh. The venue was 
chosen as it is in a central point in the County, had level access and good 
parking facilities are available. The event was also supported by the services 
of a welsh translator.  

The event was held in conjunction with Glyndŵr University, who had been 
engaged to write the Housing Strategy. At the event, the vision for the Strategy 
and its proposed three themes of Construction, Consolidation and 
Communication were first discussed with the public and developed further. A 
full report on this event was seen by Communities Scrutiny on 4th July 2013.   

 https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/mgChooseDocPack.aspx?ID=4721&LLL=0 

Following the public consultation event a draft version of the Housing 
Strategy was drawn up and made available for general consultation from 
26th September 2013 to 10th February 2014. The Strategy was distributed 
to the Town & Community Councils, over 60 organisations and individuals 
were contacted by email and letter advising them of the consultation. Copies 
of the document were available on request or available digitally through the 
Denbighshire County Council website. Press announcements were also 
issued and were picked up by the Daily Post, Denbighshire Free Press & Rhyl 
Journal.  

Survey Monkey was also employed as a digital response to the Housing 
Strategy which was also publicised through DCC’s website, Corporate 
Facebook and Twitter accounts.  

Copies of the Housing Strategy were also provided at the Tenant Resource 
Centres with tenant organisations briefed on the main elements of the 
Strategy and its themes.  

Three additional public consultation events were held in January 2014 in 
Wellington Road Community Centre, Rhyl, DVSC Offices in Ruthin and the 
Maes Pengwern, Tenant Resource Centre in Llangollen. At all these venues 
the services of a Welsh translator and had level access and parking available 
nearby.  

Response 

The main concerns received during the consultation period were:- 

• A greater emphasis required in utilising Empty Homes as a housing 
resource 

• Tackling poor quality accommodation and landlords in the Private 
Rented Sector was seen as a top priority  

2 | P a g e  
 Tudalen 71

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/mgChooseDocPack.aspx?ID=4721&LLL=0


 

• The possibility of the Council building more homes was also queried 
and whether this would be something that could be considered in the 
future.  

Responder Response Recommendation 

Cllr Colin 
Hughes 

Concerned that there is 
no specific plan for 
increasing incomes in 
deprived wards such as 
Upper Denbigh 

Economic & Community Ambition 
Strategy 2013 - 2023 is specifically 
responsible for affecting 
improvements in Denbighshire’s 
economy. The Housing Strategy 
feeds into this by enabling 
development, more jobs are 
created in the locality, construction 
etc. 
Comments noted and no action 
required  

Lindsay 
Havaland 
Community 
Transport 
Assiociation 

Any new developments 
takes into account ease 
of access to reflect the 
higher needs of disabled 
people in Denbighshire 
and the ageing 
population 

Sustainability is a key issue when 
planning applications are 
considered. This includes aspects 
such as availability of public 
transport and Lifetime Homes 
guidance wherever possible. 
Comments noted and no action 
required 

Helen Prince 
DVSC 

Not enough information 
on community 
engagement in West 
Rhyl and what DCC are 
doing about tackling 
absentee landlords  

New theme 5 on Supporting 
communities gives greater 
emphasis to this. Theme three 
address the changes in legislation 
which require registration of 
landlords will help to address poor 
landlord management.  
Comments noted and 
amendments made.  

Supporting 
People 

Would like it addressed 
in the Strategy that due 
to ever shrinking 
budgets, greater 
partnership working will 
be required in order to 
provide successful 
outcomes to clients 

The final version of the Housing 
Strategy clearly states that Housing 
and Housing related support is a 
Council responsibility, not just that 
of one department. The monitoring 
of the strategy will ensure that this 
aims are achieved,  Comments 
noted and no action required 

Tenant 
Groups 

No feedback from what 
the previous Housing 
Strategy had achieved, 
more Council houses 
should be built and it 
was felt there was not 
enough emphasis on the 

Page added to the Housing 
Strategy showing previous 
achievements and West Rhyl Land 
Trust work expanded on. 
Comments noted and 
amendments made. 

3 | P a g e  
 Tudalen 72



 

West Rhyl Community 
Land Trust work 

9 responses 
received via 
Survey 
Monkey 
questionnaire 

Broadly sup portative of 
the Housing Strategy 
and its aim to increase 
construction of home 
building in the County 
but most wondered how 
realistically achievable it 
is.  

The Housing Strategy involves all 
departments across the Council and 
elements of it will feed into 
departmental business plan. This in 
turn will be monitored by Heads of 
Service, Lead Members and 
Scrutiny Committees. This will 
ensure that the Strategy is 
implemented and achievable.  
Comments noted and no action 
required 

Planning & 
Public 
Protection 

Detailed response 
received regarding a 
request for more 
information on 
Affordable Housing, 
Empty Homes and 
feedback that the 
Communication theme 
wasn’t developed 
enough and seemed the 
weakest of the three 
themes. Typos, 
abbreviations and 
grammar mistakes also 
commented on.  

Good points made around the 
Planning aspect of Housing and the 
quality of the draft Strategy. 
Comments noted and 
amendments made 

AONB Had concerns that any 
new building in AONB 
areas would not take 
into account the 
topography and existing 
build materials in the 
area.  

AONB are consulted as part of the 
planning process, so individual 
applications are discussed on merit 
and according to planning policy. 
Comments noted and no action 
required 

 

  

4 | P a g e  
 Tudalen 73



 

Housing Strategy Consultation February 2015 – December 2015 
In December 2014 the Strategic Planning and Housing Strategy departments merged. The restructure of departments led to a 
refocussing of the Housing Strategy and direct input from the January meeting of the SLT leadership team on the structure and 
content of the Housing Strategy 
 

Date Department  Action/Comments Response Recommendation 
6/2/15 Head of Housing  (Paul 

McGrady) 
Preliminary meeting to discuss the 
Housing Strategy and Housing business 
plans 

Keen to ensure 
alternative 
methods of 
funding 
affordable 
housing are 
researched as 
part of the 
Strategy and also 
to be aware that 
Housing is not 
just bricks and 
mortar 

Alternative mechanisms 
form a key part of theme 
two and supporting and 
regenerating 
communities is the 
focus of theme five.  
Comments noted and 
no action required 

27/2/15 Affordable Housing Task 
& Finish Group – session 
7 

Final session to agree recommendations 
of what should be agreed in the 
affordable housing section of the 
Housing Strategy 

The 
recommendations 
from the task and 
finish group, 
should be the 
basis of theme 
two.  

Comments noted and 
no further action 
required 

17/3/15 Strategic Partnership 
Board 

Seeking input from partner 
organisations.  

Key aspect of the 
Strategy should 
be about 

Recognised that 
Housing is not solely the 
responsibility of the 

5 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 74



 

partnership 
working 

Council, RSL’s & private 
landlords have a role to 
play too. This is 
reflected in the Strategy 
Comments noted and 
no further action 
required  

2/4/15 SLT Update on progress and seek input into 
the Action plan 

Meetings needed 
with each section 
head to ensure 
everyone has 
input to the 
Strategy.  

Meetings and 
feedback arranged 
with departmental 
managers and relevant 
staff.  

13/4/15 Cabinet briefing Information meeting advising of key 
findings of the Affordable Housing Task 
& Finish Group and the draft Housing 
Strategy.  

Cabinet updated 
on progress of 
the Housing 
Strategy 

No action required 

14/4/15 Council briefing Information meeting advising of key 
findings of the Affordable Housing Task 
& Finish Group and the draft Housing 
Strategy. Proposals for future 
governance suggested.  

Council updated 
on progress of 
the Housing 
Strategy 

No action required 

14/4/15 Community Support 
Services SLT meeting 

Input sought from Community Support 
Services into the Strategy & Action Plan 

Advised direct 
input needed 
from 
departmental 
managers 

Meetings and 
feedback arranged 
with departmental 
managers and relevant 
staff. 

17/4/15 Built Environment 
Manager - Gareth 
Roberts 

Input sought on Empty Homes, grants 
and energy efficiency.  

Energy efficiency 
rather than Fuel 
Poverty as they 
are separate 

Information included 
throughout the Strategy. 
Comments noted and 
amendments made. 

6 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 75



 

issues. Empty 
Homes action is 
not just about 
providing 
affordable 
homes, 
regeneration of 
areas is also 
involved. Greater 
focus on loans 
than grants.  

22/4/15 Greenspace 
Development Officer 
Heather Battinson-
Howard 

Input sought on on-going & future 
projects being carried out within the 
Neighbourhood Development Team 

Environmental 
Improvement 
Toolkit has been 
developed and 
residents are able 
to apply for 
money to fund 
community 
development 
projects 

Information included as 
part of theme five. 
Comments noted and 
no further action 
required 

23/4/15 Commissioning & 
Contracting Officer, 
Community Support 
Services. -Jeni Andrews  

Input sought on the housing and support 
issues concerning Community Support 
Clients.   
 
Actions and timelines sought for the 
Action Plan.  

Growing problem 
with 
accommodation 
and work 
placements for 
vulnerable adults. 
Social Services 
and Well-being 
(Wales) Act has 
led to a change in 
how client 

Information included as 
part of theme three.  
Comments noted and 
amendments made. 

7 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 76



 

focussed services 
are provided 

27/4/15 Public Protection 
Manager – Emlyn Jones 

Input sought on issues affecting Public 
Protection and actions to be included in 
the Action Plan. 

New landlord 
licencing scheme 
to be included 
along with work 
around raising 
standards in poor 
quality rented 
accommodation 
in the County 

Information included as 
part of theme three.  
Comments noted and 
amendments made. 

29/4/15 RSL’s Development managers meeting where 
summaries of the Strategy were handed 
out and input sought from their 
respective organisations.  

Positive feedback 
on Strategy 
themes. Queries 
over whether 
Council would be 
building homes 
soon.  

Comments noted and 
no further action 
required 

5/5/15 Energy Conservation 
Officer – Martyn Smith 

Discussion of actions  Information 
received on how 
the Energy 
Conservation 
project operates 

Information included as 
part of theme three.  
Comments noted and 
amendments made. 

6/5/15 Commissioning & 
Contracting Officer, 
Community Support 
Services. -Jeni Andrews  
 
Extra Care Sheltered 
Housing Project Officer 
- Eileen Woods 

Input sought on the housing and support 
issues concerning Community Support 
Clients and Extra Care development.   
 
Actions and timelines sought for the 
Action Plan.  

Community 
Services 
Commissioning 
Strategy and 
Position 
Statement 
provided.  
Extra Care needs 
discussed, also a 

Information included as 
part of theme three.  
Comments noted and 
amendments made. 

8 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 77



 

useful way of 
accommodating 
vulnerable adults 
with older parents 

18/5/15 Lead Members meeting Themes 1 & 2 discussed and feedback 
taken 

Themes 
discussed and 
amendments 
suggested 

Comments noted and 
amendments made. 

26/5/15 Lead Members meeting  Themes 3, 4 & 5 discussed and 
feedback taken 

Themes 
discussed and 
amendments 
suggested 

Comments noted and 
amendments made. 

28/5/15 Communities Scrutiny Update on progress given to 
Communities Scrutiny committee  

Themes 
discussed and 
amendments 
suggested 

Comments noted and 
amendments made. 

15/6/15 Lisa Williams – Health & 
Social development 
Officer DVSC, Sophie 
Haworth - Booth – 
Supporting People,  
Heidi Gray – Strategic 
Planning Officer DCC, 
Liz Green – Principal 
Health Impact 
Assessment 
Development Officer, 
Delyth W Jones – 
Principal Public Health 
Officer, Public Health 
Wales, Lara Griffiths – 
Senior Officer Strategic 

Health Impact Assessment carried out 
on the draft Housing Strategy.  

Health Impact 
Assessment 
carried out on the 
draft Housing 
Strategy. 

Information included as 
part of the Strategy.  
Full report included as 
Appendix (A) 
Comments noted and 
amendments made.  

9 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 78



 

Planning & Housing, 
Sophie Howarth-Booth – 
Supporting People  

15/6/15 Sophie Howarth-Booth – 
Supporting People 

Discussion on current Supporting People 
projects,  

Supporting 
People Local 
Commissioning 
Strategy provided 
for information for 
the Strategy 

Information included as 
part of the Strategy.  
Comments noted and 
amendments made 

16/6/15 Comments received from 
Business Improvement 
& Modernisation.  

Comments noted Comments 
received 
regarding 
consistency with 
abbreviations and 
terminology.  
Sustainability of 
new development 
with regards not 
just to energy 
efficiency but also 
homes meeting 
changing future 
resident needs. 
Reference made 
to corporate ABC 
approach to 
services and the 
need to refer to 
Homes rather 
Houses.   

Information included as 
part of the Strategy. 
Much of the comment 
applies to Planning 
Policy, i.e. Open Space 
being provided on new 
developments etc.  
Comments noted and 
amendments made 

10 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 79



 

25/6/15 Paul Mead – Planning 
Manager 
Emlyn Jones – Public 
Protection Manager 

Discussion concerning caravan site 
management and future HMO action for 
inclusion in the Housing Strategy.    

Information 
provided 
regarding 
caravan site 
enforcement and 
private rented 
sector housing 
standards  

Information included as 
part of the Strategy. 
Comments noted and 
amendments made 

15/7/15 Catrin Roberts – 
Strategic Planning & 
Housing; Welsh 
Language Champion 

Discussion regarding the Welsh 
Language Impact on the Housing 
Strategy.  

Impact on the 
Welsh Language 
Assessment 
undertaken.   

Information included as 
part of the Strategy. 
Comments noted and 
amendments made 

30/7/15 Lead Members Meeting  Update on progress of the drafting of the 
Housing Strategy.  

Themes 
discussed and 
amendments 
suggested 

Comments noted and 
amendments made. 

17/8/15 Housing Strategy 
Workshop with Housing, 
Repairs & 
Maintenance, 
Homelessness, Youth 
Services, Head of 
Service – Jamie Groves 
& Cllr B Smith 

Half day workshop held with Housing 
department to gain their input, insight 
into the issues they are encountering 
and feel should be addressed.  

Workshop 
facilitated on the 
Housing Strategy 
themes and 
actions.  

The majority of 
comments related to 
issues covered in the 
Strategy, but some 
additional comments 
were made regarding 
the wording and focus 
of theme 5 which have 
been included as part of 
the Strategy. Full report 
included as Appendix 
(B) 
Comments noted and 
amendments made 

11 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 80



 

11/9/15 Senior Officer Housing 
Solutions 
(Homelessness) – 
Stephen Convill 

Discussion on Homelessness issues & 
actions being progressed in light of the 
Housing (Wales) Act 2014.  

Information 
provided 
regarding 
housing solutions 
work with the 
private rented 
sector and 
proactive work in 
preventing 
homelessness 

Information included as 
part of the Strategy. 
Comments noted and 
amendments made 

22/9/15 Lead Members Meeting Draft Action Plan discussed Themes 
discussed and 
amendments 
suggested 

Comments noted and 
amendments made. 

6/10/15 Meeting with Group 
Leaders 

Housing Strategy discussed.   Themes 
discussed and 
amendments 
suggested 

Comments noted and 
amendments made. 

3/11/15 All Councillors Cllr Barbara Smith has made a copy of 
the draft Housing Strategy available on 
Moderngov and sent a personal email to 
all councillors inviting comments on the 
document which could be put forward to 
Scrutiny Committee for discussion.  

No feedback 
received 

No further action 
required 

5/11/15 Communities Scrutiny Discussion on draft Housing Strategy.  Issues regarding 
Empty Homes, 
HMO’s, housing 
waiting lists, 
hamlet 
development, 
Young People, 
cradle to grave 

Comments related to 
issues covered in the 
Strategy. Full report in 
Appendix (C)  
Comments noted and 
amendments made 

12 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 81



 

approach to 
housing, tenant 
engagement and 
partnership 
working with 
Housing 
Associations 

10/11/15 Meeting with Lead 
Members 

Feedback from Communities Scrutiny Themes 
discussed and 
amendments 
suggested 

Comments noted and 
amendments made. 

16/11/15 Meeting with Phil Gilroy, 
John Sweeney, Gwynfor 
Griffiths  

Input into draft Housing Strategy & 
Action Plan 

Draft Action Plan 
discussed and 
amendments 
suggested 

Comments noted and 
amendments made. 

18/11/15 Workshop with SLT 
members 

Input into draft Housing Strategy & 
Action Plan 

Draft Action Plan 
discussed and 
amendments 
suggested 

Comments noted and 
amendments made. 

 

 

  

13 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 82



 

Appendix (A) Health Impact Assessment 
Rapid desktop Health Impact Assessment of Draft Housing Strategy  

The draft Strategy was Health Impact assessed looking at how the action s in the plan were likely to affect vulnerable 
groups: 

Vulnerable groups considered: 

• Children and young people 
 

• Domestic abuse – groups affected 
 

• Learning disability – specialist 
 

• Children’s services – children with learning 
disabilities 

 
• General population 

 
• Homeless people 

 
• Gypsy and travellers – (needs assessment been 

undertaken) 
 

• Armed forces 
 

• Carers 
 

• Ex-offenders 
 

• Asylum seekers 
 

• Individuals with chronic conditions 
 

• Transient community 
 

• BME 
 

Groups affected: 

• Private landlords and the business sector 
• Employees who are carers 

 

14 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 83



 

Lifestyles 
Positives/opportunities Negatives or unintended consequences/gaps 

or opportunities  
Action: 
 

Allotments – older people and 
exercise – less 
falls/intergenerational work which 
has led to less anti-social 
behaviour 
Support individuals to change their 
current lifestyle choices 
More disposable income to support 
healthy living (e.g. fuel poverty) 
Engagement with communities – 
provides opportunities for 
improvement in healthier lifestyles 
Reduction in potential harmful 
behaviours on developing sites eg 
HWB 
Less illness – access to NHS 
services 
Better school attainment 
Additional Licensing Scheme in 
place  

Publicity – try and ensure that more of this is 
shared 
Accessibility of house – individuals unable to 
get around 
Heat or eat. 

Look at good practice from 
elsewhere re: publicity 
DFG – scope? 
Maximise energy efficiency funding 
available – targeting individual 
households most in need 

 

Social and community influences 
Positives/opportunities Negatives or unintended consequences/gaps 

or opportunities  
Action: 
 

Promotes social inclusion 
Individuals getting to know their 
neighbours and feeling a sense of 
belonging 

House sharing – for anyone… a potential 
opportunity – e.g. Llangollen – card in window. 
Supporting individuals to stay in their own 
homes but in rural areas there is a reduction in 
facilities and services – may lead to social 

Explore House sharing 
Linking in with ABCD (corporate 
work)/Community Led conversations 
(Social Services) project which is 

15 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 84



 

Reduction in perception of fear of 
crime and disorder  
Building neighbourhoods  - 
influence where this is social 
housing 
Welsh language 
 
 
 
 
 

isolation and sense of community – How can 
Housing department facilitate this with other 
departments and facilities? 
How does this strategy influence the larger 
developments e.g. Bodelwyddan. 
How can we influence on some of our larger 
estates – e.g. Myddleton Park… - ? facilitate 
open forums and conversations 
Potential to include the requirement for 
community cohesiveness, sense of place, 
neighbourhood… in brief for developers of large 
sites…  
Place planning a potential – start with the 
community/ ?links with Town and Area Plans  

been led by DVSC on behalf of 
Wellbeing Plan 
Delivery plan will influence new 
developments 
Addressing isolation on larger 
estates – community cohesion – 
could adopt ABCD approach and 
links with Ageing Well strategy… 
Place planning – further discussion 
on this issue in Authority 

 

Living and environmental conditions affecting health 
Positives/opportunities Negatives or unintended 

consequences/gaps or opportunities  
Action: 
 

Less illness – less access to NHS 
Improved housing standards – contribute 
to improved health 
Energy efficiency work – impact on all on 
lower incomes 
Individuals who live in caravans – will be 
identified and supported to secure a 
permanent dwelling 
Lifetime homes - supports specific groups 
with disability – e.g. wheel chair access etc. 
Lifetime homes - reduction in care home 
access 
Empty homes strategy – reduces eyesores 
Ageing Well plan – supports this work 

Maintaining achieved quality standard of 
WHQS (covered) 
Adaptations – e.g. wheel chair access 
more of a challenge in private rented 
sector 
market for accessible properties – no 
evidence available to support this held 
centrally 
Landlords selling property if standards 
are enforced, may lead to abandoned 
property 
Welsh Agent and Landlord Licensing 
Schemes – potential reduction in stock 
available to rent 

Build relationships with private 
landlords 
Promotion of WALLS to current 
landlords – SARTH project could 
take forward 
Strategy to be developed to 
address needs of caravan 
occupants 

16 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 85



 

Theme 5 supports this priority 
Accessibility a norm as they are built – 
conform with life time homes if built by 
DCC 
 

Impact on local economy of individuals 
from caravan parks who may need to 
move owing to new DCC approach – 
displacement and where they go. 
Will have an impact on those on lower 
income  

 

Economic Conditions affecting health 
Positives/opportunities Negatives or unintended 

consequences/gaps or opportunities  
Action 

Local jobs for local people – 
apprenticeships 
Local affordable housing more disposable 
income – local growth 
May encourage individuals into work 
 

Limiting household income – 23K benefit 
cap - 
Bedroom tax – support to date for 
individuals to remain in property – 
outlook is that this will change in the 
future and could lead to homelessness 

Continued monitoring of situation 

 

Access and quality of services 
Positives/opportunities Negatives or unintended 

consequences/gaps or opportunities  
Action 

Actively facilitating creation of housing in 
rural areas 
Home Buy scheme – deposit provided –rural 
areas/veterans/current social 
tenancy/specialist needs 
Mechanisms for conversations with partners 
specifically on local services e.g. 
health/schools – large developments 
Apprenticeships 
Links with Digital Denbighshire  

Lack of access to transport could have an 
impact on the more rural areas 
Infrastructure Plan – needs to be 
highlighted 
Single Access Route to Housing – 
implementation required early 2016 
 

Infrastructure Plan – needs to 
be referenced in introduction 
Single Access Route to Housing 
– implementation required 
early 2016  
Reflect work undertaken by 
Supporting People on Domestic 
Violence 

17 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 86



 

 

Macro-economic, environmental and sustainability factors 

 
Positives/opportunities 

 
Negatives or unintended 
consequences/gaps or opportunities  Action 

Strategic equality plan – supports 
Economic development in the county 
Apprenticeships 
Creates jobs 
Reduced density housing/green spaces 
increased - Rhyl 
 

Registration 
Welfare reform – benefit cap 
Needs more reference in the first section to 
Wellbeing plan etc. – integration into 
themes 
Environmental changes/climate change 
needs referenced 
Sensitive – AONBs/SSSIs/flood risk 
 

Reference in the Strategy to the 
environmental changes and 
sensitive as above 

 
  

18 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 87



 

Appendix (B) Housing Strategy Workshop 17/8/15 
Introduction 

On August 17th 2015, a Housing Strategy workshop was held at the Pavilion Theatre in Rhyl, to give housing staff an 
opportunity to comment and influence the Housing Strategy which is currently in development.  

Methodology 

All members of the department were invited and 34 people attended on the day. The workshop was independently 
facilitated by Sian Owen, and everyone was encouraged to make a contribution. Participants were divided into 5 groups 
with experience from all aspects of Housing reflected in the groups. The five themes of the Strategy were discussed by 
each group, with comments being captured in the form of ‘post-its’ on flipchart paper for each theme; each theme was 
passed around each group for input. There was a final session which collated the main comments that had come out of 
the session and any additional feedback, which the staff felt was important.   

This report summarises the comments and input received on the day and how the information will be used to inform the 
Housing Strategy.  

Theme One: More Homes to Meet Local Need & Demand 
No. Comment Response 
1 Shortage of available 

Denbighshire owned 
land. 

Review of all public land holdings in Denbighshire. (HS – Theme 2, Page. 35) 

2 Do we consider the 
need / demand with 
the welfare reform? 

The change in housing needs due to the impact of Welfare Reform is addressed in (HS – 
Theme 4, Page. 43) 

3 In rural stock, there 
are issues with 
employment and 
transport. 

The Economic & Community Ambition Strategy deals with DCC’s approach to this and is 
referenced throughout the Strategy (HS – Local Context. Page 14, Underlying Principles Page.18 
&  Theme 1. Page 20. Appendix (ii) Key Local Plans & Strategies. Page 98) 

19 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 88



 

4 Too similar to the 
“Affordable Homes 
theme” – same issues. 

Justification- although many key issues overlap, there is a key focus on delivering more 
affordable homes in DCC and so has been included as a separate theme. (HS – Underlying 
Principles Page. 17) 

5 There is a stigma 
associated with 
social/affordable 
housing. 

Recognised as a barrier to affordable housing (HS Theme 2, Page 31). Comment noted as 
an issue for social housing.  

6 Is local need assessed 
against demand in the 
correct way? 

Housing Need is assessed and monitored on a two-yearly basis, through the Local 
Housing Market Assessment (LHMA). This is a statutory requirement by WG and follows 
a set methodology to compile it. (HS-Theme 1, Page 20, 22 & 26) 

7 Review DCC garage 
sites. 

The review of public land holdings, council land and property assets will include 
reviewing garage sites (HS – Theme 2: Page 35) 

8 Denbighshire are 
breaking the law by 
not providing a 
provision for Gypsies 
and Travellers. 

The Gypsy & Traveller Accommodation Needs Assessment is currently being undertaken 
as the previous one is now outdated. Action/inclusion on its findings will be taken by 
DCC and forms part of the Strategy (HS -Theme 1. Page 25)  

9 The demand for 
Council housing is 
strong. 

Affordable Housing includes Council Housing and options to increase stock are being 
investigated and form part of the Strategy (HS – Theme 2, Page 33) 
Prioritisation for allocation of Council Housing has been dealt with under the SARTH 
project which is due to be implemented in 2016 and forms part of the HS (HS – Theme 4. 
Page 54)  

10 There is a lack of one 
and four bedroom 
properties in current 
stock. 

The LHMA shows evidence for smaller properties across Denbighshire due partly 
because of the change in demographic; lots of smaller households emerging and 
Welfare Reform effects. The study has not found any need for larger properties and 
actually states there is an oversupply of larger properties in Denbighshire. This is 
consistent with previous independent surveys carried out by Glyndwr University. (HS 
Theme 1. Page 22) 

20 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 89



 

11 There is currently only 
one empty homes 
officer (x2) 

Only one Empty Homes Officer employed by DCC but there is also an Empty Homes 
Officer employed by North Wales Housing who works closely with the DCC officer and 
Strategic Planning & Housing. Referred to in the Strategy (HS Theme 1. Page 24/ Theme 5. 
Page 60) 

12 Home/tenancy for life 
guarantee – 
Denbighshire 

Comments noted- issue for business plan for housing? Or vision for housing? With 
limited resources difficult to meet this commitment.  

13 CPO’s should be 
utilised more often 

Compulsory Purchase Orders are part of an LA’s arsenal in dealing with problematic 
properties, however they are costly and a very lengthy process and should only be 
undertaken as a last resort, if there are health & safety or other significant 
considerations.  

14 Good management Unclear of the relevance of this comment to the theme 

15 Nimbyism New homes are needed across the county, the 5 year land supply identified in the Local 
Development Plan (LDP, consulted on and identified where these properties could be 
built.  Development Briefs are being drawn up for larger sites, in which the local people 
have an opportunity to feed into the planning process (HS – Theme 1. Page 23) 

16 Re-classification of 
sheltered housing. 
(Supported 
Independent Living – 
SIL) 

There is a review of SIL accommodation and support planned as part of the Strategy (HS 
–Theme 4. Page 56)  

17 Re-classification opens 
up right to buy issues 
(could lose this stock) 

WG have introduced restrictions on the discounts available for RTB and in the next 
parliament are planning legislation to rescind RTB altogether in social stock  (HS – Theme 
2: Page 33) 

18 Security of tenure See point 12 

19 Empty homes officer to 
work more with the 
PRS- (Housing 
Solutions) team 

Empty Homes work is limited by engagement of householders, so choice of housing is 
restricted, but the department works with Strategic Housing & Planning to identify the 
most suitable properties. Properties which are rented out through the loan scheme are 
rented via an RSL. (HS – Theme 1. Page 25) 

21 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 90



 

20 Analysis of waiting 
lists required. 

Operational issue - The introduction of SARTH will help address this. Also each year a 
whole county list is compiled, which is  used strategically by Strategic Housing & 
Planning   

21 There is a lack of re-
designation of DCC 
stock 

See response to point 16 and review of council assets in point 7 

22 Redevelop existing 
types of propertied 
into new homes – 
using the existing 
footprint. 

This approach is being looked at as part of the options now open due to the change in 
the HRA subsidy system (HS- Theme 5. Page 62) 

23 Offer incentives for 
moving into more 
suitable 
accommodation. 

Operational issue - Incentives and management moves are currently possible under 
existing departmental processes, better promotion to tenants? 

24 Guaranteed rents for 
empty homes brought 
back into use. 

Operational issue- Is there budget available for paying for ‘void’ periods?  

25 7500 new homes 
planned 

Local Development Plan has identified that 7500 homes need to be built in 
Denbighshire during the period 2006-2021 referenced in: (HS – Theme 1. Page 23) 

26 Break down of stereo 
typical views of 
Gypsies and Travellers 
to facilitate and ease 
development. How will 
a site be acquired in 
absence of finance – if 
Denbighshire do not 
own land to make 

Decisions regarding the provision of a Gypsy & Traveller site will be made once the 
outcome of the Accommodation Needs Assessment is known. (HS Theme 1 Page 25) 

22 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 91



 

available – private 
finance?  

27 We need to look at and 
include within this 
temporary 
accommodation for 
homeless people that 
is good standard and 
affordable 

Accommodation for people affected by homelessness is dealt with comprehensively in 
(HS Theme 4. Page 51- 53) 

 

Theme Two: Creating a Supply of Affordable Notes 
Comment Response 

Develop shared living 
options, intensive 
investigations mean 
increased costs 

Shared living arrangements are currently being investigated. (HS Theme 4, Page 52). Not 
sure what second part of the sentence relates to?  

Is home share a possibility? (HS Theme 4, Page 52) 

Discussion with options to 
sustain tenancy  / offer other 
solutions at the application 
stage 

The introduction of SARTH will introduce the practice of giving relevant housing 
options information at the time of applying to go onto the housing waiting list. (HS 
Theme 4, Page 55) 

There is a big difference in 
the look of affordable homes 
compared to more expensive 
properties on a new build 
estate – e.g.  10 x 5 bed 
houses and 2 x 2 bed semi-
detached houses. 

Comments noted - the LHMA gives us information on the kind of affordable houses 
that are required, developers build out to make the most profit, however increased 
efforts are being made at planning stage to influence the developer’s plans when 
building out sites.  

23 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 92



 

Bring in incentives for people 
to give up social housing to 
purchase 

The affordable housing Homebuy scheme prioritises social housing tenants, for this 
reason. Affordable Housing Schemes will be promoted and marketed as part of this 
Strategy (HS Theme 2, Page 34) 

More shared ownership / low 
cost home ownership 
initiatives developed by RSLs 
with private finance? 

Through the change in HRA financing this is now something the Council will also be 
able to do. (HS Theme 2, Page 31) 

DCC – adopt shared 
ownership 30/40 plus 
assisted home purchase 

Affordable Housing schemes already have assisted ownership schemes. (HS Theme 2, 
Page 31) 

It is vital to assess the 
demand and housing need 

Local Housing Market Assessment does this. (HS-Theme 1, Page 20, 22 & 26) 

Is there a need for attracting 
large scale institutional 
investment to expand the 
range and options within the 
Private Rented Sector 

Comments noted and have been passed onto the relevant departmental staff for 
further action/inclusion.  

Communal flats and young 
families require support 

Supporting people programme provides a tenancy support service for a diverse range 
of people. Additional support may be sourced through Housing Services, through 
tenant liaison, neighbourhood development and neighbourhood officers. (HS Theme 4, 
Page 49) 

There is an identified need, 
but there is a lack of single 
person accommodation for 
younger people. 

(HS Theme 4, Page 52) 

It is vital to work with others 
throughout the process 

The action points in the Housing Strategy fall under several different departments and 
external partners such as RSL’s.  

24 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 93



 

Need to proactively market 
affordable housing – people 
are unaware of it 

Addressed in the Strategy. (HS Theme 2, Page 31) 

Develop or redevelop 
existing stock to meet the 
need – Stock across the 
Council, not just housing 

Addressed in the Strategy (HS Theme 5, page 62) 
Query over what is meant by stock across the council- not just housing?  

Don’t allow owner occupiers 
with substantial equity to be 
allocated social housing and 
use the owned property as a 
cash cow 

Current allocations policy and the new policy proposed under SARTH are based on 
housing need. If the current property is unsuitable for someone and they have a high 
housing need then we have a statutory duty to address that. Current UK legislation 
would not allow us to put a second charge on someone’s home or force them to sell in 
these circumstances. (HS Theme 4, Page 55) 

Employment makes homes 
and living affordable 

Neighbourhood development is investigating opportunities to give tenants work skills 
by working with different delivery partners. (Operational issue in Housing)  Generally 
in the County stimulating employment and the economy falls under the Economic & 
Community Ambition Strategy. 

Define affordable – is it really 
affordable 

Affordable housing rent/sale price is calculated by using median point of local 
incomes and local market data. The affordable housing definition has been approved 
by Council and is based on the definition set down by Welsh Government.  (HS Theme 2, 
page 27) 

There is a lack of knowledge 
as to who lives in our 
properties and if the housing 
stock is being used 
appropriately 

Operational issue regarding tenant and stock profiling, now part of Housing’s business 
plan.  

Tenants require support to 
manage their money 

Supporting people programme provides a tenancy support service for a diverse range 
of people. Additional support may be sourced through Housing Services, through 
tenant liaison, neighbourhood development, income officers and neighbourhood 
officers. (HS Theme 4, Page 49) 

25 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 94



 

There is a lack of suitable 
land in appropriate places 

DCC is asset poor in relation to suitable housing land but the review of public land 
holdings, council land and property assets may discover some suitable sites. (HS – 
Theme 2: Page 35) 

Corporate land mapping is 
vital and up to date 
information is required. 

DCC is asset poor in relation to suitable housing land but the review of public land 
holdings, council land and property assets may discover some suitable sites. (HS – 
Theme 2: Page 35) 

Houses are allocated by need 
not by what they want, a 
more balanced approach is 
needed 

Operational issue - Housing is a very scarce resource and unfortunately opportunities 
for giving choices are very limited.  

Buy into shared home 
ownership 

Through the change in HRA financing this is now something the Council will also be 
able to do. (HS Theme 2, Page 31) 

DCC buy properties and have 
shared ownership with 
people wishing to purchase a 
property (as mortgages are 
more affordable than rent) 
and is “affordable” with no 
deposit. DCC will not lose 
the money as the property is 
jointly owned 

Through the change in HRA financing this is now something the Council will also be 
able to do. (HS Theme 2, Page 31) 

There is a concern that some 
private landlords will not 
take vulnerable  tenants and 
a lack of support is available 

Private landlords generally are in business to make a profit. Work from the Housing 
Choices team with landlords has been on-going to see what inducements can be 
offered to encourage landlords to take on more difficult/vulnerable tenants. (HS Theme 
4, Page 52). 

DCC could look into the 
opportunity for co-housing / 
shared housing e.g. using a 
three bed property for three 
single people 

Addressed in the Strategy, with regards to council stock this could be an operational 
opportunity (HS Theme 4, Page 52). 

26 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 95



 

Incentive schemes / social 
letting agencies – support for 
private landlords needed 

Addressed in the strategy (HS Theme 4, Page 52). 

 

Theme Three: Ensuring Safe & Healthy Homes 
Comment Response 

The first outcome should be 
modified to read ‘Council 
and housing association 
accommodations is brought 
up to Welsh Housing Quality 
Standards and maintained’ 

Comments noted and have been passed onto the relevant departmental staff for 
further action/inclusion.  

How will the WHQS be 
maintained 

Addressed in the Strategy (HS Theme 3, page 36) 

What are WHQS’s, are they 
English 

Welsh Housing Quality Standards – no, they are not English (HS Theme 3, page 36) 

Safe and Healthy homes are 
more than just bricks and 
mortar and extends to the 
surrounding area 

Regeneration programme and Eyesore sites project works extensively working on 
affecting neighbourhoods through development. There are also local safety groups 
which Housing personnel contribute to (HS Theme 3, page 39 & Theme 5, page 62)  

Pressure on enforcement to 
visit all PRS properties 

The private rented sector makes up 16% of the accommodation available in 
Denbighshire. This would be in excess of 6384 properties to be visited and not 
feasible with staffing levels and data about rental properties known at this time. The 
introduction of the Landlord registration will help to focus work in this area. (HS Theme, 
page 37) 

Engagement is needed from 
all tenures 

Neighbourhood development & RSL’s are working across all tenures. (HS Theme 5, page 
51) 

27 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 96



 

What is the point of the fuel 
poverty database, action is 
needed to be more clear and 
focused 

Fuel poverty database forms part of the overall fuel poverty strategy which is 
monitored by corporate. Without establishing a baseline work can’t be targeted where 
it is needed most. (HS Theme 3, page 40) 

Landlords will be lost, which 
will affect supply 

Private landlords generally are in business to make a profit. Work from the Housing 
Choices team with landlords has been on-going to see what inducements can be 
offered to encourage landlords to take on more difficult/vulnerable tenants. (HS Theme 
4, Page 52). 

Housing could provide 
advice to private landlords 
on what WHQS are and what 
is expected from us by Welsh 
Government. 

WHQs are only applicable to the public sector. Private sector housing falls under the 
HHSRS – Housing Health & Safety Regulatory System. The introduction of the Landlord 
Registration Scheme will assist in enforcing standards.  (HS Theme 3, page 38) 

Homes should fit individual 
needs to help them feel safe 

Operational issue - Allocations process review for social housing? Adaptions grants 
and loans are available for the private sector (HS Theme 3, page 39) 

Mapping and enforcement is 
required of holiday parks 
and their licences 

Addressed in the Strategy (HS Theme 3, page 41) 

Departments need to share 
data and information 

Issues about sharing relevant data- Data Protection Act. Information can only be 
collected for a specific purpose and shared with permission from the persons 
concerned. However, the legal department recently ran a course explaining what data 
could be shared and will answer any queries on this.  

Multi agency working needs 
to be improved, both internal 
and external 

Comments noted and have been passed onto the relevant departmental staff for 
further action/inclusion. 

Look at life time homes and 
approach new developments 

All new social housing already incorporates the lifetime homes guidance as part of the 
requirements under Design Quality Regulations, required by WG. Not enforceable for 
open market housing, although the space standards we have for properties are very 
generous. (HS Theme 3, page 39) 

28 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 97



 

How will standards be 
streamlined across all 
tenures 

Design standards are monitored in the planning stages of developments (HS Theme 3, 
page 39) 

A whole area approach is 
required from housing 
officers on estates – not just 
council stock 

Redevelopment of council estates will be following a full review and this will be taken 
account of (HS Theme 5, page 62) 

Open space should be 
provided where necessary / 
needed 

Open Space provision/contribution is a requirement at the planning stage of all 
developments and in calculated according to national policy 

Procurement on a larger 
scale should be open to the 
private sector 

Procurement is controlled by UK/WG legislation. Project on-going within the Council to 
review our processes  

Registered landlords “healthy 
homes” Good practice in 
Liverpool 

Healthy Homes scheme is very similar to the ‘Prevention of Falls within the Home’ 
multi-agency project currently being piloted in Denbighshire (HS Theme 4, page 47) 

Housing solutions team 
already underway on 
developing PRS action plan 
to prevent homelessness. If 
developing wider PRS action 
plan should link up to this. 
Housing solutions with WG 
grant has invested in “lets 
help you” 

Comments noted – Amendments made following input from Housing Solutions 
(Stephen Convill/John Sweeney).  

Parking and lighting needs to 
be improved 

‘Safer by design’ are addressed in planning stage for new developments on older 
council housing type estates, we are restricted due to dwelling density and layout, but 
redevelopment of areas will take this into account.  (HS Theme 5, page 62) 

There should be a whole 
council approach 

Comments noted and have been passed onto the relevant departmental staff for 
further action/inclusion.  

29 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 98



 

(environmental health etc.), 
not just housing 

Better / improved housing 
enforcement orders are 
needed 

Clarification needed from poster, what do you think is wrong with the 
system/department now?  

PRS to have a housing 
standard 

HHSRS system exists for the PRS; anything more would require legislative change.  

Charge for service to PRS Comments noted- what services are proposed?  

Look at what is being 
undertaken by housing 
solutions with PRS 

Comments noted - Input required from Housing Solutions (Stephen Convill/John 
Sweeney) on what their plans are and how other departments can assist. 

There is the option of 
housing to supply temporary 
accommodation for better 
standards than PRS etc. 

Accommodation for people affected by homelessness is dealt with comprehensively in 
(HS Theme 4. Page 51- 53) 

Support landlords in the PRS 
with new WAG registration 
and regulations 

Operational issue for Enforcement department, comments noted to check for actions 
surrounding this 

All new PRS properties to be 
inspected by enforcement 

The private rented sector makes up 16% of the accommodation available in 
Denbighshire. This would be in excess of 6384 properties to be visited and not 
feasible with staffing levels and data about rental properties known at this time. The 
introduction of the Landlord registration will help to focus work in this area. (HS Theme, 
page 37) 

 

Theme Four: Homes & Support for Vulnerable People 
Comments Response 

Homes must be affordable 
and have easy access, how 

Social and Intermediate Housing are the most affordable types of housing rents are the 
lowest available and can offer advice and support is offered through the landlord 

30 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 99



 

to access support – money, 
home help etc. 

function. Private Rented Sector tenants and Owner Occupiers can approach the Council 
directly or advocates such as CAB to receive signposting regarding advice and support 
issues 

Joined up working with 
other departments and 
agencies is required. 

Comments noted and have been passed onto the relevant departmental staff for 
further action/inclusion.  

Need to engage with 
vulnerable people – how can 
we do this? Sometimes 
people don’t want to engage 
with us because we are the 
‘Council’ 

Comments noted and have been passed onto the relevant departmental staff for 
further action/inclusion.  

There are different types of 
engagement 

Comments noted and have been passed onto the relevant departmental staff for 
further action/inclusion. 

Housing solutions are 
already working on Social 
Letting Agency Development 
(Let Me Help You 
investment) 

Comments noted - Input required from Housing Solutions (Stephen Convill/John 
Sweeney) on what their plans are and how other departments can assist. 

We need to support and 
educate people in SIL to 
assist with independence 

There is a range of housing accommodation options for older people. Community 
Support Services have been adapting their services in line with the principles in the 
Social Services & Well-being Act 2014 and have introduced a greater focus of 
Independence, reablement and Choice for older and vulnerable people. (HS Theme 4, 
page 44) 

We need to make links to 
the financial inclusion 
agenda and digital inclusion 
issues. 

Operational issue – Neighbourhood development are active in this area. Financial 
Inclusion training has been undertaken by all frontline staff and the principles should 
be incorporated in aspects of the day-to-day job. Digital Inclusion is being progressed 
on a strategic level through the Economic & Community Ambition Strategy. (HS Theme 5, 
page 58 & Theme 4, page 50) 

31 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 100



 

Too quick to label people as 
older (x2) 

To take action strategically for specific problems or issues it is necessary to use 
recognised demographic profiling terms. The Strategy demonstrates that we are aware 
that no ‘one size fits all approach’ can be used with any section of society. (HS Theme 1, 
page 22) 

Extra care where? Suitable sites are still being sought (HS Theme 4, page 46)  

There need to be flexible 
county boundaries and 
types of accommodation 

Collaborative working with other authorities and third party organisations is 
undertaken wherever possible as part of the Modernising Government programme 
(Corporate Plan). Flexible types of accommodation (HS Theme 4, page 51) 

All themes on page cross 
generations. 

It is recognised that the themes cut across all demographics, the themes relate to the 
focus of work to achieve the goals.  

Use existing hard to let 
stock to support homeless 
people including support 
networks 

Operational issue- has been approached before and not been successful, comments 
noted and passed onto housing managers to review.  

Long term support is 
needed for sustainable 
tenancy, not just short term 
for 6 weeks etc. Stop repeat 
homelessness. 

Supporting people programme provides a tenancy support service for a diverse range 
of people. Additional support may be sourced through Housing Services, through 
tenant liaison, neighbourhood development, income officers and neighbourhood 
officers. (HS Theme 4, Page 49) 

Support is needed, not hand 
holding and reliance 

Supporting people programme provides a tenancy support service for a diverse range 
of people. Individual support plans are made for each client to reflect support need. 
Additional support may be sourced through Housing Services, through tenant liaison, 
neighbourhood development, income officers and neighbourhood officers. (HS Theme 4, 
Page 49) 

Existing infrastructure e.g. 
schools and employment 

New housing development is required to make contributions to education, health and 
open space facilities. Whilst other public services review their own provision for 
suitability and sustainability, i.e.: Llangollen community hospital has been closed but a 
new health centre has been built to replace it.  

Should we work more with 
vulnerable ‘target’ groups in 

Comments noted and have been passed onto the relevant departmental staff for 
further action/inclusion. 

32 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 101



 

the community / housing 
etc. 

Cross county approach to 
development is requires, 
residents in the South of the 
County feel more isolated 

Comments noted, however housing development is led by the private sector so tends 
to be where most viable. Steps being taken by Strategic Housing & Planning to 
stimulate development countywide. (HS Theme 1, page 23) 

SARTH / simplification of 
the application process for 
all social housing is vital. 
*ADOPT* Single allocation 
policy already approved by 
Cabinet at DCC 

Operational issue - SARTH requires additional ICT and extra staffing resources to 
implement it 
(HS Theme 4, page 54) 

SARTH early 2016? Operational issue - SARTH requires additional ICT and extra staffing resources to 
implement it 
(HS Theme 4, page 54) 

There is discrimination from 
the wider community 
towards people with certain 
needs. 

Equalities issues underpin everything we do in the council, and we support any 
attempts to further the agenda for this important principle. Supporting people 
programme provides a tenancy support service for a diverse range of people. Individual 
support plans are made for each client to reflect support need. Additional support may 
be sourced through Community Support Services, Housing Services, through tenant 
liaison, neighbourhood development, income officers and neighbourhood officers. (HS 
Theme 4, Page 49) 

Vulnerable  people have 
complex needs 

Supporting people programme provides a tenancy support service for a diverse range 
of people. Individual support plans are made for each client to reflect support need. 
Additional support may be sourced through Community Support Services, Housing 
Services, through tenant liaison, neighbourhood development, income officers and 
neighbourhood officers. (HS Theme 4, Page 49) 

People with learning 
disabilities require 
supported accommodation 

Specific housing opportunities are sourced with RSL’s and third party organisations as 
detailed in (HS Theme 4, page 47) Supporting people programme provides a tenancy 
support service for a diverse range of people. Individual support plans are made for 

33 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 102



 

each client to reflect support need. Additional support may be sourced through 
Community Support Services, Housing Services, through tenant liaison, neighbourhood 
development, income officers and neighbourhood officers. (HS Theme 4, Page 49) 

There should be trigger 
points for procurement and 
group working should be 
encouraged. 
There should be better 
communication between 
DCC departments 

Procurement is controlled by UK/WG legislation. Project on-going within the Council to 
review our processes 

Youth services should be 
involved regarding 
‘community engagement’ 
for youths and families. 

Comments noted and have been passed onto the relevant departmental staff for 
further action/inclusion. 

Multiply support agencies 
need to work together to 
support residents. 

Supporting people programme provides a tenancy support service for a diverse range 
of people. Individual support plans are made for each client to reflect support need. 
Support is delivered through a variety of agencies dependent on the lead need.  
Additional support may be sourced through Community Support Services, Housing 
Services, through tenant liaison, neighbourhood development, income officers and 
neighbourhood officers. (HS Theme 4, Page 49) 

 

Theme Five: Promoting & Supporting Communities 
Comments Response 

Should the name of the 
theme be changed to 
Housing’s role in promoting 
and supporting to build 
resilience? 

Comments noted and have been passed onto the relevant departmental staff. Name of 
theme changed to reflect comments 

34 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 103



 

Training and support needs 
to be right and sustainable. 

Supporting people programme provides a tenancy support service for a diverse range 
of people. Individual support plans are made for each client to reflect support need. 
Support is delivered through a variety of agencies dependent on the lead need.  
Additional support may be sourced through Community Support Services, Housing 
Services, through tenant liaison, neighbourhood development, income officers and 
neighbourhood officers. (HS Theme 4, Page 49) 

Rural communities need 
access to transport for work 
(subsidised) 

Infrastructure and sustainability falls under the Economic & Community Ambition 
Strategy, but it is considered as part of the planning process for all new build 
developments particularly in rural areas.   

Private landlords need to be 
engaged as community 
partners and players. 

Comments noted and have been passed onto the relevant departmental staff for 
further action/inclusion. 

Buy in needed from all of 
DCC to support project 

Which project? If this is the Housing Strategy, all departments have helped develop it 
and have action/inclusions in their business plans to enable it.  

Profiling together with Youth 
Service 

Comments noted and have been passed onto the relevant departmental staff for 
further action/inclusion. 

Luncheon Clubs, Fun days?  Comments noted and have been passed onto the relevant departmental staff for 
further action/inclusion. 

Partnership working with 
registered social landlords. 

Affordable housing development is currently undertaken strategically with RSL’s but 
community development work needs to be more collaborative. - Comments noted and 
have been passed onto the relevant departmental staff for further action/inclusion. 

Raise aspirations. Work to 
change people’s perceptions 
of the council and support, 
train and educate to make 
better places. 

Comments noted and have been passed onto the relevant departmental staff for 
further action/inclusion. 

Spend money improving 
gardens and historical un-

Small scale environmental improvements are being carried out in conjunction with the 
Neighbourhood Community Development section, which includes a green space 
officer. Land has already been repurposed (HS  Theme 5, page 62)  

35 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 104



 

useable outdoor space when 
let. 

Develop an integrated 
community. 

Addressed in the strategy (HS Theme 5) 

Don’t think of just tenants, 
think of the families too. 

Comments noted and have been passed onto the relevant departmental staff for 
further action/inclusion. 

Engage the community in 
what they need/want to 
improve this life experience 
e.g. through ‘people to 
people’ present part of the 
well-being plan. 

Addressed in the strategy (HS Theme 5) 

Create a partnership with 
empty homes officers. 

Comments noted and have been passed onto the relevant departmental staff for 
further action/inclusion. 

Explore external funding 
opportunities, not just HRA – 
Improvement grants etc. 
No longer have traditional 
council estates, most are 
60/40 split. Need to change 
approach. 

Through the change in HRA financing this is now something the Council will also be 
able to do. (HS Theme 2, Page 31) 

RSLs and other Landlords to 
maintain properties. 

RSL’s are required to meet and maintain properties to WHQs. Private sector housing 
falls under the HHSRS – Housing Health & Safety Regulatory System. The introduction 
of the Landlord Registration Scheme will assist in enforcing standards.  (HS Theme 3, 
page 38) 

Effective private renting 
strategy. Both landlords and 
tenants to mitigate business 
risk / provide more stability 
and reduce turnover. 

Comments noted - Input required from Housing Solutions (Stephen Convill/John 
Sweeney) on what their plans are and how other departments can assist. 

36 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 105



 

Engage the community – 
young and old. 

Addressed in the strategy (HS Theme 5, page 60) 

Buy back former RTB 
properties on open market 

Through the change in HRA financing this is now something the Council will also be 
able to do. (HS Theme 2, Page 31) 

Link the corporate ABCD 
approach and people to 
people initiative. 

Comments noted and have been passed onto the relevant departmental staff for 
further action/inclusion. 

Use volunteering strategy to 
help people in community 
contribute towards 
community well-being. 

Addressed in the strategy (HS Theme 5, page 57) 

Utilise community centres 
better – youth education and 
life skills. 

Addressed in the strategy (HS Theme 5, page 60) 

Use resource centres and 
youth services to lead on 
activities in community 
areas. 

Comments noted and have been passed onto the relevant departmental staff for 
further action/inclusion. 

More joined up working and 
initiatives. 

Comments noted and have been passed onto the relevant departmental staff for 
further action/inclusion. 

More effective NHS hospital 
discharge planning for 
homeless patients. 

Comments noted - Input required from Housing Solutions (Stephen Convill/John 
Sweeney) on how their plans to work with the NHS have progressed, on-going project. 

Tenant liaison must include 
the wider community 

Addressed in the strategy (HS Theme 5, page 57) 

Get people from the 
community to work on 
projects to gain skills for 
work opportunities 

Addressed in the strategy (HS Theme 5, page 57) 

37 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 106



 

What does an estate need to 
support community, all 
services, shops, nursery, and 
transport – not just houses? 
 

New housing development is required to make contributions to education, health and 
open space facilities. Whilst other public services review their own provision for 
suitability and sustainability, i.e.: Llangollen community hospital has been closed but a 
new health centre has been built to replace it. 

Housing services to be part 
of the community profiling in 
order to understand what 
resources are in 
communities: people, 
buildings, community assets. 

Comments noted and have been passed onto the relevant departmental staff for 
further action/inclusion. 

Develop young people’s 
engagement in community 
as part of the housing 
strategy – education 

Comments noted and have been passed onto the relevant departmental staff for 
further action/inclusion. 

Conversional re-designation 
of sheltered accommodation 
– extra care light. 

There is a review of SIL accommodation and support planned as part of the Strategy 
(HS –Theme 4. Page 56) 

Emotional and psychological 
‘buy in’ thus feeling well 
connected. 

Community Development work aims  to achieve this (HS Theme 5, page 57) 

Lack of engagement with the 
NHS in respect of 
enablement. 

Comments noted - Input required from Housing Solutions/SIL (John Sweeney) on how 
the plans to work with the NHS have progressed, on-going project. 

 

The workshop developed several ideas which have been incorporated in the Strategy 

 

38 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 107



 

Appendix (C) Draft Housing Strategy discussion at Communities Scrutiny – 5th November 
2015 
 

The Lead Member for Modernisation and Housing introduced the Strategic Housing and Planning Manager’s report and 
presented the Council’s Draft Housing Strategy and associated Delivery Plan for members’ observations, prior to its 
presentation to the Lead Members’ Steering Group the following week.  The Strategy, which would support the delivery 
of a number of the Council’s Corporate Priorities, would be presented to County Council in December 2015 for approval 
and adoption.  The progress in delivering a number of the Strategy’s actions would also likely feature in the Wales Audit 
Office’s (WAO) Corporate Assessment of Denbighshire County Council, due to take place in the autumn of 2016. 

 

During the discussion on the Strategy and Delivery Plan members raised the following points: 

• more stringent enforcement of planning and licensing conditions in relation to holiday caravans sites in the county, 
as proposed in the earlier report on the Committee’s business agenda on ‘Better Regulation of Caravans Sites 
Project’, could potentially impact on the Housing Strategy’s proposed delivery plan; 

• now that the Council had voluntary withdrawn from the Welsh Government’s (WG) Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
arrangements it would be expected to utilise the former HRA monies for the purpose of house building.  These 
new arrangements provided the Council with opportunities to maximise the benefits from the utilisation of the 
former HRA monies ; 

• the restrictions of the current Hamlets Policy were highlighted i.e. the fact that some hamlets did not want 
affordable housing as there were no employment prospects or local services available to attract people who needed 
affordable housing in those areas – no local schools or bus services.  This was further underlined by the fact that 
three local housing associations that had been approached by a landowner with a view to developing on land in an 
area which was within the Local Development Plan (LDP) had refused the offer on the grounds that they would not 
be able to deliver any development on it due to the constraints of the Hamlets Policy; 

39 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 108



 

• the availability and use of Council owned land also needed to be included in the Strategy’s delivery plan; 

• the need to ensure that the Council Housing waiting list was up to date, and the numbers waiting for council 
housing was regularly checked and verified.  There was also a need to make sure that the Council’s Affordable 
Housing register was current and to promote it across the county; 

• The Lead Officer – Community Housing was asked to consider keeping the housing ‘walkabouts’ at which local 
members accompanied housing officers visiting housing estates, as councillors were of the view that these were 
beneficial and useful 

 

Responding to members’ points the Lead Member for Modernisation and Housing and officers outlined the aims of each 
of the five themes in the Strategy and explained the how each theme complemented each other.  They advised that: 

 

• the constraints of the Hamlets Policy had been discussed by the Steering Group and action 1.5 of the Strategy’s 
Delivery Plan for 2015 – 2020 was aimed at addressing the difficulties caused by the Hamlets Policy; 

• Council owned land would be discussed as part of the actions to deliver the Delivery Plan once the Strategy had 
been approved and adopted by County Council,.  The actions in the Delivery Plan would be incorporated into each 
Service’s business plans; 

• with respect to the Council Housing list there were circa 3K applicants on the list at present, the current validity of 
these figures were checked on a regular basis, but it was an onerous and time consuming process as it had to be 
undertaken manually;   

• there were also other people in the communities who would not register for council housing as there was not any 
such housing available to them in the areas they wanted to reside.  The same was true of the Affordable Housing 
list.  Reference was made to work underway with Llandyrnog Community Council with a view to promoting the 

40 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 109



 

Affordable Housing list in that particular area.  This was also a manual time consuming process.  The Lead Member 
emphasised that local elected members had a role to play in promoting the availability of this list in their areas 
and the benefits to all concerned from promoting the list’s existence; 

• they synergy between the five different themes in the Housing Strategy were outlined and the need for effective 
cross-service and cross-sector work in order to realise the Strategy’s outcomes; 

• work was required in a bid to understand why developers were still reluctant to come forward to develop sites 
already identified under the LDP – whether there were any underlying economic  or other factors contributing to 
this reluctance; 

• the WAO was keen to know whether the Council was putting sufficient pressure on Registered Social Landlords 
(RSLs) to develop affordable housing.  It was also enquiring regarding the Council’s intentions for its HRA monies; 

• there was a need to secure the development of appropriate housing for residents, to meet all vulnerable individuals’ 
needs;  

• confirmed that the well-established Tenants Forum was still operating and there was a good level of tenant 
engagement with the Council.  However, there was always scope for improvement.  Generally tenant dissatisfaction 
seemed to stem from very local issues; 

• there may be a need to review Theme 5 of the Strategy, ‘Sustainable Communities’, with a view to strengthening 
it with respect to dealing with anti-social behaviour (ASBO); 

• the Council’s Corporate Executive Team (CET) were currently exploring governance options for the Strategy’s 
delivery.  The preference was not to have a Board oversee it.  There would definitely be a role for scrutiny in 
monitoring the Strategy’s delivery, in particular with respect to the delivery of the expected outcomes. 

Members acknowledged that all councillors had been given ample opportunity to contribute towards the draft 
strategy.  They would also have an important role in ensuring its delivery.  With a view to initiating the monitoring of the 

41 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 110



 

Strategy’s outcomes once adopted members agreed to seek advice from the Head of Business Improvement and 
Modernisation on the most appropriate time for commencing the monitoring role, having regard to the forthcoming 
Corporate Assessment.  

 

The Strategy would give the Council an opportunity to develop the full range of housing opportunities to suit residents’ 
needs from cradle to grave and improve the quality of life across the county.  The Committee: 

 

Resolved: - subject to the above observations and completion of the listed actions to 

 

(i) recommend that County Council, at its meeting in December 2015, approve and adopt the Draft Housing 
Strategy and associated Delivery Plan for the period 2015-2020; and  

(ii) that Scrutiny should periodically monitor the delivery of the Strategy’s outcomes. 

 

42 | P a g e  
 

T
udalen 111



M
ae tudalen hw

n yn fw
riadol w

ag



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Draft Denbighshire Housing Strategy   

November 2015 
 
 

Equality Impact Assessment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 113



 

1 

Local Housing Strategy Document 
 

Contact: 
 

Strategic Planning and Housing 
01824 706916 

Updated: November 2015 
 

  
 
1. What type of proposal is being assessed? 
 

A strategic or service plan 

 

2. Please describe the purpose of this proposal 
 

The strategy has been written to identify the strategic direction of housing and 
housing related services in Denbighshire for 2016-21 

 

3. Does this proposal require a full equality impact assessment? 
 (Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit above for guidance) 
 

Yes This strategy will impact employees of Denbighshire County 
Council  and residents of Denbighshire.  

 

4. Please provide a summary of the steps taken, and the 
information used, to carry out this assessment, including any 
engagement undertaken 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for guidance) 

 

The strategy has involved an extensive range of different consultation 
mechanisms.  Appendix 3 of the Full Council report  1 December 2015 provides 
further details regarding the engagement undertaken. The conclusions from the 
Affordable Housing Task & Finish Group and the Draft Housing Strategy were 
also considered by the Council's Communities Scrutiny Committee at their 
meetings in April and June 2015.  
 
Development of the Strategy has been based on comprehensive evidence and 
information relating to housing issues and demography in Denbighshire and the 
strategy has included an update on the statistical profile of Denbighshire, to 
ensure that all demographic groups are taken into account.  A summary of the 
background evidence and statistical information is attached as a background 
document to the Housing Strategy.  
 
 We have also used the Corporate Equality Impact Assessment toolkit to ensure 
that the implementation of the housing strategy will not have a detrimental impact 
on the employees and residents of Denbighshire. By ensuring appropriate 
research and formal consultations, we are confident that we have all that is 
reasonable to ensure that the implementation of the revised strategy will not have 
a negative impact on any protected characteristics.  
 

Tudalen 114



 

2 

Protected Groups - Facts and Figures 
 
Information collected from people who apply for or receive services, from surveys 
and other research, and from secondary data sources such as the census, 
national statistics, provides a clear profile of the housing customers and others 
who are potentially in housing need in the county. 
 
Population and Age 
 
The 2011 census showed the population of Denbighshire to be 93,724. Population 
projections by the ONS estimate that the county population will be in the region of 
98,000 by 2021. The combined groups from 65 onwards now represent an 
estimated 20,579 individuals, compared with 18,831, 11 years ago. With an 
estimated total population rise of 996 individuals in this period, the rise in this 
combined age group alone is 1,748. The 22% increase in the size of the 65 to 74 
age group represents the majority of this rise at the expense of every other 
category size except the 50 to 64 year olds. 
 
Council Tenants 
 
The Council owns 3,454 council properties and had completed tenant profiling for 
40.54% as of 26/11/13. Further work on this is proposed. There are approximately 
1,800 applicants on the council waiting list as of April 2015. There are currently 
1,200 units of DCC Sheltered accommodation and 139 units in Extra Care, spread 
over 3 schemes in the county. There are 2254 properties classed as general 
needs accommodation owned by DCC. Clwyd Alyn own 189 units of 
accommodation for older people with varying degrees of support. Grwp Cynefin 
own 113 units of accommodation for older people. Wales and West have 58 units 
of accommodation.    
 
Ethnicity 
 
According to the 2010 figures published by Welsh Government, 96.49% of the 
population of the county is White British. The entire Black and Minority Ethnic 
population is an estimated 3.5% 
 
Long Term Health Problem or Disability 
The Census 2011 data relating to the limiting of day to day activities by long term 
health problems of disabilities shows 23% of the population of the County is 
limited, to some extent in their ability to undertake these activities: 
 
                                 Denbighshire Population          Percentage of the population 
 
Day-to-Day Activities  
Limited a Lot              11,350                                                12% 
Day-to-Day Activities  
Limited a Little               10,645                                      11% 
Day-to-Day Activities 
Not Limited               71,739                                      77% 
 
Sexual Orientation 

Tudalen 115



 

3 

There is very limited information held on residents of Denbighshire for this 
category, however housing need is not normally driven by this consideration.  
 

 

5. Will this proposal have a positive impact on any of the 
protected characteristics? 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for a description of the protected 
characteristics) 

 

The needs of those with protected characteristics, such as age and disability are 
addressed by the associated action plan. A wide range of groups have been 
considered as part of this assessment.  This strategy will be displayed on our 
website for members of the public to access. 

 

6. Will this proposal have a disproportionate negative impact on 
any of the protected characteristics? 

 

The Strategy and accompanying Action Plan aims to address the particular needs 
of groups identified above and it is not anticipated that the adoption of the 
Strategy will have a disproportionate negative impact on any of the protected 
characteristics. The strategy will be available on the internet and intranet, however 
other alternative formats can be requested. 

 

7. Has the proposal been amended to eliminate or reduce any 
potential negative impact? 

 

No The strategy has been updated to ensure that it is relevant in 
identifying housing and housing related services in 
Denbighshire.  

 

8. Have you identified any further actions to address and / or 
monitor any potential negative impact(s)? 

 
No The Housing Strategy and accompanying Action Plan will be 

monitored and reviewed on a regular basis.  

 

Action(s) Owner Date 

                  

                  

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
9. Declaration 
 
Every reasonable effort has been made to eliminate or reduce any potential 
disproportionate impact on people sharing protected characteristics. The actual impact 
of the proposal will be reviewed at the appropriate stage. 
 

Review Date: 16/11/15 

Tudalen 116



 

4 

 

Name of Lead Officer for Equality Impact Assessment Date 

Sue Lewis December 2016 
(1 year after 

adoption) 
 

 

Please note you will be required to publish the outcome of the equality impact 
assessment if you identify a substantial likely impact. 

Tudalen 117



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Adroddiad i’r:   Cyngor Llawn  
 
Dyddiad y Cyfarfod:  1 Rhagfyr 2015 
 
Aelod / Swyddog Arweiniol: Barbara Smith / Jamie Groves  
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad:   Geoff Davies - Swyddog Arweiniol - Tai Cymunedol 
 
Teitl:             Polisi Tai Cymunedol - Diweddariadau i'w cymeradwyo 
 
 

 
1.  Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn? 

  
Mae'r adroddiad yn cyd-fynd â thair dogfen polisi yn ymwneud â'r gwasanaeth Tai 
Cymunedol. Mae'r polisïau yn cynnwys y Polisi Dyraniadau, Polisi Ymddygiad 
Gwrthgymdeithasol a'r Polisi Tenantiaeth Rhagarweiniol. 

  
2.  Beth yw'r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn? 
 
 Mae angen penderfyniad i gymeradwyo diwygiadau i'r tri pholisi. 
  
3.  Beth yw'r Argymhellion? 

  
Argymhellir bod y Cyngor yn cymeradwyo'r polisïau sy’n amgaeedig. 

 
4. Manylion yr Adroddiad 

  
Mae'n ofynnol i'r gwasanaeth Tai Cymunedol gael polisïau cyfredol i nodi ein dull o 
ddyrannu a rheoli ein stoc tai a sut y byddwn yn gweithredu o fewn y ddeddfwriaeth a 
chodau ymarfer perthnasol. 
 
Yn yr achos hwn mae'r polisïau canlynol yn cael eu cyflwyno i'w cymeradwyo, ar ôl 
cael eu hadolygu'n ddiweddar: 
 
Polisi Dyraniadau  
 
Roedd y polisi Dyraniadau angen ei adolygu a’i ddiweddaru i adlewyrchu 
deddfwriaeth newydd a chod ymarfer newydd a gyhoeddir gan Lywodraeth Cymru.  

 
Sef: 
 

 Deddf Tai (Cymru) 2014 

 Cod Canllawiau ar gyfer Awdurdodau Lleol ar Ddyrannu Llety a Digartrefedd - 
Llywodraeth Cymru Ebrill 2015 

 
Comisiynodd y Pennaeth Gwasanaeth newydd gyfreithwyr Whiteheads drwy ein 
hadran gyfreithiol fewnol, i adolygu polisïau a gweithdrefnau Tai presennol i sicrhau 
bod polisïau yn gyfredol â deddfwriaeth bresennol; ac i gynghori'r gwasanaeth ar ein 
hymrwymiadau cyfreithiol o ran y polisïau y cyfeirir atynt yn yr adroddiad hwn. 

Tudalen 119

Eitem Agenda 8



 
Er bydd y polisïau a ddiweddarwyd yn sicrhau ein bod yn cydymffurfio â gofynion 
cyfreithiol, rydym yn ymwybodol, ar 14 Ionawr 2014,  bod y Cabinet wedi 
cymeradwyo mabwysiadu SARTH 'Un Llwybr Mynediad at Dai', sy'n cynnwys symud 
oddi wrth y system dyrannu pwyntiau presennol at system "bandio" angen am dai. 
Mae'r polisi hwn felly yn fesur dros dro i sicrhau ein bod yn cydymffurfio â'n 
rhwymedigaethau cyfreithiol hyd nes y gweithredir SARTH yn Sir Ddinbych. 
 
Bydd polisi wedi’i ddiweddaru ymhellach yn adlewyrchu SARTH yn cael ei gyflwyno 
i'r Cyngor i'w gymeradwyo yn 2016/17, yn y cyfamser, mae'n bwysig bod ein polisïau 
presennol yn gyfoes â'r ddeddfwriaeth gyfredol. Mae diwygiadau wedi’u gwneud 
gyda SARTH mewn golwg.  
 
I grynhoi, mae'r newidiadau sy'n effeithio ar y polisi hwn fel a ganlyn: 
 

 Mabwysiadu atodlen o bwy sy'n anghymwys ar gyfer Tai (3.3 ac Atodiad 1 o'r 
Polisi) fel y nodir yn y Cod Canllawiau. 

 Sicrhau cydymffurfiaeth â'r gofyniad i ddyfarnu "ffafriaeth ychwanegol".  Mae 
hyn yn cefnogi rhywfaint o eglurder ar ddyrannu’r "pwyntiau rheoli" yn ein 
harfer cyfredol (4.2 o'r polisi). 

 Eglurder ar derminoleg a ddefnyddir i benderfynu ar Lai o Ffafriaeth oherwydd 
ymddygiad annerbyniol fel y manylir yn Neddf Ymddygiad Gwrthgymdeithasol, 
Troseddu a Phlismona 2014 (7.0 o'r polisi). 

 Cydnabod y bydd teuluoedd digartref yn cael eu hasesu o dan Ddeddf Tai 
(Cymru) 2014. (12.0 o'r polisi). 

 
Ni fydd y newidiadau a wnaed i'r polisi yn newid ein hagwedd at ddyraniadau’n 
sylfaenol.  Mae'r newidiadau yn atgyfnerthu eglurder ar ein harfer cyfredol.  
 
Polisi Ymddygiad Gwrthgymdeithasol  
 
Mae'r polisi hwn wedi cael ei ddiweddaru i adlewyrchu cyflwyno'r Ddeddf Ymddygiad 
Gwrthgymdeithasol a Phlismona 2014. Unwaith eto, nid oes unrhyw newidiadau 
sylfaenol i'n dull ar ddelio ag ymddygiad niwsans, fodd bynnag mae atebion 
cyfreithiol cyffredin fel y Gorchymyn ymddygiad gwrthgymdeithasol (ASBO) wedi'u 
disodli. Mae ein polisi wedi cael ei ddiweddaru i adlewyrchu'r newidiadau hyn a gellid 
ystyried yr holl bwerau fel rhan o'n gweithgareddau gorfodi. 
 
Oherwydd y trefniadau rheoli newydd mewn Tai Cymunedol, bydd adolygiad pellach 
o'r modd rydym yn darparu gwasanaethau ymddygiad gwrthgymdeithasol yn cael ei 
gynnal yn 2016 / 2017. Bydd ymgynghoriad llawn gydag Aelodau, cwsmeriaid a 
rhanddeiliaid wrth i’r adolygiad hwn fynd rhagddo. Nid oes ymgynghoriad wedi cael ei 
gynnal gyda chwsmeriaid am y diweddariad polisi hwn gan fod y newidiadau yn mynd 
i adlewyrchu deddfwriaeth ac maent yn orfodol. 
 
I grynhoi, mae'r newidiadau i'r polisi hwn fel a ganlyn: 
 

 Pwerau wedi’u diweddaru ar gael wrth i "Waharddeb Sifil" ddisodli Gorchymyn 
Ymddygiad Gwrthgymdeithasol  a Gwaharddeb Ymddygiad 
Gwrthgymdeithasol  (3.1 o'r polisi)  

Tudalen 120



 Pwerau wedi’u diweddaru ar gael fel "Gorchymyn Ymddygiad Troseddol" yn 
disodli Gorchymyn Ymddygiad Gwrthgymdeithasol ar gollfarn (3.2. o'r polisi). 

 Cyflwyno Seiliau Absoliwt ar gyfer Meddiant (3.4.5 o'r polisi). Byddai hyn ond 
yn cael ei ddilyn mewn achosion eithafol lle mae achos llys blaenorol wedi'i 
dorri neu drosedd ddifrifol wedi digwydd yn yr eiddo. 

 Adlewyrchu terminoleg y cytundeb tenantiaeth newydd a ddaeth i rym ym mis 
Ebrill 2015 (5.0 o'r polisi). 

 
Polisi Tenantiaeth Rhagarweiniol 
 
Mae'r polisi hwn wedi cael ei ysgrifennu gyda chymorth Cyfreithwyr Whiteheads er 
mwyn gwella eglurder y polisi a'r weithdrefn gyfredol; wrth sicrhau ein bod yn 
cydymffurfio â deddfwriaeth.  
 
Mae'r ddogfen hon yn ffurfioli ein hymarfer sefydledig gyda Thenantiaethau 
Rhagarweiniol sydd wedi cael eu defnyddio ar gyfer pob tenant newydd i'r Cyngor ers 
2007. Ymgynghorwyd yn helaeth cyn eu cyflwyno. 
 
I grynhoi, mae defnyddio Tenantiaethau Rhagarweiniol yn caniatáu i'r cyngor fonitro 
a chefnogi tenantiaid drwy 12 mis cyntaf eu tenantiaeth. Os na fyddai ymddygiad y 
tenant yn unol â'u cytundeb tenantiaeth a bod ymyriadau i fynd i'r afael â hyn wedi 
methu, yna gall y cyngor wneud cais i'r Llys Sirol i ddiweddu'r denantiaeth ar ddiwedd 
y cyfnod o 12 mis.  
 
Mae’r seiliau dros feddiannu yn "orfodol" ac ni fyddai'n rhaid i'r llys ystyried 
rhesymoldeb cais y cyngor ar yr amod bod proses apelio ysbeidiol yn cael ei dilyn yn 
gywir.  
 
Os bydd y denantiaeth ragarweiniol yn cael ei chwblhau’n foddhaol, bydd y tenant yn 
dod yn denant sicr ar ôl cwblhau'r 12 mis. Prif effaith hyn yw y byddai'n rhaid i'r 
cyngor brofi i lys ei fod yn rhesymol diweddu tenantiaeth oherwydd ymddygiad 
annerbyniol a byddai’r penderfyniad yn "ddewisol" ac yn ddarostyngedig i farn y llys. 

 
5. Sut mae'r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at y Blaenoriaethau Corfforaethol? 
 

Mae'r polisïau hyn yn sail i ddarparu gwasanaethau sy'n cyfrannu at flaenoriaethau 
corfforaethol o "Sicrhau mynediad at dai o ansawdd da" a “Hybu cymdogaethau cryf 
a chynaliadwy” 

 
6.  Faint fydd hyn yn ei gostio a sut y bydd yn effeithio ar wasanaethau eraill? 
  

Mae'r polisïau hyn yn adlewyrchu arfer cyfredol a bydd yn cael ei ddarparu o fewn yr 
adnoddau presennol. Ni ddisgwylir unrhyw gostau ychwanegol o ganlyniad i'r polisïau 
hyn. 

. 
7. Beth yw prif gasgliadau'r Asesiad o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb (AEC) a 

gynhaliwyd ar y penderfyniad?  
 

Tudalen 121



Mae Asesiad o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb wedi cael ei gynnal ar gyfer y 3 pholisi. 
Bwriad y polisïau yw cyfrannu'n gadarnhaol at hyrwyddo cydraddoldeb a thegwch ac 
i fynd i'r afael â gwahaniaethu.  
 
Mae cynllun gweithredu ar gyfer pob maes polisi wedi cael ei ddatblygu i fonitro data i 
sicrhau bod mynediad teg yn cael ei ddarparu i bob maes gwasanaeth ac nad oes 
unrhyw effaith negyddol ar grwpiau â nodweddion a ddiogelir. 
 
Mae copi o grynodeb yr Asesiad Cydraddoldeb yn amgaeedig ar gyfer pob un o'r tri 
pholisi a gyflwynir i'w cymeradwyo.  

 
8.  Pa ymgynghoriadau a gynhaliwyd gyda’r Pwyllgorau Archwilio ac eraill? 

  
Ymgynghorwyd â’r Aelod Arweiniol dros Foderneiddio a Thai ar y diweddariadau i'r 
polisïau hyn.  
 
Mae'r polisïau hyn yn y gorffennol wedi bod yn destun ymgynghoriad llawn a gan fod 
y diwygiadau hyn yn adlewyrchu newidiadau deddfwriaeth, nid oes angen unrhyw 
ymgynghori ffurfiol.  
 
Bydd y Polisi Dyraniadau a’r polisi Ymddygiad Gwrthgymdeithasol yn cael eu 
hadolygu yn ystod 2016/2017 a bydd ymgynghoriad llawn yn digwydd os bydd 
unrhyw newidiadau sylweddol yn cael eu cynnig.  

 
9. Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid 

  
Nid oes unrhyw oblygiadau cost ychwanegol uniongyrchol yn gysylltiedig â'r polisïau. 

Rhaid i'r holl gostau gael eu cynnwys o fewn yr adnoddau presennol.  

10. Pa risgiau sydd ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i'w lleihau? 
 
 Mae diweddaru a gweithredu’r polisïau hyn yn helpu i liniaru risg. 
 
Y risgiau yw: 
 
Gallai methu â chadw at y Polisi Dyraniadau a ragnodir a deddfwriaeth briodol arwain 
at her gyfreithiol gan gwsmer. Mae'r polisi wedi’i ddiweddaru’n ceisio sicrhau ein bod 
yn nodi ein polisi’n glir yn unol â'n dyletswyddau deddfwriaethol. 
 
Methu â dilyn y ddeddfwriaeth briodol wrth gymryd camau yn erbyn cyflawnwr 
ymddygiad gwrthgymdeithasol. Gallai unrhyw amddiffyniad lwyddo os na chadwyd at 
bolisi neu ddeddfwriaeth briodol. Mae'r polisïau hyn yn ceisio sicrhau ein bod yn 
gweithredu yn unol â'n pwerau. 

 

11. Pŵer i wneud y Penderfyniad 

 
Gwneir diwygiadau i'r polisïau hyn i sicrhau bod y Cyngor yn cydymffurfio â 
deddfwriaeth wrth gyflawni ein swyddogaethau rheoli tai. Yn yr achos hwn y 
ddeddfwriaeth a'r canllawiau yw: 

 

Tudalen 122



  Deddf Tai (Cymru) 2014 

 Cod Canllawiau ar gyfer Awdurdodau Lleol ar Ddyrannu Llety a Digartrefedd - 
Llywodraeth Cymru Ebrill 2015 

 Deddf Ymddygiad Gwrthgymdeithasol a Phlismona 2014. 

Tudalen 123



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Denbighshire County Council 
 
Community Housing Services  
 
Allocations Policy 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Document reference number  

Date agreed & Implemented:  

Agreed by:  

Review Date:  

Frequency:  

Tudalen 125



1.0. ALLOCATION POLICY - Introduction 

 

Ensuring access to good quality housing is a corporate priority for Denbighshire County 
Council.  This means that the housing market in Denbighshire will offer a range of types 
and forms of housing in sufficient quantity and quality to meet the needs of individuals 
and families. This will be through a mix of council, social landlord, private rent and 
owner occupied property. 
 
The Council is committed to providing a fair and comprehensive service to all persons in 
need of housing. 
 
Denbighshire aims to ensure that social housing within our own stock and that of local 
registered social landlords is allocated to those households with the greatest underlying 
need for long term settled accommodation. 
 
The aims of the Allocations Policy are: 
 

 To ensure applicants in housing need are given preference. 
 

 To contribute to strong and sustainable communities where people want to live 
and feel safe. 

 

 To ensure that no group or individual is discriminated against as a result of this 
policy and to create fair access to our services. 

 
This policy has been developed with regard to the Code of Guidance for 
Local Authorities on the Allocation of Accommodation and Homelessness 
 

2.0. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY 
 
Denbighshire County Council is committed to equality in service provision. The Council 
recognises the diverse nature of the county and endeavor’s to ensure that customers 
are treated with dignity and respect.  
 
The Council opposes all forms of discrimination and undertakes not to discriminate 
unfairly on the grounds of age, disability, gender, race or ethnic origin, religion or belief, 
sexual orientation, health, marital status, responsibility for dependents, social or 
economic status or criminal record. 
 
Every possible step will be taken to take into account the diverse nature of individuals 
and ensure that they are treated fairly and decisions are based on objective criteria.  
 
An Equality Impact Assessment has been carried out for this policy and an action plan 
developed to ensure that groups with protected characteristics are given fair access to 
housing and that this is monitored effectively. 
 
 
 

Tudalen 126



3.0. THE HOUSING WAITING LIST 
 
3.1 Points based system 
 
Denbighshire County Council Housing Waiting List contains details of all those persons 
who are in need of housing. Allocations for Council properties and nominations for 
Housing Association accommodation will only be made to those persons who qualify 
and have applied to be placed on the waiting list. 
 
Denbighshire County Council currently operates a points based system. Points are 
awarded based on the housing need of the applicant. Details on how points are 
awarded is given to all applicants for housing.  
 
The point’s scheme is detailed in appendix 2. 
 
The Council will therefore allocate the housing available within a framework which 
reflects its legislative duty and which ensures that offers of accommodation are made to 
those with the greatest need and which maximises the use of limited resources. 
  
3.2.  SARTH - Single Access Route to Housing 
 
The council is committed to adopting SARTH and this current Allocations policy and 
points system will remain in operation until SARTH, which includes a move to a banding 
system, is implemented. 
 
3.3.  Who can apply for housing? 
 
Denbighshire County Council holds an open register to which anyone over 16 who is 
entitled to apply as determined by section 160A Housing Act 1996 “Allocation to Eligible 
persons (Wales)”.  
 
The council will adhere to the “Code of Guidance for Local Authorities on the Allocation 
of Accommodation” published by Welsh Government in April 2015 in order to determine 
if an applicant is deemed to be ineligible for accommodation.  
 
Appendix 1 details who is ineligible for housing accommodation.  
 

3.4. Prospects advice 
 
The Council provides information when practicable and reasonable, to explain the 

position and priority on the waiting list and when an offer of suitable accommodation 

might be made. An indication is given as High, Medium or Low priority based on the 

number of points awarded and based on the supply of suitable accommodation in the 

desired area.  

 

An applicant has the right to be informed of any decision about the facts of their case 

which is likely to be taken into account when considering whether to allocate housing to 

Tudalen 127



them. 

 

4.0. ASSESSMENT OF HOUSING APPLICATIONS 
 
Applications are received via the standard housing application form. All applicants will 

receive a letter detailing the areas they have selected, their points total and type of 

property for which they have been considered within 28 days of receiving all 

information and a fully completed application form. 

 
4.1. Reasonable Preference 
 
The Housing Act 1996, Homelessness Act 2002 and Housing (Wales) Act 2014 state 
that the following categories of applicants in housing need be given reasonable 
preference in determining allocations of Council housing and nominations to Housing 
Associations. 
 

 People who are homeless (within the meaning of Part 7 of the 1996 Act or Part 2 
of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014)  

  

 People who are owed any duty by a local housing Authority under section 66, 

73 or 75 of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 
 

  

 People who are living in unsanitary or overcrowded housing or otherwise living 

in unsatisfactory housing conditions 

 

 Applicants who need to move on medical or welfare grounds 
 
 

 Those who need to move to a particular locality in the district where failure to 

meet that need would cause hardship to themselves or others. 

 

4.2. Additional Preference 

 
 

The points system includes management awards for ‘additional preference’ in 

exceptional cases providing they have assessed urgent housing needs. The code of 

guidance states that the following should be considered for additional preference: 

 

Those owed a homelessness duty as a result of violence or threats of violence likely to 
be carried out and who as a result require urgent rehousing, including : 
  

 Victims of domestic or other abuse 
  

 Victims of hate incidents.  
 

Tudalen 128



 Witnesses of crime, or victims of crime, who would be at risk of intimidation 
amounting to violence or threats of violence if they remained in their current 
homes.  

 
Those who need to move because of urgent medical reasons. Including where an 
applicant’s (or a member of their household’s) - 
  

 Condition is expected to be terminal and re-housing is required due to 
unsuitable accommodation or to provide a basis for the provision of suitable 
care. 

 

 Condition is life threatening and the applicant’s existing accommodation is a 
major contributory factor. 

 

 Planned discharge from hospital is imminent and there is no accommodation 
available to them that it is reasonable for them to occupy. 

  
An applicant with a reasonable prospect of an accommodation offer within a relatively 
short period who suddenly loses their existing home as a result of a disaster. 
 

Any applicant who needs to move to suitable adapted accommodation because of a 
serious injury, medical condition or disability which he or she, or a member of their 
household, has sustained as a result of service in the Armed Forces. 
 
People needing accommodation as a result of leaving the Armed Forces and the loss of 
military accommodation. 
 
People under-occupying social housing and wanting to transfer to a smaller property, 
particularly in light of Welfare Benefit changes and the under-occupancy charge.  
 
 

 
5.0 STATEMENT OF CHOICE 
 
Applicants are able to specify up to 3 community areas within Denbighshire where they 
would accept an offer of accommodation. Areas of choice may be changed at the 
request of the applicant. 
 
Properties are allocated on the appropriateness of the size and type of accommodation 

which is available according to the needs of the household. The criteria for this is 

provided to all applicants for housing.  

 

The Council reserves the right to not offer a property which could potentially cause 

financial hardship to a household due to factors such as the housing benefit under 

occupation reduction. 
 

The Council is committed to extending choice to applicants for housing including 

considering other housing options. However there is exceptional high demand for most 

Tudalen 129



types of property available especially family houses. 
 

In these circumstances it is not possible to extend free choice to every applicant and 
homeless applicant owed a duty under Section 75 of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 will 
be made one reasonable offer which may not be in their preferred locality unless there 
are special circumstances. 
 
6.0 RENEWAL OF APPLICATIONS 
 
Each application on the waiting list will be renewed annually near to the anniversary of 
its entry on the list. Failure to return the renewal form within the specified reasonable 
period will result in the application being removed from the list. 
 
7.0. SUSPENSIONS FOR UNACCEPTABLE BEHAVIOUR (REDUCED 

PREFERENCE) 
 
This will apply if the applicant (or joint applicant) or a member of the household has 
been guilty of unacceptable behaviour serious enough to make them unsuitable to be a 
tenant of the Council and for which the Council could have obtained (if the applicant 
was a secure tenant of the Council) an outright order to obtain possession of the 
property. 
 
This behaviour can include: 
 

 Rent arrears outstanding. 
 

 Nuisance or annoyance caused by applicants, family members or visitors. 
 

 Conviction for using the property for illegal or immoral purposes. 
 

 Making a false statement to get a tenancy. 
 

 Conviction for an indictable offence 
 

 Nuisance or annoyance caused by the applicant, family members or visitors, to 
the landlord or person employed by the landlord in exercise of their housing 
management functions, and that is directly related to or affects those functions. 

 

 The conditions contained in the new absolute ground for possession as per 
section 94 of the Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 which 
inserted the new 84A into the Housing Act 1985. These conditions refer to an 
earlier court deciding that the individual concerned is in breach of a Criminal 
Behaviour Order or an Injunction or has been convicted of a serious offence, 
breach of an abatement notice or order or, a closure order has been in force for 
over 48 hours. 

 

The Council does not operate a blanket exclusion policy on categories of applicants. 

Each application will be assessed on its own merits and a decision regarding eligibility 

Tudalen 130



will be made accordingly. Anyone subsequently excluded from the register will be able 

to appeal against the decision. Decisions on  cases will be made by a panel of officers. 

Decisions can include outright suspension or time-limited, or conditional, reduced 

preference. 

 
 

If at any time, the Council obtains information that leads us to believe that an applicant 
who is already on the waiting list is ineligible we will write to the applicant. The applicant 
will have 21 days to prove eligibility. If they do not reply during this period, or if they do 
reply but the Council remains of the view that they are ineligible, they will be removed 
from the list. 
 
8.0. APPEALS 
 
If a decision is made to suspend an applicant from the waiting list on the grounds of 
being ineligible they will be informed in writing giving the reasons for the decision. The 
letter will include an opportunity for the applicant to request a review on the decision. 
 

The appeal will be conducted during a 21 day period and a written decision, including 
the grounds for the decision will be made to the applicant. 
 
9.0. COMPLAINTS 
 
An applicant who is not satisfied with the quality of service they receive, may register a 
complaint with the Council’s complaint procedure. All complaints will be acknowledged 
and investigated in accordance with the procedure. 
 
A complaint may also be made to the Local Government Ombudsman if he / she believe 
maladministration has taken place. 
 
10.0. MAKING AN OFFER 
 
The Lettings Officer will select applicants who may receive an offer in accordance with 
the points system and suitability for the vacant property. A short list will be drawn up 
and applicants will receive a home visit at this or an earlier stage in the process. 
 
All offers will be made in writing to the prospective tenant.  
 
 
 

11.0. NOMINATIONS TO HOUSING ASSOCIATIONS 
 
Denbighshire works closely with Housing Associations working within the area. The 
Council usually has at least 50 per cent nominations to new schemes and vacancies 
arising. Nominations are made on the basis of highest housing need in accordance with 
the points scheme. 
 
 
 

Tudalen 131



12.0. HOMELESS OR THREATENED WITH HOMELESSNESS 
 
Denbighshire takes a preventative and options based approach to applicants who are 

potentially homeless. 
 

All homeless applications will be thoroughly investigated and decisions made in 
accordance with the Housing Act 1996, Homelessness Act 2002 and Housing (Wales) 
Act 2014). 
 

Where a duty to assist a household is accepted under homelessness legislation the 

household will be placed on the Housing Waiting List and appropriate points awarded. 

 

Homeless applicants who are owed a final housing duty by the Council will be made 
one reasonable offer of either a council, RSL or private tenancy. 
 

If the offer is unreasonably refused the Council will discharge its homeless duty and the 
applicant will be given notice to leave their temporary accommodation. All applicants 
have the right to request a review of this decision.  
 
Whether or not a Homeless Applicant accepts an offer of permanent accommodation 
they have the right to request a review of the suitability of the accommodation they have 
been offered within 21 days. If the review is successful they will receive an alternative 
offer as soon as is practicable. 
 
13.0. ACCOMMODATION FOR OLDER PEOPLE 
 
Throughout the County there are properties specifically for older people. These are 
usually bungalows and flats. These properties may also be let to people who have a 
disability and require adapted or easily accessible accommodation. 
 

The Council will always try to let all its designated sheltered housing properties to older 
people over the age of 60 or who have accommodation related medical needs or a 
disability. There are some properties especially but not entirely in rural areas where this 
may not be possible. In such cases the property may be re-classified as general needs 
and ‘mature’ applicants under 60 will be offered the accommodation. 
 
14.0. ADAPTED ACCOMMODATION 
 
The Council has very few properties purpose built for severely disabled people. 
However, adaptations can be made where this is reasonably practical and the Council 
work closely with Housing Associations to provide suitable property. 
 
The Specialist Housing Group involving Housing Allocations, Social Services (Children’s 
Service’s and Community Support Services) will meet with local housing associations to 
ensure that adapted accommodation can be matched to meet to households in need of 
adapted accommodation. Offers of accommodation will result from this joint approach. 
 

Tudalen 132



15.0. TRANSFERS 
 
Existing council tenants who need to move will be subject to the points system but 
specific points are available for tenants to facilitate transfers to tenants in need of a new 
home. 
 
 
16.0 LOCAL LETTINGS POLICIES 
 
Section 167(2E) of the 1996 Housing Act enables Local Authorities to allocate 
accommodation to people of a particular description, whether or not they fall within the 
reasonable preference categories, provided that overall the Local Authority is able to 
demonstrate compliance with the requirements of s.167. This is the statutory basis for 
‘local lettings policies’. 
 
Local Lettings allows the council to develop locally based policies to support developing 
mixed or sustainable communities. These will be developed as required according to 
the needs of a particular community.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 133



Appendix 1 - Allocation to eligible persons 
 
The Housing Act 1996 states:  
Section 160A – [Wales]  
 

(1) A local housing authority [in Wales] shall not allocate housing accommodation—  
 

(a) to a person from abroad who is ineligible for an allocation of housing 
accommodation by virtue of subsection (3) or (5);  
 

(b) to a person who the authority have decided is to be treated as ineligible for such 
an allocation by virtue of subsection (7); or  
 

(c) to two or more persons jointly if any of them is a person mentioned in paragraph 
(a) or (b).  

 
(2) Except as provided by subsection (1), any person may be allocated housing 

accommodation by a local housing authority [in Wales] (whether on his application or 
otherwise).  

 
(3) A person subject to immigration control within the meaning of the Asylum and 

Immigration Act 1996 (c. 49) is (subject to subsection (6)) ineligible for an allocation 
of housing accommodation by a local housing authority [in Wales] unless he is of a 
class prescribed by regulations made by the Secretary of State.  

 
(4) No person who is excluded from entitlement to [universal credit or] housing benefit 

by section 115 of the Immigration and Asylum Act 1999 (c. 33) (exclusion from 
benefits) shall be included in any class prescribed under subsection (3).  
 

(5) The Secretary of State may by regulations prescribe other classes of persons from 
abroad who are (subject to subsection (6)) ineligible for an allocation of housing 
accommodation, either in relation to local housing authorities [in Wales] generally or 
any particular local housing authority [in Wales].  
 

(6) Nothing in subsection (3) or (5) affects the eligibility of a person who is already 
 

(a) a secure or introductory tenant;  
 

(b)an assured tenant of housing accommodation allocated to him by a local 
housing authority [in Wales].  

 
(7) A local housing authority [in Wales] may decide that an applicant is to be treated as 

ineligible for an allocation of housing accommodation by them if they are satisfied 
that—  
 

(a) he, or a member of his household, has been guilty of unacceptable 
behaviour serious enough to make him unsuitable to be a tenant of the 
authority; and  

Tudalen 134



(b) in the circumstances at the time his application is considered, he is 
unsuitable to be a tenant of the authority by reason of that behaviour.  

 
(8) The only behaviour which may be regarded by the authority as unacceptable for the 

purposes of subsection (7)(a) is—  
 

(a) behaviour of the person concerned which would (if he were a secure tenant of 
the authority) entitle the authority to a possession order under section 84 of 
the Housing Act 1985 (c. 68) on any ground mentioned in Part 1 of Schedule 
2 to that Act (other than ground 8); or  
 

(b) behaviour of a member of his household which would (if he were a person 
residing with a secure tenant of the authority) entitle the authority to such a 
possession order.  

 
 

(9) If a local housing authority [in Wales] decide that an applicant for housing 
accommodation—  
 

(a) is ineligible for an allocation by them by virtue of subsection (3) or (5); or  
 

(b)is to be treated as ineligible for such an allocation by virtue of subsection 
(7), they shall notify the applicant of their decision and the grounds for it.  

 
(10) That notice shall be given in writing and, if not received by the applicant, shall 

be treated as having been given if it is made available at the authority’s office for a 
reasonable period for collection by him or on his behalf.  
 

(11) A person who is being treated by a local housing authority [in Wales]as ineligible by 
virtue of subsection (7) may (if he considers that he should no longer be treated as 
ineligible by the authority) make a fresh application to the authority for an allocation of 
housing accommodation by them. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 135



Appendix 2 - THE POINTS SYSTEM 
 

Points will be allocated in the following way: 
 
Residency 
 
1 point per year up to a maximum of 15 points for residency in Denbighshire. 
 
This includes any period of residence including before the application is made and 
applies to all categories of applicants including tenants of the Council requesting a 
transfer. 
 
Length of Application 
 
1 point per year for every calendar year on the waiting list up to a maximum of 10 
points. 
 
Local Community Areas 
 
Applicants will be able to choose up to 3 areas as choices for rehousing based on the 
following local communities. 
 

 Rhyl 
 

 Prestatyn & Meliden 

 Dyserth 

 Rhuddlan 

 Bodelwyddan 

 St Asaph 

 St Asaph rural area (Tremeirchion,Waen, Rhuallt, Cwm, Cefn 

Meiriadog,Trefnant) 

 Denbigh & Henllan 

 Ruthin 
 

 ValeVillages(Aberwheeler,Bodfari,Llandyrnog,LlanrhaeadrYC,Prion,Saron,Peniel

,Nantglyn, Llanynys, Gellifor, Rhewl, Llanbedr, Clocaenog, Cyffylliog, Bontuchel, 

Llanfair, Graigfechan, Clawddnewydd, Derwen, Pwllglas, Llanelidan) 
 

 IalVillages -Eryrys,Llandegla,Llanferres,Graianrhyd,LlanarmonYnIal  

 Corwen 

 Corwen&DeeValleyareavillages–

Cynwyd,Llandrillo,Carrog,Glyndyfrdwy,Gwyddelwern, Bettws GG, Melin Y Wig, 

Bryneglwys 
 

 Llangollen & Llantysilio 
 
 

Tudalen 136



Medical 
 
Up to 25 points are available to an applicant whose household includes a person with a 
serious illness or disability which is made significantly worse by their current living 
conditions and who would benefit from re-housing within Denbighshire. 
 
Serious Medical Need - 25 points 
 
Where the applicant suffers extreme ill health, which will deteriorate rapidly if they 
remain in their present home. 
 
Medium Medical Need - 15 points 
 
Where the applicant’s present accommodation is having a significant impact on normal 
life and may cause a major deterioration of the applicant’s health in the long term but 
which could improve through better / more suitable housing. 
 
Lower or Long Term Medical need - 10 points 
 
Where the applicants present accommodation is having an impact on normal life and 

may cause a deterioration in the long term OR 
 

Where the applicant’s ability to lead a normal life is significantly impaired but the medical 
condition is not likely to get worse. 
 
Low Medical Need – 5 points 
 
Where medical problems associated with your current accommodation exist but the 
medical condition is unlikely to get worse. 
 
If no medical points are awarded: 
 

This is not to say that a medical condition does not exist, it merely reflects the fact that 
the property is not directly affecting the condition. 
 
Overcrowding 
 
Separate room is required for the following, 
 

 Couples 
 

 Single parents 
 

 2 children aged 1 to 7 
 

 2 children aged 8 to 15 of the same sex 
 

 Extra bedroom required for carer where it is a proven medical need 

 2 adults of the same gender who are related 

 5 points will be awarded for each extra bedroom required 

Tudalen 137



Condition and Amenities of Property 
 
Where an applicant shares amenities points will be 

awarded as follows,  

 

 Kitchen-2 

 BathorShower-2 

 InternalWC-2 

 Livingroom-2 
 

N.B these points are not awarded if sharing with immediate families i.e. non related 
separate households will be awarded these points. 
 

If the property of the applicant is in poor condition and this has not been reflected in the 

points above, additional points may be awarded in one of the following categories, 
 

Properties where an improvement notice, prohibition or demolition order has been 

served by the Public Protection Department – 10, 15 or 20 points. 
 

Property is in poor state of repair and the disrepair is due to a lack of maintenance by 
the Landlord. 
 

 General disrepair – 3 or 6 points depending on severity. 

 Dampness – 3 or 6 points depending on severity. 

 Dangerous supply of electricity and/or gas supply – 6points. 
 

Families with Children under the age of 12 who are living in flats above ground floor – 5 
points 
 
 

These points will be cancelled on the 12th birthday of the youngest child. 
 
Under Occupation 
 
Social Housing tenants - for each bedroom unoccupied in family houses – 5 
 
This is to ensure best use of scarce social housing. 

Other tenures - applicants aged 55+. For each bedroom unoccupied – 3 
 
Financial Hardship 
 
Difficulty with rent / mortgage payments or upkeep of property. This is subject to 
production of documentary evidence and availability of Housing Benefit 
 
Renovation Grants, Disabled Facilities Grants, Mortgage Rescue schemes etc 
 

Tudalen 138



The main factor to consider is the ratio of income to legitimate outgoings. Other factors 
include housing benefit entitlement (e.g. an expensive overly large property will not 
receive points).These points are assessed by a panel of Officers. 5, 10 or 15 points. 
 
Homelessness Legislation 
 
Only awarded to applicants assessed under the Homelessness legislation and any 
subsequent amendments. 
 
Applicants who have been assessed as homeless, in priority need and unintentionally 

homeless and owed a ‘final’ duty under Section 75 of the Housing (Wales) Act – 25 

points (in total) 
 

(Applicants only additionally receive residence points. In the event of two or more 
applications being indistinguishable the date of homelessness application will be the 
deciding factor.) 
 

If applicants who qualify as above and have been living in temporary accommodation 

for a continuous period of more than 1 year – 10 points. 
 

If applicant has been assessed as priority need but intentionally homeless 5 points for a 
period of 6 months following the homeless decision. 
 
Insecurity of Tenure 
 
If an applicant has no fixed abode or is living with no security of tenure and received a 
notice to quit or informal notice to leave – 15. (Not awarded if placed in accommodation 
by any other Local Authority). These may be withdrawn if the notice is in force over a 
prolonged period of time. 
 
Social and Community Factors 
 
To enable a greater degree of choice, 5 points per application will be awarded on receipt 
of proof from the applicant if accommodation is required near to:- 
 

 Place of permanent employment. 

 Specialist schools. 

 Enable applicants to give or receive support from older, disabled or other family 
members. 

 

 Have other links with the community e.g. involvement with voluntary, sporting or 

cultural groups and the applicant and / or the community would benefit from 

rehousing in the local community. 
 

 Families who are intending to foster or adopt children known or in the care of the 
Local Authority. 

 

Management Points (Additional Preference) 
 

Tudalen 139



These points will be awarded by a panel of Senior Officers appointed by the Head of 
Housing Services and only be awarded where housing issues are outside of this points 
scheme and securing alternative accommodation is in the best interests of the applicant, 
the estate or the community. This includes: 
 

 Allocations with in the Council’s housing stock which release a property for which 

there is a particularly high demand e.g. family house, or an adapted property 

occupied by a tenant who no longer requires the adaptations. 
 

 Where there housing is a matter of urgency but this is not reflected in the points 
scheme. This will be in accordance with the Code of Practice section relating to 
Additional Preference)  
 

Maximum 50 points (bands of 10, 20, 30, 40, 50 points) 
 

Re-housing from Support Projects 
 
10 points will be awarded in the following circumstances: 
 
Where a young person is assessed by the Denbighshire Move On Panel as needing to 

move to more appropriate accommodation. 
 

Supported Housing projects where reciprocal arrangements or Service Level 
Agreements are in place with Denbighshire County Council and partners agree that the 
applicant has successfully completed the objectives of the support plan and acquired 
suitable tenancy skills. 
 
Reduced Preference 
 
When the Council has determined that an applicant has been guilty of unacceptable 
behaviour which does not justify suspending an application, but should be taken in to 
consideration 20 points will be deducted to reduce the applicant’s priority on the waiting 
list. Examples can include anti-social behaviour, deliberately worsening of own 
circumstances to gain points, outstanding rent arrears to any landlord or when financial 
resources exist and can be used to provide an applicant’s own accommodation. 
 
In the case of rent arrears points will only be reinstated when the rent arrears are paid 

or an acceptable agreement has been made to pay the arrears over a period which is 

acceptable to the Head of Housing Services. 
 

In other cases the applicant will be advised to provide evidence of improvement at the 
time of annual renewal or sooner if appropriate. 
 

Tudalen 140



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
ALLOCATIONS POLICY  

16
th
 November 2015 

 
 

Equality Impact Assessment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 141



 

1 

Allocations Policy 
 

Contact: 
 

Geoff Davies - Lead Officer - Community 
Housing 

Updated: 16th November 2015 
 

  
 
1. What type of proposal / decision is being assessed? 
 

A new or revised policy 

 
 

2. What is the purpose of this proposal / decision, and what 
change (to staff or the community) will occur as a result of its 
implementation? 

 

This is a revised policy to take into account recent changes in legislation namely 
Housing (Wales) Act 2014 and the revised code of guidance on Allocations of 
Accommodation from Welsh Government. 

 

3. Does this proposal / decision require an equality impact 
assessment?  If no, please explain why. 

 Please note: if the proposal will have an impact on people (staff or the 
community) then an equality impact assessment must be undertaken 

 

Yes <If no, briefly summarise the reasons for this decision here, 
and skip ahead to the declaration at the end> 

 
 

4. Please provide a summary of the steps taken, and the 
information used, to carry out this assessment, including any 
engagement undertaken 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for guidance) 

 

A review of the exisiting Equality Impact Analysis completed in 2010 has been 
undertaken. 

 
 

5. Will this proposal / decision have a positive impact on any of 
the protected characteristics (age; disability; gender-
reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and 
maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation)? 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for a description of the protected 
characteristics) 

 

The policy details how the Council will manage applications for housing and how 

Tudalen 142



 

2 

we allocate homes. It is vital that we provide fair access to our housing for all 
protected characteristic groups.  
 
The policy takes into account the needs of certain groups such as young people, 
older people and people with disabilities for example and the positive impact this 
will have on meeting housing needs and addressing discrimination people may 
face in the housing market.  

 
 

6. Will this proposal / decision have a disproportionate negative 
impact on any of the protected characteristics (age; disability; 
gender-reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; 
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and 
sexual orientation)? 

 

The policy is not intended to have a negative impact however monitoring will be 
required to ensure that there is fair access to the service and that no group is 
negatively impacted. Examples will be to ensure that there is fair access to 
customers whose first language is not Welsh or English and the written 
application process is not a barrrier for groups with certain disabilities.. 

 

7. Has the proposal / decision been amended to eliminate or 
reduce any potential disproportionate negative impact?  If no, 
please explain why. 

 

No <If yes, please provide detail> 

 

8. Have you identified any further actions to address and / or 
monitor any potential negative impact(s)? 

 
Yes <If yes please complete the table below. If no, please explain 

here> 

 

Action(s) Owner By when? 

Regular monitoring of equality and diversity 
data to ensure fair access to housing waiting 
list. Measure by comparison of customer 
baseline data and Denbighshire County wide 
population data. 

Geoff Davies 31st March 2016 

Regular monitoring of data to measure 
rehousing profile and offers, refusals and 
new tenancies by charactersitic to ensure 
fair treament. 

Geoff Davies 31st March 2016 

Monitor provision of servcies to assist people 
with disabilities to manage written paper 
application process. 

Geoff Davies 31st March 2016 

Compliance with Welsh Language 
Commissioners standards.  

Geoff Davies 31st March 2016 

<Unrestrict editing to insert additional rows> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

Tudalen 143



 

3 

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
9. Declaration 
 
Every reasonable effort has been made to eliminate or reduce any potential 
disproportionate impact on people sharing protected characteristics. The actual impact 
of the proposal / decision will be reviewed at the appropriate stage. 
 

Review Date: 16th 
November 
2016 

 

Name of Lead Officer for Equality Impact Assessment Date 

Geoff Davies 16th November 
2015 

 

 

Please note you will be required to publish the outcome of the equality impact 
assessment if you identify a substantial likely impact. 

Tudalen 144



1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 
 
COMMUNITY HOUSING 
 
ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR POLICY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Document reference number  

Date agreed & Implemented:  

Agreed by:  

Review Date:  

Frequency:  
 
 

Tudalen 145



2 

 

INTRODUCTION 
  
The Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003 (Section 12) requires that every Social Landlord 
prepares and publishes a policy and procedure to detail specifically how they will 
deal with anti-social behaviour. 
  
The Welsh Government has issued a Code of Guidance on how Social Landlords 
should prepare and review their ASB policies and procedures, Denbighshire County 
Council  have produced this statement and summary of policy and procedure with 
regard to this Code and in accordance with s208A (7) of the Housing Act 1996. 
   
General Policy Statement 
  
Denbighshire County Council’s Housing Services aims to respond proactively to 
deal effectively with complaints and to reduce levels of anti-social behaviour and 
engage in collaborative work with our partners to support the overall crime & 
disorder strategy to reduce ASB within Denbighshire. 
 
As a Landlord:  
  
1. We will not tolerate ASB and will take firm action to challenge and change 

unacceptable behaviour. 
  
2. We will give a responsive, targeted service to our residents and respond 

within set time scales. 
  
3. We will actively work in partnership with statutory and voluntary agencies to 

prevent ASB. 
  
4. We will support Witnesses/Complainants by taking a Victim centred approach 

to resolving ASB problems. 
  
5. We will consult with and seek the support and active involvement of the local 

community to direct our responses to ASB. 
  
6. Serious ASB will be dealt with quickly and enforcement action taken to protect 

victims. 
 

7. Eviction will be seen as a last resort BUT in cases of serious or long-standing 
ASB/criminal activity we will take eviction proceedings and the perpetrator(s) 
may be treated as ineligible or given no preference according to our 
allocations policy, if they seek to apply for housing with this Authority. 

 
8. We will share information with relevant agencies in accordance with section 

115 Crime & Disorder Act 1998 & Data Protection Act 1998. 
  
9. We will provide training for our staff, Councillors and our tenants. We will build 

on good practice case management and benchmark our services against other 
providers. 

  
10. In consultation with our tenants we will seek to improve by design the 

security/safety of the local area via the environmental improvement 

Tudalen 146



3 

 

schemes. 
  
11. We will in partnership with other agencies offer support to witnesses to enable 

them to feel confident, safe and secure in giving evidence. 
  
12. We will use legal services to ensure that swift and appropriate measures are put 

in place to deal with ASB and protect witnesses/Complainants. 
  
13. We will use a variety of informal and formal resolution/enforcement methods to 

deal with ASB, all cases will have a response which is proportionate, dependent 
on the type and nature of the ASB. 

  
14. We will in partnership with other agencies offer support to perpetrators 

to enable them to change their behaviour to allow them to remain within 
the community and adopt/demonstrate the norms of acceptable 
behaviour which the community can reasonably expect. 

  
15. All complaints will be treated confidentially and the identity of the complainant will 

not be disclosed without permission. 
  
Strategic Framework 
  
Denbighshire County Council Housing Services recognises that anti-social behaviour 
is not just a social housing issue it can occur in any community from any tenure of 
property. 
  
We will work with partners to tackle and deter behaviour that causes a nuisance to others.   
 
This policy has been written with regard to current legislation: 
  

 HOUSING ACT 1985 ( as amended by the Housing Act 1996) 

 RACE RELATIONS ACT 1976 AND THE RACE RELATIONS ( amended) ACT 
2000 

 CHILDREN ACT 1989 

 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ACT 1990 

 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998 

 CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 

 REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000  

 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 

 POLICE REFORM ACT 2002  

 HOMELESSNESS ACT 2002 

 THE ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR ACT 2003  

 HOUSING ACT 2004 

 THE CLEAN NEIGHBOURHOODS & ENVIRONMENT ACT 2005  

 RACIAL AND RELIGIOUS HATRED ACT 2006 

 THE HOUSING & REGENERATION ACT 2008  

 EQUALITY ACT 2010 

 POLICE AND JUSTICE ACT 2006 

 ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR CRIME AND POLICING ACT 2014 
   
 

Tudalen 147



4 

 

SECTION 1 
  
DEFINITION OF ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR 
  
Denbighshire County Council recognises that to provide a quality housing service we 
must be effective and committed to addressing the problems caused by ASB and 
breaches of tenancy.  
   
Definition from: Section 1 (1)(a) Crime and Disorder Act 1998: 
  
“Acting in a manner that caused or was likely to cause harassment, alarm or distress 
to one or more persons not of the same household”. 
   
A non-exhaustive list of examples of ASB : 
  

 Verbal abuse  

 Intimidation 

 Violence 

 Noise nuisance 

 Harassment 

 Foul language 

 Graffiti 

 Threatening behaviour 

 Fly-tipping and littering 

 Hate behaviour 

 Criminal activity 

 Domestic abuse 

 Vandalism and damage 

 Abandoned vehicles 

 Fouling of public places 

 Car repairs 

 Drug misuse 
 

Anti-social behaviour can be perpetrated by individuals, groups, families, adults and 
children.  
  
LANDLORD’S OBLIGATIONS 
  
We will meet our Landlord Obligations by developing: 
 
Approaches to detect, deter and deal effectively with incidents of anti-
social behaviour and the fear of crime. 
  
Denbighshire County Council  Housing Services will investigate complaints of 
ASB from our homes or within our communities and we will work in partnership 
with other Council departments, North Wales Police, Registered Social Landlords 
and other agencies to ensure a responsive, appropriate service is being provided. 
  
We will use a range of prevention, intervention and enforcement actions to 
counteract anti-social behaviour and to respond in the most appropriate manner.  
 

Tudalen 148



5 

 

Action will always be proportional to the type and severity of the anti-social 
behaviour occurring. Many cases of ASB can be resolved quickly and permanently 
by utilising prevention and intervention procedures but enforcement is a tool which 
is used and will continue to be used where the intervention has failed or the 
behaviour is too serious or long-standing.  
  
We will tackle anti-social behaviour based on 3 overlapping approaches: 
 

 Prevention 
 

 Intervention 
 

 Enforcement 
 
1.PREVENTION 

 
We will work to identify any activities that support a preventative approach to deterring 
nuisance behaviour. Some examples are: 
 
1.1 Introductory Tenancies 
  
The council will give all new tenants an Introductory Tenancy for 12 months which 
allows the council to support new tenants and also closely monitor behaviour. A 
secure tenancy would only be granted following satisfactory completion of the 
introductory tenancy.   
  
1.2 Tenancy Support  
  
The council will seek to identify any support services where available to support 
vulnerable tenants, such as those with disabilities, drug/alcohol dependency, former 
prisoners and those with mental health support needs to enable them to adhere to their 
tenancy conditions.  
  
1.3 Diversionary Projects 
  
We will work in partnership to support multi-agency approaches to provide projects 
that involve young persons in activities that contribute to reducing the likelihood of 
incidents of nuisance behaviour in our communities.  
  
1.4 Multi-Agency Partnerships 
  
The council will work with other council services and with external partners to take a 
collaborative approach to developing preventative approaches whether supporting 
or educating individuals, groups or communities to prevent behaviour that causes a 
nuisance to others. 
  
1.5 Design and Security. 
  
Where resources allow or can be identified the council will work to provide physical 
improvements in our communities that can support the prevention of anti-social behaviour. 
 
  
 

Tudalen 149



6 

 

2. INTERVENTION 
 
Where necessary we will act to provide intervention measures to deter or prevent further 
incidents of nuisance behaviour. Some examples are: 
  
2.1 Acceptable Behaviour Contracts (ABC’s) 
  
This is a contract which highlights unacceptable behaviour and is signed by an 
individual who agrees to not act in an anti-social way. This is a joint agency 
approach involving the individual, parent (if appropriate), Denbighshire Housing 
and North Wales Police. In addition other agencies can be requested to support 
e.g.. Social services, education, youth services. 
  
ABC’s have been seen to successfully change unacceptable behaviour and 
therefore alleviating the nuisance to others without further more costly 
intervention.  
  
2.2. Multi-Agency Case Conferencing 
  
Case conferencing forms an effective tool to engage agencies in the support of both 
victims and perpetrators in order to facilitate a result which is acceptable to the victim 
and enables the perpetrator to modify their behaviour, and prevents re-offending. 
 
In accordance with the Equality Act 2010 we discuss ways in which vulnerable 
perpetrators (in terms of disabilities, drug/alcohol abuse or dependency, mental 
health) can be supported so they and their families can retain their homes, prevent 
homelessness and prevent legal action remedies being required. 
 
 
Where a change of behaviour does not occur or the person does not engage with 
the support/intervention method, enforcement action will be taken to deter the 
unacceptable behaviour. 
 
2.3 Mediation Services 
  
Some cases, particularly low level disputes involving neighbours, can be resolved by 
involving impartial mediation services. Both parties have to be agreeable to the 
process.  
 
This can be successful in raising awareness of the impact of behaviour on others. 
  
2.4 Restorative Justice 
  
We will work with North Wales Police where appropriate to support individuals to 
recognise how their behaviour affects others and to find positive solutions to 
disputes. It also encourages individuals to face up to their actions. 
   

3. ENFORCEMENT 
 
Where prevention or low level intervention fails to achieve the necessary outcome or 
in cases where behaviour is sufficiently serious, enforcement action will be the 
appropriate approach to take: Some examples are:  
 

Tudalen 150



7 

 

3.1 Civil Injunctions 
 
These are orders of the court which compel someone to do something or restrict someone 

from doing something. These are very useful as alternatives to possession proceedings.  

 

Section 1 Anti-social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 (“ASBCPA”) “Civil 

injunction”. This replaces the Anti-social Behaviour Injunction under the Housing Act 

1996 and the Anti-Social Behaviour Order under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. 

 

The Authority may apply for an injunction against a person over the age of 10 years of 

age, if the following test is made out; 

 

Where a person has engaged or threatened to engage in anti-social behaviour AND it is 

just and convenient AND the behaviour must directly or indirectly affect the Association’s 

housing management functions. 

 

In this context anti-social behaviour means; 

(a) conduct that has caused, or is likely to cause, harassment, alarm or distress to any 

person 

(b) conduct capable of causing nuisance or annoyance to a person in relation to that 

person’s occupation of residential premises, or 

(c) conduct capable of causing housing-related nuisance or annoyance to any person 

 

The injunction is a civil order which can restrict someone from doing something, for 

example; not to contact their neighbour as well as require them to do something, including 

take part in an activity, for example; to attend anger management training. 

 

A power of arrest may be attached to a term of the injunction in cases where; 

 Person has engaged or threatens to engage in ASB which consists of use or 
threats of violence against another OR, 

 There is significant risk of harm to another 

 A person may be excluded from their home if they are over 18, and the following 

test is met; 

 Person has engaged or threatens to engage in ASB which consists of use or 
threats of violence against another OR, 

 There is significant risk of harm to another 
 

Injunctions against under 18 year olds will take place in the Youth court and the Youth 

Offending Team must be consulted unless it is a without notice injunction. 

 

These tools are very useful when protection of people or property is needed. They can be 

obtained ‘without notice’ to the individual concerned, for example; where notification may 

result in a deterioration in behaviour or where the application is urgent. Breach of an order 

is contempt of court and which could lead to imprisonment and/or a fine. 
 

 

 

Tudalen 151



8 

 

3.2 Criminal Behaviour Orders 
 
Section 22 Anti-social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 (“ASBCPA”) “criminal 

behaviour order” (“CBO”) This replaces the Anti-social Behaviour Order on conviction 

under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. 

This is available to the Police and Local Authority on sentencing an offender or ordering a 

conditional discharge. This is an order compelling someone to do something or restrict 

them from doing something. 

This will be ordered where the court is satisfied beyond reasonable doubt that the offender 

has engaged in behaviour that caused or was likely to cause harassment alarm or distress 

to any person AND that the court considers that it will help prevent that person from 

engaging in such behaviour. 

 

The CBO can restrict someone from doing something, for example; not to contact their 

neighbour as well as require them to do something, including take part in an activity, for 

example; to attend anger management training. 

 
This is available to those aged 10 years plus and the prosecution must find the views of 
the Youth Offending Team where it involves an under 18 year old.  Breach of the order 
without reasonable excuse is a criminal offence. 
 
3.3 Demoted Tenancies 
 
Section 14 of the Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003 amends the Housing Act 1985 
(Housing Act 1996) to allow a secure tenancy to be brought to an end by a demotion 
order granted by the Court. The Council can only apply for demotion of tenancy on 
grounds of Anti-Social Behaviour and evidence must be presented in court, the court 
does not have to grant an order. 
 
In effect a demoted tenancy is then akin to an introductory tenancy, it is a 12 months 
probationary tenancy where if no further legal action is taken the tenancy reverts to a 
secure tenancy at the end of the 12 month period. A demotion order removes 
security of tenure and restricts the tenant from certain benefits enjoyed by secure 
tenants notably they are denied the Right to Buy or Mutual Exchange. 
  
This action would be taken by Denbighshire County Council to control offending ASB 
behaviour without initially depriving the tenant of their home, in order to give them the 
opportunity to obtain support, change their behaviour and comply with tenancy 
conditions. 
 
Or where the perpetrators of the ASB were not the tenant but family members or 
visitors to the property and where demonstrable action is being taken to prevent any 
further occurrences of unacceptable behaviour. 
 

This action also allows Housing Services to seek ancillary orders e.g. CBO, Civil 
injunction against the tenant or someone joined in the proceedings. 
 
This also returns the tenant’s security of tenure, as a secure tenant after the expiry of 
12 months, therefore, acceptable behaviour is rewarded. 
 

If this action fails to ensure the unacceptable behaviour ceases possession 

Tudalen 152



9 

 

proceedings would be sought immediately. 
 
3.4 Possession & Eviction 

 
Possession and resulting eviction is seen as last resort as every effort is made to 
bring about a change in unacceptable behaviour, to provide supportive interventions 
and give effective warnings to enable the tenant to remain in their home and live in 
an acceptable manner within the community BUT where these interventions have 
been unsuccessful, where the behaviour continues, or the risks to the victim or 
community are too great because of the seriousness or long-term nature of the 
offending behaviour Denbighshire County Council WILL seek possession. 
 
The process for gaining possession and evicting a tenant depends on the type of 
tenancy they have. 
 
3.4.1 Demoted Tenancy 
 
If a demoted tenant does not comply with the conditions of the demotion order the 
tenancy can be brought to an end by application to court for possession and 
subsequent eviction. Possession is mandatory. 

 
Possession is mandatory therefore the Authority will work within the appropriate legal 

provisions including; 

 The Pre-Action Protocol for Possession 

 The Human Rights Act 1998 
 The Equality Act 2010. 

 
3.4.2 Introductory Tenancy 
 
Denbighshire County Council operate Introductory Tenancies which are probationary 
tenancies for 12 months, breaches of tenancy can result in the Local Authority 
serving a notice and obtaining a court order to evict the tenant. Possession is 
mandatory. 
 
Possession in cases where the tenancy is subject to Mandatory Possession is 
now mitigated by the Supreme Court Judgement on Proportionality. In certain 
cases a defence under the Human Rights legislation is permissible. 
 
Possession is mandatory therefore the Authority will work within the appropriate legal 

provisions including; 

 The Pre- Action Protocol for Possession 

 The Human Rights Act 1998 
 The Equality Act 2010. 

 
3.4.3 Non-Secure Tenancies 
 
Non-secure tenancies are sometimes used within Council stock for very limited 
situations notably to provide temporary accommodation. The non-secure tenancy 
can be terminated by serving a `Notice to Quit’ and application to Court, possession 
is mandatory. 
 
Possession in cases where the tenancy is subject to Mandatory Possession is 

Tudalen 153



10 

 

now mitigated by the Supreme Court Judgement on Proportionality. In certain 
cases a defence under the Human Rights legislation is permissible. 
 
Possession is mandatory therefore the Authority will work within the appropriate legal 

provisions including; 

 The Pre- Action Protocol for Possession 

 The Human Rights Act 1998 

 The Equality Act 2010. 
 
3.4.4 Secure Tenancies 
 
Discretionary Grounds for Possession 
 
Schedule 2 of the Housing Act 1985 as amended. This schedule contains the grounds for 

possession. Ground 2 relates to anti-social behaviour and convictions for indictable 

offences by the tenant, household member or visitor. This has been amended following 

the ASBCPA to include causing nuisance and annoyance to the landlord or employees in 

connection with their housing management functions and that it is directly related to those 

functions. 

 

This is a discretionary ground which means the court must consider it reasonable 

to grant possession. 

 
The ASB Act 2003 (section 16) requires the Court to give particular consideration to 
the effects the ASB has had on the victims and the wider community when deciding 
whether it is reasonable to grant a possession order on the grounds of nuisance and 
annoyance. 
 
Therefore for any proposed legal action to be successful the evidence must be 
commensurate with the legal action requested. As outlined in this policy document, 
Housing Services will support witnesses/complainants/victims to provide evidence, 
where appropriate will look at other ways in which evidence can be secured and 
presented. 
  
This theme is developed more fully in other sections within this document 
(Supporting Witnesses, professional witnesses and covert surveillance and the use 
of hearsay evidence). 
 
Ancillary legal action will be taken as appropriate when possession proceedings are 
taken especially to prevent the escalation of the ASB and/or to ensure that 
Denbighshire County Council as a responsible Landlord does not contribute to 
displacing the problem elsewhere. The aim of any action, where achievable, must 
be to abate the nuisance, control the unacceptable behaviour and prevent 
reoccurrence. 
 
This may result in the perpetrators being treated as not eligible or not being given 

preference in accordance with our Allocations policy if they seek housing with this 

Authority. 
 
We will also work in collaboration with internal and external agencies to obtain 
enforcement orders e.g. Noise Abatement Notices, Dispersal Powers, Closure Orders 

Tudalen 154



11 

 

and Parenting Orders 
  
This action will be co-ordinated via the ASB coordinator case discussion format 
which represents a multi-agency response and joint accountability. 
 
Absolute Ground for possession 

Section 94 of the ASBCPA introduced a new Absolute Ground for Possession for secure 

tenants and inserted section 84A into the Housing Act 1985. Where one of the conditions 

is satisfied in this Ground the court must make an order for possession subject to the 

tenant’s Human Rights and where the landlord has complied with the review requirements 

under section 85A Housing Act 1985. 

  

These conditions relate to a previous court determining breach of a CBO or Civil 

Injunction, conviction for a serious offence, where a closure order was granted for more 

than 48 hours or a breach or abatement notice or order. 

 

Possession is mandatory therefore the Authority will work within the appropriate legal 

provisions including; 

 The Pre- Action Protocol for Possession 

 The Human Rights Act 1998 

 The Equality Act 2010. 
 
4. POWERS CONTAINED IN THE HOUSING ACT 2004 
 
Part 6 of the Housing Act 2004 contains a number of measures to provide Local 
Authorities with the legal powers to tackle anti-social behaviour by complimenting 
existing legislation with the following: 
 

 Local Authorities now have the flexibility to extend introductory tenancies by a 
further 6 months where there are continuing problems with the tenancy. 

 

 To withhold consent for a mutual exchange where legal action to prevent ASB 
has been commenced, or already taken against the assignee the assignor or a 
member of their family. 

 

 The Landlord’s obligation to complete a Right to Buy sale can be suspended 
where there are proceedings in relation to ASB. Further clarified by section 
304 IN THE HOUSING & REGENERATION ACT 2008. 

 

 The Landlord can apply to Court for an order to suspend a tenant’s Right To 
Buy for a specific period on ground of ASB. 

 
5. TENANTS OBLIGATIONS  
  
All Council Tenants are subject to the Terms & Conditions of Tenancy. This is a legal 
contract between Denbighshire County Council and the Tenant(s) and the Tenant(s) 
receive a copy at the commencement of the tenancy or if/when terms of tenancy are 
revised.  
  
It is not intended to reproduce the terms & Conditions of Tenancy in full, but the most 
relevant terms are detailed below: 

Tudalen 155



12 

 

  
A Tenant(s) is/are responsible for their own actions, for the actions of those who live 
with and those who visit their home and MUST  

 Not cause or be likely to cause a nuisance, annoy or distress anyone 

 Not use , or allow the dwelling and communal parts of the building to be used 
for any illegal or immoral activity 

 Not harass the occupiers of neighbouring properties 

 Not use racist behaviour or language 

 Not write threatening, abusive graffiti or letters 

 Not use dangerous weapons at the property or in the neighbourhood 

 Not threaten or abuse a Council Officer or Members of the Council or Contractors 
carrying out their duties 

 Ensure all refuse and unwanted household items are disposed of in a safe and 
hygienic manner 

 Not park any vehicles which cause an obstruction 

 Not drive, park or ride vehicles on communal areas 

 Not allow their pets to cause a nuisance, foul the area or cause damage 

 Not damage the property and must keep the property in a clean and tidy condition 
  
6. DEALING WITH HATE CRIMES 
 
Denbighshire County Council will not tolerate any form of harassment/hate crime and 
will seek in partnership with other relevant, specialised agencies to prevent racial 
harassment (and other forms of harassment) occurring, provide support for victims 
and deal with perpetrators. Housing services will take enforcement action against any 
tenant where the evidence supports the complaint and we will take joint action with 
other agencies to secure criminal or civil action as appropriate. 
 
The Council adopts the definition of racist incident provided by the 
 
McPherson Report of the Stephen Lawrence Inquiry 1999 
 
“a racist incident is any incident which is perceived to be racist by the victim or any 

other person” 
 

Joint reporting by all agencies of incidents and collation of data is part of the Crime & 
Disorder Partnership Strategy to ensure that joint action to identify and deal with 
racial, homophobic incidents are given due priority. 
 
The Council will work in partnership with other agencies to prevent hate crime and 
deal appropriate to support and assist victims. 
 

7. DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 
 
We will work closely with the Police Domestic Violence Unit, Local Police, Women’s 
Aid and the Victim to take appropriate action to safeguard and support the victim. 
The witness support initiatives can offer practical support by a variety of agencies, 

Tudalen 156



13 

 

including extra security measures, legal advice etc. Advice and assistance via 
Homelessness services if required. 
 
Action against the perpetrator will where applicable result in action being taken 
underground 2A Housing Act 1996 to secure possession of the property if the 
perpetrator remains in occupation to the exclusion of the victim. 
 
The tenant victim who cannot remain in occupation will be given information about 
options available in relation to their housing. They will be encouraged to seek their 
own independent advice so that they can make an informed decision knowing the 
consequences of making such a decision. The Authority will provide appropriate 
support to the tenant throughout this time. 
 
The Authority may apply to court to recover premises where one partner has left the 

property following violence from the other and they are unlikely to return. This can be used 

irrespective of whether the alleged perpetrator remains in the property. Ground 2A 

schedule 2 Housing Act 1985. 
  
8. WITNESS SUPPORT 
 
Denbighshire County Council Housing Services is a partner within a multi-agency 
response network. We can arrange provision of a range of services either direct or 
via other agencies. 

 
Including: 
 

 Police (including CSO) 

 Denbighshire County Council 

 RSLs 

 Victim Support 

 Women’s Aid 

 Neighbourhood Wardens/community agencies 

 
To coordinate a multi-agency response to support witnesses/complainants 
emotionally and practically through the evidence giving process. This may range 
from short-term minimal support to longer-term and/or intense support in more 
serious ASB cases. 
 
The provisions include: 
 

 Regular contact 

 Named officer 

 Security measures - locks, camera, etc 

 Safety measures - mobile phone, alarm etc 

 Translation/interpreting services 

 Help and assistance to enable the witness to feel confident to give 
evidence themselves 

Tudalen 157



14 

 

 Assistance with attendance at court  

 

The purpose is not to move the witness/complainant rather to abate the nuisance 
and deal effectively with perpetrators, but in exceptional cases where there is 
serious risk of violence, temporary or permanent re-housing options can be 
considered. 
 
8.1 Witness Support/Evidence Gathering 
 

Use of covert and/or overt surveillance and professional witnesses can be used to 
assist in the evidence gathering process where appropriate and justified subject 
to resource implications and the case circumstances. Any such surveillance will 
be carried out in accordance with the relevant rules in Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Act 2000, obtaining the appropriate permissions and considering the 
Human Rights of all those involved and affected by the behaviour. 

  
Housing (Council) Staff and Police Officers can also present hearsay evidence in 
Court ( which thereby prevents very vulnerable/at risk witnesses having to attend) 
and this approach will be used where direct evidence from the witness is not 
possible because of fear/intimidation and their identity needs to be kept confidential. 
 
It must be noted that whilst hearsay evidence is admissible, the Court attaches 
greater importance to the evidence given direct by the witness themselves. 
 

9. INFORMATION SHARING/ DATA PROTECTION 
 
Section 115 of the Crime & Disorder Act 1998 provides a power to exchange information 
where disclosure is necessary to support the local Crime & Disorder Strategy & 
Community Safety and the objectives outlined within the Strategic Partnership:- for the 
detection and prevention of crime and ASB. 
 
Denbighshire County Council are members of the Partnership and as such are 
signatories to the Information Sharing Protocol which governs disclosure of information to 
authorised persons and is compliant with the Data Protection Act, and The Human Rights 
Act. 
 

10. STAFF TRAINING 
 
It is critical that the staff that have the responsibility for taking, investigating and 
resolving ASB complaints have in-depth training to equip them with the necessary 
skills, legal knowledge and to keep them updated on new legislation. This will be via 
regular in-house training updates, attendance at specialist professional seminars & 
training courses. Access to specialist legal advice and support if appropriate. 
 

11. STAFF PROTECTION 
 
Denbighshire County Council will not tolerate any abuse, threats, harassment, or 
violence towards staff and will take action against perpetrators. 
 
DCC Housing Services operates a lone worker policy to safeguard and support staff. 
Risk assessment of situations are an integral part of the Housing Offers role and 
these skills are developed as part of the overall training regime. 
 

Tudalen 158



15 

 

 
 
12. VULNERABLE PERPETRATORS 
 
Denbighshire County Council acknowledges that in some cases the perpetrators of 
ASB are themselves in need of support, advice and assistance; for instance where 
the ASB is the consequence of: 
 

 Drug abuse/dependency 

 Alcohol abuse/dependency 

 Mental Health and/or 

 Disability 

 Family breakdown/abuse 

 
In accordance with the Equality Act 2010 we offer support to meet the needs of 
vulnerable persons and ensure any policies are compliant and promote equality 
and diversity of opportunity. Translation/interpretation services available. 
 
We will take a multi-agency approach to supporting vulnerable people to address the 
issues which affect their neighbours, to obtain the support to enable them to modify 
their behaviour, sustain their tenancy and remain within the community. Multi-agency 
risk assessments will be carried out at ASB case conferences, to action plan and if it 
is deemed appropriate referral to more suitable housing options can be considered 
i.e. supported housing projects.  
 
If the rehabilitation route fails then Housing Services will take enforcement action to 
prevent any further ASB occurring and to protect the victim, witnesses and the local 
community. 
 

13. PUBLICITY/COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 
 
Where there is no legal restriction the Council will publicise action taken on ASB 
such as CBO’s, Injunctions or evictions through press releases and newsletters. 
We will support action taken by partners within the Crime & Disorder Reduction 
Partnership and issue where appropriate joint publicity information.  
This is to give confidence to victims, witnesses and the local community that we can 
effect change and address ASB with their help and support. 
 
Also as a deterrent, to challenge perpetrators of ASB/Crime that we will not tolerate 
their unacceptable behaviour and have the legal enforcement tools to do so. 
 
 

Tudalen 159



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Anti-Social Behaviour Policy  

16
th
 November 2015 

 
 

Equality Impact Assessment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 161



 

1 

Anti-Social Behaviour Policy 
 

Contact: 
 

Geoff Davies - Lead Officer - Community 
Housing 

Updated: 16th November 2015 
 

  
 
1. What type of proposal / decision is being assessed? 
 

A new or revised policy 

 
 

2. What is the purpose of this proposal / decision, and what 
change (to staff or the community) will occur as a result of its 
implementation? 

 

This is a revised policy to take into account recent changes in legislation namely 
Anti-Social Behaviour and Policing Act 2014. 

 

3. Does this proposal / decision require an equality impact 
assessment?  If no, please explain why. 

 Please note: if the proposal will have an impact on people (staff or the 
community) then an equality impact assessment must be undertaken 

 

Yes <If no, briefly summarise the reasons for this decision here, 
and skip ahead to the declaration at the end> 

 
 

4. Please provide a summary of the steps taken, and the 
information used, to carry out this assessment, including any 
engagement undertaken 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for guidance) 

 

A review of the exisiting Equality Impact Analysis has been undertaken. 

 
 

5. Will this proposal / decision have a positive impact on any of 
the protected characteristics (age; disability; gender-
reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and 
maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation)? 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for a description of the protected 
characteristics) 

 

The policy details how the Council will deal with breaches of tenancy and anti-
social behaviour in our communities. The policy ensures that  protected 
characteristics are taken in to account  not only for victims of anti-social behaviour 

Tudalen 162



 

2 

but also for example it is important that vulnerable customers who perpertrate 
anti-social behaviour can be supported to change their behaviour. 
 
The policy takes into account the characteristices of certain groups  and has a 
positive impact to ensure that we can address discrimination people may face in 
homes and surrounding neighbourhoods.  

 
 

6. Will this proposal / decision have a disproportionate negative 
impact on any of the protected characteristics (age; disability; 
gender-reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; 
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and 
sexual orientation)? 

 

The policy is not intended to have a negative impact however monitoring will be 
required to ensure that there is fair access to the service and that no group is 
negatively impacted. For example we need to ensure that we deal proactively with 
reports of anti social behaviour from customers who first language is not Welsh or 
English 

 

7. Has the proposal / decision been amended to eliminate or 
reduce any potential disproportionate negative impact?  If no, 
please explain why. 

 

No <If yes, please provide detail> 

 

8. Have you identified any further actions to address and / or 
monitor any potential negative impact(s)? 

 
Yes <If yes please complete the table below. If no, please explain 

here> 

 

Action(s) Owner By when? 

Regular monitoring of equality and diversity 
data to ensure that protected groups are not 
adversely affected by anti-social behaviour 
to ensure we can proactively manage 
patterns or emerging trends. This will require 
use of comparison of customer baseline data 
and Denbighshire County wide population 
and crime data. 

Geoff Davies 31st March 2016 

Regular monitoring of data to measure the  
profile of victims and perpertrators to ensure  
that all protected groups can report and 
acccess housing services and the outcomes 
are fair. 

Geoff Davies 31st March 2016 

Monitor satisfaction with services by 
customer characteristic to ensure outcomes 
are fair and consistent for all groups and  

Geoff Davies 31st March 2016 

Tudalen 163



 

3 

effectiveness of policy.  

Compliance with Welsh Language 
Commissioners standards.  

Geoff Davies 31st March 2016 

               

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
9. Declaration 
 
Every reasonable effort has been made to eliminate or reduce any potential 
disproportionate impact on people sharing protected characteristics. The actual impact 
of the proposal / decision will be reviewed at the appropriate stage. 
 

Review Date: 16th 
November 
2016 

 

Name of Lead Officer for Equality Impact Assessment Date 

Geoff Davies 16th November 
2015 

 

 

Please note you will be required to publish the outcome of the equality impact 
assessment if you identify a substantial likely impact. 

Tudalen 164



 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Denbighshire County Council  
 
Community Housing Services 
 
 
Introductory Tenancy Policy 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Document reference number  

Date agreed & Implemented:  

Agreed by:  

Review Date:  

Frequency:  

Tudalen 165



 2 

Policy Statement  

Denbighshire County Council Housing Services ‘DCC’ use introductory 

tenancies for all new tenants. The purpose of this policy is to ensure that they 

are used effectively and fairly and to promote a culture of acting responsibly. 

Introductory tenants do not have the same rights as secure tenants and 

consequently this policy should be read in line with other DCC policies 

including, succession and assignment, improvements to Council properties, 

anti social behaviour and also the Tenancy Agreement.  

 

DCC will provide a responsive, supportive service throughout the tenancy to 

ensure maximum efficiency in assisting the new tenant to; 

 sustain their tenancy 

 integrate within the community  

 understand their obligations and responsibilities in relation to their 

tenancy, especially to promote good community relations. 

 

Unless there is significant change beforehand, the next review of this policy is 

due September 2018 and every 3 years thereafter.  

Generally 

An introductory tenancy is a probationary tenancy with a 12-month ‘trial 

period’ issued to all new tenants who accept the offer of a tenancy in one of 

DCC’s properties. They will not be issued to tenants who transfer (unless they 

have an introductory or starter tenancy already) or, who undertake a mutual 

exchange. This type of tenancy enables DCC Housing Services to closely 

monitor the ‘trial period’ of a tenancy. If the tenant complies with the 

conditions of the tenancy agreement, they will automatically become a secure 

tenant after 12 months. 

 

Responsibilities under this policy  

DCC’s overall objectives of this policy are to:   

 Ensure that tenants understand the implications of an introductory 

tenancy 

Tudalen 166



 3 

 Ensure that support is provided to enable new tenants to sustain their 

tenancy 

 Ensure that effective and proportionate action is taken where new 

tenants breach their tenancy obligations 

 Deter tenants from behaving anti-socially 

 Encourage regular payment of rent  

 Ensure that customers on an introductory tenancy are treated in a fair, 

consistent and non discriminatory way. 

 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

DCC recognise that tenants may belong to groups with diverse needs, 

beliefs and cultures and could be subject to inequalities and prejudice. 

However, in order to minimise this risk DCC Housing Services have a 

robust tenancy review and monitoring process in place in addition to the 

tenant’s right to review DCC’s decision to serve either a Notice of 

Possession Proceedings or Extension. 

 

DCC Housing Services will strive to achieve equality and opportunity in all 

that it does whilst promoting positive actions by officers to overcome 

disadvantage and discrimination. 

 

Sustaining Tenancies  

DCC is attempting to provide housing for those in greatest need and has a 

commitment to support help tenants sustain their tenancies. It is important 

for DCC to consider any vulnerability when signing up new tenants. Every 

effort is made to identify any support needs in order to ensure, where 

possible, help is available during the course of a tenancy.  

 

At the sign-up stage, all introductory tenants will be provided with a tenant 

handbook for guidance and useful information. Housing Management Staff 

will also discuss the tenancy with the tenant and explain the legal status of 

the introductory tenancy. Introductory tenants do not have the same legal 

Tudalen 167



 4 

protection in a County Court as other tenure types and Housing 

Management Staff will make sure tenants are aware of this.  

 

Housing Management Staff will undertake post sign-up visits within four -

six weeks of the sign-up to ensure the tenant is adhering to the tenancy 

terms and address any issues. A further visit will be carried out between 

weeks 20-22. Tenants will be expected to abide by their tenancy 

agreement and the policies set out by DCC who will also want to ensure 

tenants’ support needs have been adequately assessed.  

 

If during the probationary period, there is any cause for concern; Housing 

Management Staff will approach the tenant in an attempt to discuss any 

difficulties. They will work with the tenant and other relevant agencies (if 

applicable) to try to resolve any breaches such as; rent arrears, anti-social 

behaviour or other tenancy breach. However, if they are not resolved DCC 

can:   

 extend the Introductory Tenancy for a period of 6 months (therefore 

creating an 18 month introductory tenancy in total); or 

 end the Introductory Tenancy. 

 

Each case will be decided on its own merits and circumstances and this policy 

will be applied accordingly.  

 

Serving Notice to end the Introductory Tenancy due to tenancy breaches  

Prior to the service of notice and subsequent eviction proceedings, DCC will 

have been proactive in their management including; regular visits, contact and 

ensuring support needs are identified to assist sustaining the tenancy. DCC 

will have provided tenants with the opportunity to resolve all issues that lead 

to this action being taken. 

 

In cases where there is sufficient evidence to warrant commencing action by 

serving notice on the tenant, a Notice of Possession Proceedings will be 

issued. This Notice can be served, where appropriate, at any time during the 

Tudalen 168



 5 

course of the introductory tenancy and is the start of the possession process. 

Only the courts can evict the tenant. The tenancy will carry on as an 

introductory tenancy until the court case is determined.  

 

Paperwork accompanying the notice, will inform the tenant of their right to 

request a review of DCC’s decision to serve notice. The request for the review 

must be made within 14 days of the service of the notice. Clear written 

guidance will be provided to the tenant regarding this process.  

 

Senior officers of DCC Housing Services, not involved in the decision to serve 

notice, will carry out the review. Where processes have been followed, 

eviction will be pursued if this is felt to be the most appropriate action by the 

review panel. Where the panel does not uphold the decision to bring eviction 

proceedings, Housing Management Staff will formulate a way forward with the 

tenant about maintaining their tenancy.  

 

Decision to extend the probationary period of a tenancy  

Housing Management Staff may choose to extend the probationary period of 

an introductory tenancy for a further 6 months. This will be in cases where 

there is sufficient evidence for concern, but where there is reason to believe 

the tenant should be given further opportunity to comply with the tenancy 

agreement.  

 

A tenant will be served a notice of the decision to extend an introductory 

tenancy within the 12 month probationary period. The notice can be served no 

later than 8 weeks before the end of the 12 month trial period. Paperwork 

accompanying the notice, will inform the tenant of their right to appeal against 

DCC’s decision to serve notice. The request for the review must be made 

within 14 days of the notice being served. Clear written guidance will be 

provided to the tenant regarding this process. Senior officers of DCC Housing 

Services, not involved in the decision to serve notice, will carry out the review.  

 

If the tenancy is extended, at the end of the 18 month trial period, the 

introductory tenancy will automatically become a secure tenancy. However, 

Tudalen 169



 6 

where breaches are not remedied or a further breach occurs, DCC may 

decide to commence possession proceedings and serve the Notice of 

Possession Proceedings. 

 

Tudalen 170



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
INTRODUCTORY TENANCY POLICY  

16
th
 November 2015 

 
 

Equality Impact Assessment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 171



 

1 

Introductory Tenancy Policy 
 

Contact: 
 

Geoff Davies - Lead Officer - Community 
Housing 

Updated: 16th November 2015 
 

  
 
1. What type of proposal / decision is being assessed? 
 

A new or revised policy 

 
 

2. What is the purpose of this proposal / decision, and what 
change (to staff or the community) will occur as a result of its 
implementation? 

 

This is a revised policy to ensure we maintain an up to date approach to how we 
manage new tenancies. 

 

3. Does this proposal / decision require an equality impact 
assessment?  If no, please explain why. 

 Please note: if the proposal will have an impact on people (staff or the 
community) then an equality impact assessment must be undertaken 

 

Yes <If no, briefly summarise the reasons for this decision here, 
and skip ahead to the declaration at the end> 

 
 

4. Please provide a summary of the steps taken, and the 
information used, to carry out this assessment, including any 
engagement undertaken 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for guidance) 

 

A review of the exisiting Equality Impact Analysis has been undertaken. 

 
 

5. Will this proposal / decision have a positive impact on any of 
the protected characteristics (age; disability; gender-
reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and 
maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation)? 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for a description of the protected 
characteristics) 

 

The policy details how the Council will manage new tenancies. This policy will 
help ensure that  people with protected characteristics are supported  in their new 
tenancy and any support needs or issues within their community are identified as 

Tudalen 172



 

2 

part of our process of managing introductory tenancies and will help us to support 
new members of our communities to sustain their tenancies. 
 
The Introductory Tenancy policy supports our approach to ensuring that we have 
up to date profiling information on our customers.  

 
 

6. Will this proposal / decision have a disproportionate negative 
impact on any of the protected characteristics (age; disability; 
gender-reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; 
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and 
sexual orientation)? 

 

The policy is not intended to have a negative impact however monitoring will be 
required to ensure that there is fair access to the service and that no group is 
negatively impacted. For example we need to ensure that our approach is clearly 
communicated and understood when an Introductory Tenancy is awarded. This 
means that customers whose first language is not Welsh or English or someone 
who has learning difficulties fully understands their tenancy status. 

 

7. Has the proposal / decision been amended to eliminate or 
reduce any potential disproportionate negative impact?  If no, 
please explain why. 

 

No <If yes, please provide detail> 

 

8. Have you identified any further actions to address and / or 
monitor any potential negative impact(s)? 

 
Yes <If yes please complete the table below. If no, please explain 

here> 

 

Action(s) Owner By when? 

Regular monitoring of equality and diversity 
data to ensure that protected groups are not 
adversely affected by the use of introductory 
tenancies. This means we will monitor to 
ensure the use of mandatory grounds for 
possession does not have a negative impact 
on any particular protected group. 

Geoff Davies 31st March 2016 

Regular monitoring of data to measure the  
profile of new customers and ensure  access 
for new tenant visits is consistent across all 
groups.   

Geoff Davies 31st March 2016 

Monitor satisfaction with services by 
customer characteristic to ensure 
understanding of process so the policy is fair 
and consistent for all groups.  

Geoff Davies 31st March 2016 

Compliance with Welsh Language Geoff Davies 31st March 2016 

Tudalen 173



 

3 

Commissioners standards.  

                  

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
9. Declaration 
 
Every reasonable effort has been made to eliminate or reduce any potential 
disproportionate impact on people sharing protected characteristics. The actual impact 
of the proposal / decision will be reviewed at the appropriate stage. 
 

Review Date: 16th 
November 
2016 

 

Name of Lead Officer for Equality Impact Assessment Date 

Geoff Davies 16th November 
2015 

 

 

Please note you will be required to publish the outcome of the equality impact 
assessment if you identify a substantial likely impact. 

Tudalen 174



 

 1 

 
 

Adroddiad i’r:    Cyngor Sir 
 
Dyddiad y Cyfarfod:   1 Rhagfyr 2015 
 
Aelod / Swyddog Arweiniol:  David Smith - Aelod Arweiniol y Parth 

Cyhoeddus  
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad:  Graham Boase - Pennaeth Cynllunio a 

Gwarchod y Cyhoedd 
Emlyn Jones - Rheolwr Gwarchod y 
Cyhoedd 

 
Teitl:   Is-Ddeddfau Cerbydau Hacni Diwygiedig 

Arfaethedig  
 

 
1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn?  
 
1.1 Pwrpas yr adroddiad hwn yw gofyn i Aelodau gymeradwyo'r 

Is-ddeddfau diwygiedig mewn perthynas â Cerbydau Hacni. 
 
2. Beth yw'r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn?  
 
2.1 Y rheswm am yr adroddiad hwn yw ceisio mabwysiadu is-ddeddfau 

wedi’u diwygio a chyfredol i sicrhau dull teg, tryloyw a chyson wrth 
benderfynu ar unrhyw faterion gorfodi cerbyd hacni. 

 
2.2 Y rheswm dros ddod â’r adroddiad i’r Cyngor Llawn yw bod gwneud 

is-ddeddfau o dan a68 o Ddeddf Cymalau Heddlu Tref 1847 yn 
swyddogaeth y Cyngor (yn hytrach na swyddogaeth Weithredol) o dan 
y Rheoliadau Trefniadau Gweithrediaeth Awdurdodau Lleol 
(Swyddogaethau a Chyfrifoldebau) (Cymru) 2007.  

 
3. Beth yw'r Argymhellion? 
 

3.1 Bod Is-ddeddfau Enghreifftiol yr Adran Drafnidiaeth, fel y nodir yn 
Atodiad 1 i'r adroddiad hwn, yn cael eu mabwysiadu.  

 
3.2 Caniatáu i Swyddogion anfon yr Is-ddeddfau Enghreifftiol i Lywodraeth 

Cynulliad Cymru i'w cadarnhau. 
 
4. Manylion yr Adroddiad. 
 

4.1 Mae'r Cyngor, fel yr Awdurdod Trwyddedu, yn gyfrifol o dan Ddeddf 
Cymalau Heddlu Tref 1847, a Deddf Llywodraeth Leol (Darpariaethau 
Amrywiol) 1976 am drwyddedu a gorfodi Cerbydau Hacni a'u gyrwyr. 

 

Tudalen 175

Eitem Agenda 9



 

 2 

4.2 Ers ad-drefnu llywodraeth leol yn 1996 mae'r Cyngor wedi arfer y 
cyfrifoldeb hwn drwy Amodau Trwyddedu Cerbyd Hacni a Hurio Preifat 
y Cyngor (Y Llyfr Glas) a thrwy Is-ddeddfau mewn perthynas â’r Rhyl a 
Phrestatyn yn unig. 

 
4.3 Mae’r Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol wedi dweud wrthym y dylai’r Cyngor 

fabwysiadu Is-ddeddfau ar gyfer y Sir gyfan er mwyn sicrhau eu bod yn 
adlewyrchu newidiadau mewn deddfwriaeth yn gywir ac i sicrhau bod 
dull teg, tryloyw a chyson yn cael ei gymryd wrth benderfynu ar 
orfodaeth a materion eraill sy'n ymwneud â cherbydau hacni a gyrwyr.  

 

4.4 Mae'r Adran Drafnidiaeth (DfT) wedi cynhyrchu set o Is-ddeddfau 
Enghreifftiol fel sail i awdurdodau lleol eu defnyddio (Atodiad 1). Rydym 
yn bwriadu mabwysiadu'r is-ddeddfau enghreifftiol hyn. 

 

4.5 Cyflwynodd y Swyddogion adroddiad i Aelodau'r Pwyllgor Trwyddedu 
ym mis Medi 2014 yn argymell mabwysiadu Is-ddeddfau Enghreifftiol yr 
Adran Drafnidiaeth ac ymgynghori gyda phob Perchennog a Gyrrwr 
Cerbydau Hacni.   

 
5. Sut mae'r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at y Blaenoriaethau 

Corfforaethol? 
 
5.1 Bydd y polisi yn cyfrannu at dwf economaidd / datblygu'r economi / 

diogelu pobl ddiamddiffyn drwy reoleiddio'r sector cerbydau hacni yn y 
sir. 

 
6. Faint fydd hyn yn ei gostio a sut y bydd yn effeithio ar 

wasanaethau eraill? 
 
6.1 Cynhaliwyd Asesiad o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb a gellir ei weld yn 

Atodiad 2.  
 

6.2 Yr unig gostau sy'n gysylltiedig â’r adolygiad hwn yw'r gofyniad i 
hysbysebu'r is-ddeddfau yn y wasg leol. Mae gweddill yr adolygiad 
wedi ei gynnal o fewn y cyllidebau gwasanaeth presennol. Bydd costau 
gweithredu'r is-ddeddfau yn cael eu cynnwys o fewn y gyllideb 
gwasanaeth presennol. 

 
7. Pa ymgynghori a wnaed?  
 

7.1 Ymgynghorwyd gyda’r Pwyllgor Trwyddedu a phob Perchennog a 
Gyrrwr Cerbydau Hacni.  O ganlyniad i'r ymgynghoriad hwnnw, nid oes 
unrhyw sylwadau wedi dod i law. 

 
8. Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid 
 
8.1 Dylai costau gweithredu'r is-ddeddfau diwygiedig sy'n ymwneud â 

materion gorfodi cerbydau hacni gael eu cynnal o fewn y cyllidebau 

Tudalen 176



 

 3 

presennol. Mae trefniadau monitro cyllideb cadarn yn eu lle i sicrhau 
bod hyn yn digwydd. 

 
9. Pa risgiau sydd ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i'w 

lleihau? 
 
9.1 Gall peidio â bod ag Is-ddeddfau cyfredol yn eu lle greu 

anghysonderau ar draws y Sir, felly mae'n bwysig, er mwyn galluogi 
gwell rheoleiddio, mabwysiadu'r Is-ddeddfau enghreifftiol.  

 
10. Pŵer i wneud y Penderfyniad 
 
10.1 Mae Adran 68 o Ddeddf Cymalau Heddlu Tref 1847 yn caniatáu i 

awdurdod lleol wneud is-ddeddfau ar gyfer rheoleiddio ymddygiad 
perchnogion a gyrwyr Cerbydau Hacni o fewn ardal eu hawdurdod. 

 

Tudalen 177



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

 1 

 
 
 

BYELAWS 
 
BYELAWS made under Section 68 of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 and 
Section 171 of the Public Health Act 1875 by DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY 
COUNCIL with respect to hackney carriages in the county of Denbighshire 
. 
INTERPRETATION 
 
1. Throughout these byelaws:- 

 
“the Council” - means the County Council of Denbighshire and “the District” - 
means the County of Denbighshire 
 
Provisions regulating the manner in which the number of each hackney 
carriage corresponding with the number of its licence, shall be 
displayed 
 
2. (a) The proprietor of a hackney carriage shall cause the number of the

 licence granted to him in respect of the carriage to be legibly painted
 or marked on the outside and inside of the carriage or on plates
 affixed thereto 

 (b)  A proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage shall: – 
 

(i) not wilfully or negligently cause or suffer any such number to be
 concealed from public view while the carriage is standing or plying
 for hire; and 

(ii) not cause or permit the carriage to stand or ply for hire with any 
such painting marking or plate so defaced that any figure or 
material particular is illegible 

 
Provisions regulating how hackney carriages are to be furnished or 
provided 
 
3.  The proprietor of a hackney carriage shall:- 
 

(a)  provide sufficient means by which any person in the carriage may 
  communicate with the driver; 

(b)  cause the roof or covering to be kept watertight; 
(c)  provide any necessary windows and a means of opening and 

Tudalen 179



 

 2 

 closing not less than one window on each side; 
(d)  cause the seats to be properly cushioned or covered; 
(e)  cause the floor to be provided with a proper carpet, mat, or other 

 suitable covering; 
 (f)  cause the fittings and furniture generally to be kept in a clean 

  condition, well maintained and in every way fit for public service; 
(g)  provide means for securing luggage, if the carriage is so constructed 

as to carry luggage; 
(h)  provide an efficient fire extinguisher which shall be carried in such a 

position as to be readily available for use and   
(i) provide at least two doors for the use of persons conveyed in such 

carriage and a separate means of ingress and egress for the driver; 
 
4.   The proprietor of a hackney carriage shall cause any taximeter with which 

the carriage is provided to be so constructed, attached and maintained as 
to comply with the following requirements, that is to say:- 

 
 (a)  the taximeter shall be fitted with a key flag or other device, the turning 

of which will bring the machinery of the taximeter into action and 
cause the word “HIRED” to appear on the face of the taximeter; 

(b)  such key flag or other device shall be capable of being locked in such 
a position that the machinery of the taximeter is not in action and that 
no fare is recorded on the face of the taximeter; 

(c)  when the machinery of the taximeter is in action there shall be 
recorded on the face of the taximeter in clearly legible figures a fare 
not exceeding the rate or fare which the proprietor or driver is entitled 
to demand and take for hire of the carriage by time as well as for 
distance in pursuance of the tariff fixed by the Council; 

(d)  the word “FARE” shall be printed on the face of the taximeter in plain 
letters so as clearly to apply to the fare recorded thereon; 

(e)  the taximeter shall be so placed that all letters and figures on the face 
thereof are at all times plainly visible to any person being conveyed in 
the carriage and for that purpose the letters and figures shall be 
capable of being suitably illuminated during any period of hiring; and 

(f)  the taximeter and all the fittings thereof shall be so affixed to the 
carriage with seals or other appliances that it shall not be practicable 
for any person to tamper with them except by breaking, damaging or 
permanently displacing the seals or other appliances. 

 
Provisions regulating the conduct of the proprietors and drivers of 
hackney carriages plying within the district in their several 
employments, and determining whether such drivers shall wear any and 
what badges 
 
5.   The driver of a hackney carriage provided with a taximeter shall:- 
 

 (a)  when standing or plying for hire, keep the key flag or other device 
fitted in pursuance of the byelaw in that behalf locked in the position in 
which no fare is recorded on the face of the taximeter; 

Tudalen 180



 

 3 

(b)  before beginning a journey for which a fare is charged for distance 
and time bring the machinery of the taximeter into action by moving 
the said key flag or other device, so that the word “HIRED” is legible 
on the face of the taximeter and keep the machinery of the taximeter 
in action until the termination of the hiring; and 

(c)  cause the dial of the taximeter to be kept properly illuminated 
throughout any part of a hiring which is between half-an-hour after 
sunset and half –an-hour before sunrise and also at any other time at 
the request of the hirer 

 
6.  A proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage shall not tamper with or permit 

any person to tamper with any taximeter with which the carriage is 
provided, with the fittings thereof or with the seals affixed thereto. 

 
7.  The driver of a hackney carriage shall, when plying for hire in any street 

and not actually hired:- 
 

 (a) proceed with reasonable speed to one of the stands appointed by the
  Council 
(b) if a stand at the time of his arrival is occupied by the full number of 

carriages authorised to occupy it, proceed to another stand 
(c) on arriving at a stand not already occupied by the full number of 

carriages station the carriage immediately behind the carriage or 
carriages on the stand and so as to face in the same direction ; and 

(d) from time to time when any other carriage immediately in front is 
driven off or moved forward cause his carriage to be moved forward 
so as to fill the place previously occupied by the carriage driven off or 
moved forward 

 
8.  A proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage, when standing or plying for 

hire, shall not make use of the services of any other person for the 
purpose of importuning any person to hire such carriage. 

 
9.  The driver of a hackney carriage shall behave in a civil and orderly 

manner and shall take all reasonable precautions to ensure the safety of 
persons conveyed in or entering or alighting from the vehicle 

 
10. The proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage who has agreed or has 

been hired to be in attendance with the carriage at an appointed time and 
place shall, unless delayed or prevented by some sufficient cause, 
punctually attend with such carriage at such appointed time and place 

 
11. A proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage shall not convey or permit 
 to be conveyed in such carriage any greater number of persons than the 

number of persons specified on the plate affixed to the outside of the 
carriage; 

 
12. If a badge has been provided by the Council and delivered to the driver of 

a hackney carriage he shall, when standing or plying for hire, and when 
hired, wear that badge in such position and manner as to be plainly visible 

Tudalen 181



 

 4 

 
 
 
13. The driver of a hackney carriage so constructed as to carry luggage 

shall, when requested by any person hiring or seeking to hire the 
carriage:- 
 
(a)  convey a reasonable quantity of luggage; 
(b) afford reasonable assistance in loading and unloading; 
(c) afford reasonable assistance in removing it to or from the entrance of 

any building, station or place at which he may take up or set down 
such person. 

 
Provisions fixing the rates or fares to be paid for hackney carriages 
within the district and securing the due publication of such fares 
 
14.  (i) The proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage shall be entitled to 

demand and take for the hire of the carriage the rate or fare 
prescribed by the Council, the rate or fare being calculated by a 
combination of distance and time unless the hirer express at the 
commencement of the hiring his desire to engage by time. 

 
 (ii)  Where a hackney carriage furnished with a taximeter is hired by 

distance and time the proprietor or the driver thereof shall not be 
entitled to demand and take a fare greater than that recorded on the 
taximeter, save for any extra charges authorised by the Council which 
it may not be possible to record on the face of the taximeter 

 
15. (i)  The proprietor of a hackney carriage shall cause a statement of the 

fares fixed by council resolution to be exhibited inside the carriage, in 
clearly distinguishable letters and figures. 

 
      (ii) The proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage bearing a statement of 

fares in accordance with this byelaw shall not wilfully or negligently 
cause or suffer the letters or figures in the statement to be concealed 
or rendered illegible at any time while the carriage is plying or being 
used for hire. 

 
Provision securing the safe custody and re-delivery of any property 
accidentally left in hackney carriages and fixing the charges to be made 
in respect thereof 
 
16.  The proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage shall immediately after 
 the termination of any hiring or as soon as practicable thereafter 

carefully search the carriage for any property which may have been 
accidentally left therein. 

 
17.  The proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage shall, if any property 

accidentally left therein by any person who may have been conveyed in 
the carriage be found by or handed to him:- 

Tudalen 182



 

 5 

 
(a)  carry it as soon as possible and in any event within 48 hours, if 

 not sooner claimed by or on behalf of its owner, to a Police 
Station in the district, and leave it in the custody of the officer in 

 charge of the station on his giving a receipt for it; 
(b)  be entitled to receive from any person to whom the property shall 

be re-delivered an amount equal to five pence in the pound of its 
estimated value (or the fare for the distance from the place of finding 
to the Police Station, whichever be the greater) but not more than five 
pounds. 

 
PENALTIES 
 
18.  Every person who shall offend against any of these byelaws shall be liable 

on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding Level 2 on the Standard 
Scale and in the case of a continuing offence to a further fine not 
exceeding two pounds for each day during which the offence continues 
after conviction therefor. 

 
REPEAL OF BYELAWS 
 
(i) The byelaws relating to hackney carriages in the Urban District of 

Rhyl which were made by Rhyl Urban District Council on the 16th day 
of November 1971 and which were confirmed by the Secretary of 
State on the 25th January 1972 and came into operation on the 1st 
day of March 1972; and   

 
(ii) The byelaws relating to hackney carriages in the former Urban District 

of Prestatyn which were made by of the Council of the Borough of 
Rhuddlan on the 11th day of February 1975 and which were confirmed 
by the Secretary of State on 18th April 1975 and came into operation 
on the 1st day of May 1975  

 
in so far as such byelaws apply to the urban district areas of Rhyl and 
Prestatyn are hereby revoked. 
 

 

The Common Seal of  
Denbighshire County Council was  
hereunto affixed in the presence of: 
 
 
 
Chair. 
 
 
 
Authorised Signatory.      Seal No. 
 
 

Tudalen 183



 

 6 

 
 
 
The foregoing byelaws are hereby confirmed by the National Assembly for 
Wales and shall come into operation on the        day of                       2014. 
 
Signed by Authority of the Minister for Environment 
 
 
 
Head of Transport Policy Division 
Welsh Assembly Government. 

Tudalen 184



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Hackney Carriage Byelaws 

July 2015 
 
 

Equality Impact Assessment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Tudalen 185



1 

Hackney Carriage Byelaws 
 

Contact: 
 

Nicky Jones, Senior Technical Officer 
(Licensing) 

Updated: July 2015 
 

  
 
1. What type of proposal / decision is being assessed? 
 

Revised Byelaws 

 
 

2. What is the purpose of this proposal / decision, and what 
change (to staff or the community) will occur as a result of its 
implementation? 

 

To regulate Hackney Carriage proprietors, vehicles and drivers 

 

3. Does this proposal / decision require an equality impact 
assessment?  If no, please explain why. 

 Please note: if the proposal will have an impact on people (staff or the 
community) then an equality impact assessment must be undertaken 

 

<Please Select> A full equality impact assessment is not required at this time.  
The proposed Byelaws have been produced by The 
Department for Transport (Model Byelaws) and the proposal 
is not to deviate from the Model. 

 
 

4. Please provide a summary of the steps taken, and the 
information used, to carry out this assessment, including any 
engagement undertaken 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for guidance) 

 

1. The Byelaws will be available on line 
2. Requests in other languages for copy of byelaws  we will endeavour to 

translate (available in Welsh and English) 
3. All parties affected by the Byelaws will have our full contact details, which 

will also be available on line 
4. All staff and Members have received training and guidance and are aware 

of the corporate complaint mechanism.    
5. The Model Byelaws have been produced by The Department for Transport.  

Consultation has taken place will all licence holders and comments noted.  
The Model Byelaws have been approved by the Licensing Committee 

6. The Byelaws are applicable to all Hackney Carriage licence holders 
throughout the County.   

7. By imposing these Byelaws there is no negative affect on any sector.  They 

Tudalen 186



2 

are intended to positively protect Hackney Carriage proprietors and drivers 
and their customers. 

8. There is no impact on structures and delivery 

 
 

5. Will this proposal / decision have a positive impact on any of 
the protected characteristics (age; disability; gender-
reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and 
maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation)? 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for a description of the protected 
characteristics) 

 

The byelaws sets certain standards to ensure equality and fair trading in the taxi 
trade which will have a positive impact on all protected characteristics 

 
 

6. Will this proposal / decision have a disproportionate negative 
impact on any of the protected characteristics (age; disability; 
gender-reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; 
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and 
sexual orientation)? 

 

None anticipated 

 

7. Has the proposal / decision been amended to eliminate or 
reduce any potential disproportionate negative impact?  If no, 
please explain why. 

 

<Please Select> N/A 

 

8. Have you identified any further actions to address and / or 
monitor any potential negative impact(s)? 

 
<Please Select> N/A 

 

Action(s) Owner By when? 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Unrestrict editing to insert additional rows> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
9. Declaration 
 

Tudalen 187



3 

Every reasonable effort has been made to eliminate or reduce any potential 
disproportionate impact on people sharing protected characteristics. The actual impact 
of the proposal / decision will be reviewed at the appropriate stage. 
 

Review Date: July 2015 
 

Name of Lead Officer for Equality Impact Assessment Date 

Nicky Jones, Senior Technical Officer (Licensing) July 2015 
 

 

Please note you will be required to publish the outcome of the equality impact 
assessment if you identify a substantial likely impact. 

Tudalen 188



COUNCIL FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 

 

 

Cyfarfod Eitem (Disgrifiad / Teitl) Pwrpas yr adroddiad Angen 
penderfyni
ad gan y 
Cyngor 
(oes/nac 
oes) 

Aelod Arweiniol a Swyddog 
Cyswllt 

26 Ionawr 2016 1 Cyllideb ar gyfer 2016/17 Cytuno ar gyllideb y Cyngor ar gyfer y 
flwyddyn ariannol 2016/17 

Oes Y Cynghorydd Julian Thompson-
Hill/ Richard Weigh 

 2 Rhybudd o Gynnig   Oes Cynghorwyr Martyn Holland a 
Huw Williams 

 3 Rhybudd o Gynnig  Oes Cynghorwyr Arwel Roberts a 
Cefyn Williams 

23 Chwefror 2016 1 Treth y Cyngor I’r Cyngor osod lefel Treth y Cyngor ar 
gyfer 2016/17 

Oes Y Cynghorydd Julian Thompson-
Hill/ Richard Weigh 

 2 Amserlen y Pwyllgor / Adolygiad 
Blynyddol o Gydbwysedd 
Gwleidyddol 

Cymeradwyo amserlen y pwyllgor tan 
ddiwedd 2017 ac adolygu cydbwysedd 
gwleidyddol y pwyllgorau 

Oes Steve Price 

 3 Ystyried y Strategaeth Caffael 
Ddrafft Derfynol a CPR 

  Tom Booty 

 4 Cyfansoddiad o’r Model Newydd  I fabwysiadu Cyfansoddiad newydd y 
Cyngor 

Oes Y Cynghorydd Barbara Smith / 
Gary Williams / Lisa Jones 

 5  Cynllun Cyfalaf Ystyried y Cynllun Cyfalaf  Y Cynghorydd Julian Thompson-
Hill 
/Richard Weigh/Richard 
Humphreys 

 6 Strategaeth Rheoli'r Trysorlys Cymeradwyo Strategaeth Rheoli 
Trysorlys y Cyngor 

Oes Y Cynghorydd Julian Thompson-
Hill 
/Richard Weigh 

      

Briffio’r Cyngor  
7 Mawrth 2016 

1 Cam-fanteisio’n Rhywiol ar Blant  Amh. Y Cyng. Bobby Feeley / Nicola 
Stubbins / Colin Tucker 

T
udalen 189

E
item

 A
genda 10



COUNCIL FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 

 

 2 Rheolau Mynwent Ystyried ymagwedd y Cyngor tuag at 
reoli ei mynwentydd 

Amh. Steve Parker 

      

12 Ebrill 2016 1 Enwebiadau ar gyfer Swyddi’r 
Cadeirydd ac Is-Gadeirydd y Cyngor 

Cytuno ar yr enwebiadau. Oes Gary Williams 

      

      

Cyfarfod 
Blynyddol 
10 Mai 2016 

1 Penodi Cadeirydd ac Is-Gadeirydd y 
Cyngor 

Y Cyngor i benodi arweinwyr dinesig y 
Cyngor ar gyfer blwyddyn y cyngor 
2016/17 

Oes Gary Williams 

      

      

BRIFFIO’R CYNGOR 
6 Mehefin 2016 

1 Dysgu o Rotherham - Panel Diogelu 
Corfforaethol 

 Amh. Y Cyng. Bobby Feeley / Nicola 
Stubbins 

      

5 Gorffennaf 2016      

      

      

6 Medi 2016      

      

      

18 Hydref 2016 1 Adroddiad Gwella Blynyddol  Oes Y Cyng. Julian Thompson-Hill / 
Alan Smith 

      

BRIFFIO’R CYNGOR 
14 Tachwedd 2016 

     

      

6 Rhagfyr 2016      

      

      

      

Nodyn i swyddogion - Dyddiadau Cau Adroddiadau i’r Cabinet 

T
udalen 190



COUNCIL FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 

 

Cyfarfod Dyddiad cau Cyfarfod Dyddiad cau Cyfarfod Dyddiad cau 

      

Ionawr 2016 11 Ionawr 2016 Chwefror 8 Chwefror 
2016 

Ebrill 24 Mawrth 2016 

 

Diweddarwyd 20/11/2015 SP 

Rhaglen Gwaith y Cyngor.doc 

 

T
udalen 191



M
ae tudalen hw

n yn fw
riadol w

ag


	Rhaglen
	4 DYDDIADUR Y CADEIRYDD
	5 Cofnodion
	20.10.15 Council FINAL Minutes W

	7 DRAFFT O STRATEGAETH TAI SIR DDINBYCH
	Appx 1 SummaryLHSDec15
	Why do we need a Housing Strategy?
	Our key themes:
	1. More homes to meet local need and demand
	2. Creating a supply of affordable homes
	3. Ensuring safe and healthy homes
	4. Homes and support for vulnerable people
	5. Promoting and supporting communities
	Theme One: More Homes to Meet Local Need and Demand
	Issues and Challenges
	Our desired outcomes:
	1. An increased supply of new homes of all types and tenures to meet the needs and demands of households and communities in Denbighshire as defined by the two-yearly Local Housing Market Assessment, which provides current need and demand data for the ...
	2. Better use of the existing housing stock by continuing to target empty homes across the county.
	3. Gypsies and Travellers accommodation needs are identified and addressed
	Key Actions
	Theme Two: Creating a Supply of Affordable Homes
	Issues & Challenges
	Our desired outcomes:
	1. Improved supply of affordable housing of all types and tenures  across the county
	2. Working with partners to maximise affordable housing development
	3. An increase in applicants registered on the affordable housing register
	Key Actions
	Theme Three: Ensuring Safe & Healthy Homes
	Issues & Challenges
	Our desired outcomes:
	1. Council and Housing Association accommodation is brought up to and is maintained at the Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS)
	2. Improved standards in the Private Rented Sector
	Theme Four: Homes & Support for Vulnerable People
	Issues & Challenges
	Accommodation for older people (Supported Independent Living, Extra Care, Residential & Nursing Homes)
	Our desired outcomes:
	Key Actions
	Theme Five: Promoting and Supporting Communities
	Issues & Challenges
	Our desired outcomes:
	Key Actions

	Appx 2 Draft Action Plan LHS Dec 15
	2. Creating a supply of affordable homes
	3. Ensuring safe and healthy homes
	4. Homes and support for vulnerable people
	5. Promoting and supporting communities

	Appx 3 Housing Strategy Consultation report
	Consultation Report for the Housing Strategy
	Housing Strategy Consultation May 2013 – December 2014
	Housing Strategy Consultation February 2015 – December 2015

	Appendix (A) Health Impact Assessment
	Lifestyles
	Social and community influences
	Living and environmental conditions affecting health
	Economic Conditions affecting health
	Access and quality of services
	Macro-economic, environmental and sustainability factors

	Appendix (B) Housing Strategy Workshop 17/8/15
	Theme One: More Homes to Meet Local Need & Demand
	Theme Two: Creating a Supply of Affordable Notes
	Theme Three: Ensuring Safe & Healthy Homes
	Theme Four: Homes & Support for Vulnerable People
	Theme Five: Promoting & Supporting Communities

	Appendix (C) Draft Housing Strategy discussion at Communities Scrutiny – 5th November 2015

	Appx 4 - Equality Impact Assessment draft local housing strategy - nov 2015

	8 POLISI TAI CYMUNEDOL - DIWEDDARIADAU AR GYFER CYMERADWYO
	App 1 Allocations Policy
	App1a EIA ALLOCATIONS POLICY
	App 2 Anti-Social Behaviour Policy
	App 2a EIA Anti-Social Behaviour POLICY
	App3 Introductory Tenancy Policy
	App 3a EIA INTRODUCTORY TENANCY POLICY

	9 IS-DDEDDFAU CERBYDAU HACNI DIWYGIEDIG ARFAETHEDIG
	Hackney Carriage BYELAWS DCC 3rd Draft
	EQI Assessment Hackney Carriage Byelaws 2015

	10 RHAGLEN GWAITH I'R DYFODOL Y CYNGOR SIR

